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MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LIMITED

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440

Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109

BOARD REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Twenty Seventh (27%) Board’s Report together
with the Company’s Balance Sheet as at 315 March, 2022 and Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
ended 31°* March, 2022. The Board would also like to take this opportunity to inform you about the

performance of the Company over the past twelve months.

1. RESULT OF OPERATIONS:

The summarized financial results of the Company for the year ended 315 March, 2022 are as under:

(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2020-21 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 17,119.21 23,457.23
Other Income 119.60 109.22
Total Income 17,238.81 23,566.45
Expenses before finance cost, depreciation and amortisation 15,685.21 19,101.95
Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and amortization 1,553.60 4,464.50
and tax

Finance Cost 312.35 228.97
Depreciation & Amortization expense 1,074.51 1,136.00
Profit / (Loss) Before tax 166.74 3,099.53
Tax expense 46.57 928.15
Profit/Loss for the year 120.17 2,171.38
Total comprehensive income for the year 118.76 2,144.88
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 0.41 7.42

*Face Value Rs. 10 per share.

2. PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

e During the year under review, the total income of the Company increased from Rs. 17,238.81 lakhs

in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 23,566.45 lakhs in FY 2021-22.

e Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and amortization and tax increased from Rs. 1,553.60

lakhs in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 4,464.50 lakhs in FY 2021-22.

e Profit for the year increased from Rs. 120.17 lakhs in FY 2020-21 to Rs. 2,171.37 lakhs in FY 2021-

22.

3. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

Your company continued its focus on Quality Parameters, Patient care and Welfare services resulting

in significant improvement in patient satisfaction levels.

The Company’s operations started to gradually increase during Q1 and Q2 of FY22 consequent to the
reduction of the impact of the pandemic caused by COVID-19 outbreak along with gradual reduction

of the restrictions imposed by The State Government and bring back to the normalcy.

With reduction of severity of the pandemic the operations of the Company moved towards its normalcy
during the year ended March 31, 2022 and the Company continues to actively manage its business,
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including taking various initiatives to optimize costs and meet its financial commitments, which was
impacted during the evolving nature of the pandemic. As of 31t March, 2022, the Management has
used internal and external sources of information upto the date of approval of these financial
statements, including availability of banking facilities for maintained liquidity for its operations. The
Management has used the principles of prudence in developing estimates, assumptions, exercising
judgements and performing sensitivity analysis. The Company as of the reporting date does not expect
any long-term adverse impact of COVID-19 and is in line of its ability to recover the carrying value of
assets and meeting its financial obligations. The company recognized all significant impact that came
out of the outcome of the impact of the pandemic in the financial statement as on the date of approval
of these financial statements and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized as and
when these material changes to economic conditions arise.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

For the Financial Year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has transferred Rs. 2,171.38 Lakhs to
Reserves.

5. DIVIDEND:

The Board of directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year under review with a
view to retain the earnings for meeting the operational and capex requirements of the company.

6. AUDITORS:

a. STATUTORY AUDITORS
M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP (Firm Registration Number 117366W/W-100018), Chartered
Accountants, Bengaluru are the statutory auditors of the company who were appointed at the 22"
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 10" August, 2017 for a period of 5 years.

The Auditors’ have issued an unmodified Report for the year ended 31t March, 2022 and hence,
do not call for any comments from the Management under Section 134 of the Companies Act,
2013.

b. COST AUDIT:
The provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 apply to the company, the company has
accordingly appointed PSV & Associates to audit the cost records for the financial year 2021-22 and
submit a report to the Board of Directors.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES BETWEEN THE DATE OF BOARD REPORT AND END OF FINANCIAL YEAR:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial
statements relate and date of the report.
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8. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS:

During the year under review there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in
future.

9. HOLDING COMPANY:

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited is the Holding Company of the Company as on date of this Report.

10. SHARE CAPITAL:
The Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs. 35,00,00,000.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as on 315 March, 2022 stands at Rs.
29,27,88,200 divided into 2,92,78,820 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The Company during the year under review has not issued any equity shares with differential
rights/sweat equity shares under Rule 4 & Rule 8 of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,

2014.

11. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of every director,
Board and the Chairman was carried out by the Nomination & Remuneration committee. The
Chairman of the respective committees reviewed the performance of the respective committee. The
performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole, Committees thereof
and Chairman of the Company was also carried out by the Independent Directors. Evaluation of
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the Director being
evaluated.

12. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

A declaration of independence in compliance with Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013, has
been taken on record from all the Independent Directors of the Company.

13. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

14. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Company has been following well laid down policy on appointment and remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management personnel.
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15. DETAILS OF MEETINGS:

During the year, 5 Board Meetings, 5 Audit Committee meetings, 3 Nomination and Remuneration
Committee meetings and 1 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee meeting were held. The
details are as follows:

Sl. Name of the | No. of meetings held | No. of meetings attended | Date of meeting
No. | Director during the year during the year attended
Board Meeting
1. Dr. Devi Prasad 5 5 31.05.2021
Shetty 05.08.2021
2. Mr. Viren Shetty 5 5 10.11.2021
04.02.2022
3. Mr. B.N 5 5 29.03.2022
Subramanya
4, Mr. Muthuraman B 5 5
5. Dr. Emmanuel 5 5
Rupert
Audit Committee
1. Mr.B N 5 5 31.05.2021
Subramanya 05.08.2021
10.11.2021
2. Mr. Muthuraman B 5 5 04.02.2022
3. Dr. Emmanuel 5 5 29.03.2022
Rupert

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

1. Mr. Muthuraman B 3 3 31.05.2021
04.02.2022
2. Dr. Emmanuel 3 3 29.03.2022
Rupert
3. Mr.BN 3 3
Subramanya

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee*

1. Mr. Viren Prasad 1 1 31.05.2021
Shetty

2. Dr. Emmanuel 1 1
Rupert

3. Mr.BN 1 1
Subramanya

*The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Company dissolved w.e.f. 29.03.2022
in view of the amendment notified by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 and the duties and
functions of the CSR Committee shall be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

16. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company does not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed. Therefore, not applicable.

17. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, provided guarantees or made
investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2016.
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18. COMPANIES/BODY CORPORATES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THIS FINANCIAL YEAR:

There are no Companies/Body corporates which have become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint
venture or Associate Companies during the financial year.

19. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors would like to state that:

1. In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards has been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures.

2. The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the Company for that period.

3. The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

4. The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

5. The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

20. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the specified criteria shall
spend at least 2% of its average net profits for three immediately preceding financial years towards
CSR activities. Your Company has during the Financial Year 2021-22, spent Rs. 22.79 lakhs towards
Project Kiran as a CSR activity.

The CSR Report as notified in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment
Rules, 2021 dated January 22, 2021, is attached as Annexure -A to this report.

21. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the year, all the related party transactions entered were on an arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business. Suitable disclosures as required under IND AS 24 have been made in
the notes to the financial statements.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure - B as per

the prescribed Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

22. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE:

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rules made thereunder, your Company has constituted Internal
Complaints Committees (ICC) for dealing with the complaints, if any, relating to sexual harassment
of women at workplace. During the year, 1 complaint was received, and was addressed and closed.
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23. CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

24.

25.

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT

Mr. Muthuraman Balasubramanian — Independent Director

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert — Non-Executive Director
Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty — Non-Executive Director
Mr. B N Subramanya - Independent Director
Mr. Viren Shetty — Non-Executive Director

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT AND CHANGES DURING THE YEAR

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)

Mr. Rakesh Verma - Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Shweta Priy — Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 04.02.2022)

Mr. Prosenjit Mondal — Chief Financial Officer (Appointed w.e.f. 29.03.2022)
Mr. Hrishikesh V Murthy - Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 17.11.2021)
Mr. Amit J Pandya - Chief Financial Officer (Resigned w.e.f. 11.12.2021)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND

OUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are as follows:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

sources of energy

SI. No. | PARTICULARS
1 The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy | The Company is conscious towards
2 The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate | conservation of energy and measures

implemented through previous energy
audits.

Optimization of secondary pump VFD
frequency, optimization of AHUs’ VFD
Frequency, optimization the DG Set
trial operation time were continued.

Replacement of conventional light
fittings with energy efficient LED
fittings at Narayana Superspeciality
Hospital, Howrah.

Replacement of Existing old inefficient
Chiller with Energy Efficient Chiller and
reduce annual Energy consumption by
5% to 10%
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3 The capital investment on energy conservation | Nil
equipment;

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Sl. No. | PARTICULARS

1 The efforts made towards technology absorption.

2 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost | NA
reduction, product development or import
substitution.

3 In case of imported technology (imported during the | NA
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year:

(a) The details of technology imported;

(b) The year of import;

(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has
not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and

4 The expenditure incurred on Research and | Nil
Development

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

SI. No. | PARTICULARS REMARKS

1 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual | USD 39,119.77
inflows during the year

2 The Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms | USD 1,650
of actual outflows

26. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

It is our strong belief that caring for our business constituents has ensured our success in the past
and will do so in future. The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance
provided to your Company by its bankers, financial institutions, and the government. Your Directors
thank the vendors and other business associates for their continued support in the Company’s
growth and your company shall continue to strive to provide the best treatment for the patients. The
Board also takes this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-operation and
support received from its valued shareholders.

By order of the Board of Directors

Place: Bengaluru Sd/- Sd/-
Date: 20'" May 2022 Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Mr. Viren Shetty
Director Director

DIN: 07010883 DIN: 02144586
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Annexure - A

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LIMITED
1. Brief outline of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited CSR Policy (MMRHL CSR):

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited aims to make a positive difference in the lives of the
people by engaging in activities that eliminates or alleviates pain and suffering to the under
privileged sections of the society by:
e Promoting healthcare facilities for the upliftment of people at large and creating a positive
impact by addressing issues of accessibility and affordability.
e Promoting educational facilities to help and assist in unfolding the creative potentials and
talents of the children and amateurs.
e Strive for socio-economic development thereby reducing inequality between rich and
poor.

1.1 Overview of projects/programs undertaken during the financial year 2021-22
Project Kiran

This program was started in 2016 for providing trained paramedical and support staff to Howrah
City Police who provide free accidental road trauma care ambulance services in Howrah.

This program is a joint initiative between Howrah City Police and Howrah Development Trust with
Narayana Super specialty Hospital (Unit of MMRHL) as a medical partner.

2. COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Sl. Name of Director Designation/Nature | Number of | Number of
No of Directorship meetings of CSR | meetings of CSR
Committee held | Committee
during the year attended during
the year
1. Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty Chairperson — Non- 2 2
executive Director
2. Mr. B N Subramanya Member - 2 2
Independent Director
3. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Member - Non- 2 2
Executive Director

Note: The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee of the Company dissolved w.e.f. 29.03.2022 in view
of the amendment notified by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2020 and the duties and functions of the CSR
Committee shall be discharged by the Board of Directors of the Company.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the
board are disclosed on the website of the company.

CSR Committee
CSR Policy
CSR Projects

The Company has no website.
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8.

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach

the report):

The Company does not meet the criteria in terms of Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and hence impact assessment is not applicable. However, the
CSR Committee reviews the progress of various CSR projects undertaken by the Company and
its impacts in terms of beneficiaries covered and the outcome of the programs.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set
off for the financial year, if any:

The Company has not incurred any excess amount towards the CSR spends done in FY 2021-22
which is available for set-off under the provisions of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 11,39,55,086

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 22,79,102

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 22,79,102

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent for Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

the Financial Year. Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR | Amount transferred to any fund specified under

(in Rs.)

Account as per section 135(6) Schedule VII as per second proviso to section
135(5)

Fund

Rs. 22,79,102 Nil Nil Nil Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

2

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

SI.No

Name of
the
Project

tem from |[Local [Location of the Project [Amount IAmount Amount Mode of Mode of

activities (Yes for the | the red to tation Through
in /No) project (in | current Unspent Implementing
Schedule Rs.) financial |CSR Direct Agency

Amount Date of transfer Name of the Amount Date of transfer

the list of | area | project duration | allocated spentin transfer | Implemen | Implementation -
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VIl to the State |District Year (in IAccount (Yes/No) [Name [CSR Registration
Act Rs.) for the No.
project as
per
Section
135(6) (in
Rs.)
Project (i) Yes |[West [Howrah 22,79,102 | 22,79,102 Nil Direct NA NA
Kiran Ben
gal
Total 22,79,102 | 22,79,102
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: NA
(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 22,79,102
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
Sl. No. Particular Amount (Rs.)
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per Rs. 22,79,102
section 135(5)
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 22,79,102
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Rs.0
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or Rs.0
activities of the previous financial years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] | Rs. 0
9. (a)Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding
financial year(s):
(Amount in Rs.)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
Sl. | Project | Name ofthe | Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the
No.| ID. Project. Year in | duration amount spent on amount spent | project -
which  the allocated for | theproject at the end of Completed
project was the in the reporting /Ongoing
commenced project (in reporting Financial Year.
Rs.) Financial (Rs.)
Year (Rs.)
1. Project Kiran 2016 Ongoing 22,79,102 22,79,102 48,84,102 Ongoing
TOTAL 22,79,102 48,84,102

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not applicable as there are no Capital assets
acquired during the financial year.
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11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section 135(5):
The Company has spent on CSR activities to the extent of the prescribed limit under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Viren Prasad Shetty
Non-Executive Director (Chairman CSR Committee).
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Annexure: B
FORM NO. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under the third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

SI. No. | Name(s) of the related party and | Nature of | Duration of | Salient terms of the contracts or | Date(s) of | Amount
nature of relationship contract/arrange | the contracts | arrangements or transactions | approval by | paid as
ments/ /arrangements | including the value, if any the Board advances,
transactions /transactions if any
1. | Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited | Lab and Radiology | Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
(NHL) Services received 2,79,16,817. 2021
NHL holds 99.13% of shares in the - - — -
Company Lab and Radiology | Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Services provided 2,70,089. 2021
Sale Of Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Consumables 20,54,637. 2021
Clinical Study Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Service Invoice 16,00,214. 2021
Raised
Purchase of asset | Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
4,75,198. 2021
Purchase of Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Consumables 72,77,793. 2021
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Sl. No. | Name(s) of the related party and | Nature of | Duration  of | Salient terms of the contracts or | Date(s) of | Amount
nature of relationship contract/arrange | the contracts | arrangements or transactions | approval by | paid as
ments/ /arrangements | including the value, if any the Board advances,
transactions [transactions if any
Discount Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Entitlement 15,05,719. 2021
Credit Received
2. | Narayana Hrudayalaya Foundation | Rent paid Ongoing Value of the transaction is for Rs. | 29™ March, | Nil
1,42,60,644. 2021
PPU Model Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 29t March, | Nil
Discount Rs.60,00,000. 2021
entitlement
3. | Amaryllis Healthcare Private | Purchase of Ongoing Value of the transaction is for Rs. | 29t March, | Nil
Limited consumables 1,11,01,580. 2021
4. | Biocon Biologics Ltd Purchase of Ongoing Value of the transaction is for Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
consumables 1,56,77,264. 2021
5. | Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical | Interest received Ongoing Value of the transaction is for Rs. | 29" March, | Nil
Hospitals Private Limited 8,28,887. 2021

For Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Mr. Viren Shetty
Director Director
Place: Bengaluru DIN: 07010883 DIN: 02144586

Date: 20t May, 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accoempanying financial statements of Meridian Medical Research &
Hospital Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“"Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its profit, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the
Ruies made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by
us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’'s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Vher information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

=« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

9)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Company as
on March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2022 and hence reporting
under Section 197 of the Act is not applicable,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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iil.

V.

The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 37(iii) to the financial statements, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the Note 37(iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e),
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

T b W

Monisha Parikh

Place:- Bengaluru Partner
Date :- May 20, 2022 (Membership No. 47840)
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022 UDIN:- 22047840AJLHHE1777
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Meridian Medical
Research & Hospital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “*Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controis operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
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accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W100018)

T o0 b sl

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership No.47840)
UDIN : 22047840AJLHHE1777
Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 20, 2022
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

(0

(0

(1

(

(0

(i)

(ii)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

C))

(b)

(A)

(B)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, capital
work in progress and right of use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress and right of use assets to cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain property, plant and equipment were physically verified
by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

Based on our examination of the registered conveyance deed provided to us,
we report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of land that has been taken on lease and disclosed as right of use
assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of
the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right
of Use Assets and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 31 March 2022 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder, and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of
inventories when compared with books of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate,
at points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us, the quarterly statements comprising
(stock statements) filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institutions are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the
Company of the respective quarters.
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(i)

(iii)

(iii)

(i)

(iii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

()

The Company has provided loans during the year and details of which are given
below:

Particulars Loans
{(Amount in Rs Lakhs)

Aggregate amount granted /
provided during the year:

| Others Rs. 300
Balance Outstanding as at the
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases *: | |
Others | Nil |

The investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms and
conditions of the grant of all the above-mentioned loans and advances in the
nature of loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our opinion,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

In respect of loans granted or advances in the nature of loans provided by the
Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has
been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular as per stipulation.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, in respect of loans granted and advances in the nature
of loans provided by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining
outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

No loan or advance in the nature of loan granted by the Company which has
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans
granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures performed, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in
the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
(iii)(f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year nor has any
unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Act. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services
rendered. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the
Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014,
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost
records under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
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(vii)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(ix)

(x)

(x)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

)

(@

(b)

opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are
accurate or complete

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of
Customs, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred in sub-clause (a) above which have not
been deposited on account of disputes as on 31 March 2022.

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank, financial
institution or other lender.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by
the Company were, applied by the Company during the year for the purposes
for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds
raised on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year
for long-term purposes by the Company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
Company has not taken any fund from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, or joint ventures, or associate companies.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(xi) (@)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (c)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)
(b)(c)

(xvi) (d)

(xviii)

(xix)

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143
of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,
during the year and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii)
of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to
us, internal audit system under section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not
applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clauses (xiv)(a) and
(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-
cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and
hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b)
and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Group (“Companies in the Group” as defined in the Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions) does not have any CIC (Core
Investment Company) as part of the group and accordingly reporting under
clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
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a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of
the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W100018)

Monisha Parikh

Partner

(Membership No.47840)
UDIN : 22047840AILHHE1777

Place : Bengaluru
Date : May 20, 2022
MP/EKP/ND/BA/2022

Page 11 of 11



Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Balance sheet

(R in Lakhs)
Particulars Noate No As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 8,535.83 8,872.45
Capital work-in-progress 4 243.65 25.12
Right of use assets 5 548.80 690.74
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 6(a) 199.29 149.01
Deferred tax assets (net) 29 . 181.41
Other non-current assets 7(a) 1,230.52 910.36
Total non-current assets 10,758.09 10,829.09
Current assets
Inventories 8 309.50 211.16
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 9 1,835.91 1,979.50
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 10 294.32 592.96
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 10 5243 27.78
(iv) Other financial assets 6(b) 130.77 13238
Other current assets 7(b) 173.20 144.72
Total current assets 2,796.13 3,088.50
TOTAL ASSETS 13,554.22 13.917.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 3] 2,927.88 2,927.88
Other cquity 12 5,647.99 3,503.12
Total equity 8,575.87 6,431.00
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financia! liabilities
(i) Bortowings 13(a) 86.76 2,161.90
(ii) Lease liabililies 14(a) 397.05 573.96
Provisions 15(a) 85.80 2592
Deferred tax liability (net) 29 123.48 -
Other non current liabilitics 18(a) 533 -
Total non-current liabilitics 698.42 2,761.78
Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 13(b) 32.94 635.24
(ii) Lease liabilities 14(b) 176.91 162.23
(iii) Trade payables 16
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small cnterprises 205.58 136.65
Tota! outstending ducs of creditors other than micro enterprises and small cnlerprises 2,886.03 2,671.68
(iii) Other financial liabilities 17 82.79 494.13
Pravisions 15(b) 123.60 109.30
Other current liabilities 18(b) 772.08 515.58
Total current liabilities 4,279.93 4,724.81
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 13.554.22 13,917.59
Sigmificant accounting policics 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date aftached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

1. A

Viren Prasad Shitty
Director

DIN: 02144586
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

.?m/
1wf Financidl Officer

lace: Kolkata
Date: May 20, 2022

Pr

3/\\/&"-’2.

Dr. Emmanue] Rupert
Director

DIN: 07010883

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 20, 2022 P

Shweta Priy
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

/

Rakesh Verma
Chief Executive Officer

Place: Kolkata
}‘Jau:: May 20, 2022
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of profit and loss

(X in Lakhs)
Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
No March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income
Revenue from operations 19 23,457.23 17,119.21
Other income 20 109.22 119.60
Total income (A) 23,566.45 17,238.81
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 6,405.02 5,327.46
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 21 (98.34) 40.75
Employee benefits expense 22 3,032.98 2,634.38
Professional fees to doctors 5,626.79 4,284.21
Other expenses 23 4,135.50 3,398.41
Expenses before finance cost, depreciation and amertisation (B) 19,101.95 15,685.21
Earnings before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (A-B) 4,464.50 1,553.60
Finance costs (C) 24 228.97 312.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense (D) 25 1,136.00 1,074.51
Total expenses (E) = (B+C+D) 20,466.92 17,072.07
Profit before tax (F) =(A-E) 3.099.53 166.74
Tax expenses 29
Current Tax 613.05 27.25
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement (48.76) (27.25)
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 363.87 46.57
Total tax expense (G) 928.16 46.57
Net Profit for the year H=(F-G) 2,171.37 120.17
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (36.72) (1.95)
Income tax effect 10.22 0.54
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax (I) (26.50) (1.41)
Total comprehensive income for the year J=(H+1) 2.144.87 118.76
Earnings per share 31 7.42 0.41
Basic & Diluted
Significant accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

() Equity share cupital

(in ¥ in lakhs except No. of Shares)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
Equity shures of TRs. 10 cach issucd, subscribed and fully paid up
Balance as at April 1, 2020 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
Changes in equity share capital during the ycar - -
Issue of cquity shares (refer note 11) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
Changes in cquity share capital during the year - -
Issue of equity shares (refer note 11) - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,92,78,820 2,927.88
(b) Other equity (%)
Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
. Securities Premium Deemed Capital Retained earnings Remeasurements of
Particulars Reserve Contribution the net defined benefit| 10tal other equity
Plans
Balance as at April 1, 2020 3.666.25 14.22 (220.60) (75.51) 3,384.36
Profit for the year - - 120.17 - 120.17
Other comprehensive income (OCI) (net of tax) - = - (l.41) (1.41)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 120.17 (1.41) 118.76
Balance as at March 31, 2021 3,666.25 14.22 (100.43) (76.92) 3.503.12
Profit for the ycar = - 2,171.37 - 2,171.37
Other comprehensive income {OCI) (net of tax) - - = (26.50) (26.50)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 2,171.37 (26.50) 2,144.87
Balance as at March 31,2022 3,666.25 14.22 2,070.94 (103.42) 5,647.99

As per our report of even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Monisha Parikh
Partner
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for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
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Director
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Director

DIN: 07010883

Place: Bengaluru

Date: May 20, 2022

4

q

Shweta Priy
Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 20, 2022

Rakesh Verma
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Statement of cash flows

(X in Lukhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
Murch 31, 2021

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit after tax 2,17137 120.17
Adjustments :
Income Tax Expense 928.16 46.57
Provision for loss allowance 174.03 3.19)
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,136.00 1,074.51
Interest income (12.32) (79.03)
Finance costs 228.97 312.35
Granl income (3.51 -
Loss on salc/disposal of Property, plant and cquipment 4928 5.27
Liabilities no longer required written back (49.37) 3
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 4,622.61 1,476.70
Changes in trade receivables (30.44) (137.04)
Changes in inventorics (98.34) 40.75
Changes in loans, other financial asscts and other asscts (69.55) (83.44)
Changes in trade payables and other financials liabilities 599.24 37832
Changes in provision 47.68 (38.19)
Cash generated from operations 5,071.20 1,637.10
[ncome taxes (paid)/ Refund Received (Net) (736.04) 174.79
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 4,335.16 1,011.89
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (1,561.31) (509.14)
Loan Given during the year to fellow subsidiary (300.00) -
Loan received back from feliow subisidiary 300.00 -
Investment in bank deposits (24.65) (13.98)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 8.48 3.69
Interest received 12.32 79.03
Net cash (used in) investing activities (B) (1,565.16) (440.40)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings - 164,70
Repayment of long-term borrowings (2,677.44) (925.39)
Paymen! of lcase liabilities (refer note 14) (220.09) (167.78)
Interest and other borrowing costs (171.16) (243.29)
Net cash (used in) financing activities (C) (3,068.64) (1,171.76)
Net (decrense)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (296.64) 399.73
Cash and cash equivalents at Ihe beginning of the year (refer note 10)* 592,96 193.23
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 10) 294.32 592.96
Significant accounting policies 3
* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafis that are repayvable on demand and form an inlegral part of the v's cash management.
Reconeiliation of linbilitics from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2022
Non Cagh Clinnges
Asat Fair Value/other Asat
Particulars April 1, 2021 Proceeds Repavment changes Forelgn exchange March 31, 2022
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 2,797.14 - (2,677.44) - - 119.70
Lease liabilities 736.19 - (220 04) 57.81 - 573.96
‘Total liabilities from financing activities 3,533.33 - (2,897.48) 57.81 - 693.66
R itiation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31,2021
Non Cash Changes
As at Fair Value/other As at
Particulars April 1, 2020 Procecds Repayment changes Foreign exchange March 31, 2021
Long-term borrowings (including current maturities) 3,557.83 165 (925.39) - - 2,797.14
Lease liabilitics 83491 - (167.78) 69.06 - 736.19
Total liabilities from financing activities 4392.74 164.70 (1,093.17) 69.06 - 3,533.33

The accompanying nctes form an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of ¢even date attached
for Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.

2.1

2.2,

2.3.

2.4.

Company overview

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited (‘the Company”) was incorporated on 08 May 1995 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting, managing and

maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all disciplines of medicine and without limitation
to run and administer healthcare schemes.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013
(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 20,
2022.

Details of the accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Going concern

The Company has positive net worth as at the balance sheet date. Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited, Holding
Company, which continues to support the Company through equity infusion and acting as a corporate
guarantor for long-term loans availed by the Company from the financial institutions and banks. Whilst the
current liabilities of the Company exceed its current assets as of March 31, 2022, the financial statements
have been drawn up on a going concern basis in view of the support letter received from the Holding
Company confirming their continued financial support to the Company to enable it to continue its operations
and settle its obligations as and when they become due over the next twelve-month period.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional

currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupees, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise
stated.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis under the historical cost convention except

for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities 3 Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligations




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

2.5. Use of estimates and judgements

2.6.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

— Note 28 — leases and lease classification.
— Note 35 — financial instruments

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2022 is included in the following notes:

— Note 29 — recognition of tax expense

— Note 33 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

— Note 26 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

- Note 6, 9, 10, 35 — recognition of impairment of financial assets and

— Note 4 —useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

~ Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair
values is included in Note 36 — financial instruments.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.

Significant accounting polices

3.1. Financial instruments

a. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

b. Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
— amortised cost; or
— FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided
to management. The information considered includes:

— the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed.

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value
of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows.

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features.

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual paramount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the
prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

amortised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of
profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit
and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in statement of profit and loss.

¢. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks.and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

d. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.2. Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical equipments are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale, the net realisable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net realisable is
made on an item-by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value added tax wherever
applicable, applying the first in first out. method. )
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Bank
overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral part of an entity’s cash
management.

3.5. Revenue recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related services
are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to the
services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date to the
extent of services rendered.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer
and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

‘Unbilled revenue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet
date. *Unearned revenue’ comprises billings in the excess of earnings.

Revenue from nursing school
Revenue from nursing school is recognised when the related services are rendered, and the consideration is
received.

Other medical and health care services
Revenue from other medical and health care services are recognized as and when the services are rendered
in accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the
expected credit losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment

Sl

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an
item of tangible fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.

Depreciation and amortisation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the
lower of estimated useful life and lease term. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Building 60 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Medical equipment 13years
Office equipment 5 years

Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
appropriately.

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based on
the internal technical assessment and these useful life are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date
are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use
before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years

Amortisation method

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows from the asset.

3.8. Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an expense
as the related service is rendered by the employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s
contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the
employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed periodically by a qualitied
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is managed by third party administrator.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return
on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit
liability (asset), taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
The Company recognizes gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the curtailment or settlement occurs.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the employee has
unconditional right to avail the leave, the benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company
records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial
valuation using the projected unit credit method.

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.10. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in
exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after
April 1, 2019,

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term. :

3
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.11. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity shareholders
for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

3.12. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to
the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seitle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative tax

According to Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid over
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding
assessment year for set-off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the
entity’s normal income tax during the specified period.

3.13. Impairment
a. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:

&
>
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer.

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise.

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward- looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade
receivable does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company’s non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine

whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amourit of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

3.15. Segment Reporting

Operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) who makes
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Segment results that are
reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis.

3.16 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

3.17 Standards Issued but Not Effective

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022. This notification has resulted into amendments in the following
existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2022.

i. Ind AS 101 —First time adoption of Ind AS

ii. Ind AS 103 — Business Combination

iii. Ind AS 109 — Financial Instrument

iv. Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

v. Ind AS 37 —Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

vi. Ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the company’s financial
statements.
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Meridian Medical Research & 1lospita) Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

6 Other financial assets (T in Lakhs)
Partleul; As at Asal
culars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties

Bank deposits (due to malure afier 12 months from the reporting date) 49.22 10.11
Security deposits 150,07 138.90
199.29 149.00
(b) Current
To parties other than related partles
Unbilled revenue 114.44 115.22
Security depositi 1633 17,16
130,77 132,38
T Other assets (T in Lakhy
As at Asat
Particulars March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(a) Non-current
To partles other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 19.83 2743
Cupilal advances 22553 10.54
Advanee fncomie tix and x deductod at dource, net 985,16 87239
1,230.52 91036
() Current
To parties other than related parties
Prepaid expenses 94.34 71.97
Advance to vendors 5257 44.23
Balance with government authorities ~ 1.94
Other Joans and advances 2629 26.58
173.20 144.72
B Inventories (Tin Lakhs)
Asat Asat
Rarticulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
{(Valued at lowor of cost and net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 33773 23583
Less: Provision for wrile-down to net realisable value {28.23) 24071
309.50 211.16
9 Trade receivables in Lakhs
Particulars Ll Asia
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Considered Good - unsecured 2,261.28 2,230,84
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (425.37) (251:35)
Total 1.835.91 1.5979.50
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as follows:
Trade reccivables (refer noie 30) - 0.89
Expected credit loss allowance - -
- 0.89

Net trade receivable from relaied

Trade recelvables apeing sehedule

Particulars Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments T
Mare than 3 vears

Not Due 0-6 Monthy 6 months-1 year 1-2 yrary 2.3 yeary

As at March 31, 2022

Undlsputed - Considered Good 1,757,80 14.51 179.80 206.55 94.62 8.00 2,261.28

Disputed - Considered Good - - - - - - -
1.757.80 14.51 179.80 206.55 94.61 H.00 226128

As at March 31, 2021

Undisputed - Considered Good 1,679.55 3398 161.31 216.43 41.22 98.35 2,230.84

Disputed - Considered Good = = i - - = -
1.67%.55 33.98 161.31 216.43 41.22 98.35 2.230.84

The Company uses a provision matrix lo determine the expecied credit loss on the portfolio of its irade receivables. The provision malrix is bascd on ils historically observed default rates over the expecled life of the trade reccivables and is

ndjusted for forward-looking estimates, At each reporting period, the historically observed default rates are updated and chenges in forward-looking esti are {. The expected credit loss all is based on the ageing of the doys the
receivables are due and he rotes as given in the provision matrix, The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Category Ageing
Within due date  Due date to 1 year More than |
year

As at March 31, 20122

ESI/CGHS/SCHEMES 3.24% 3451% 76.63%
Others 2.94% 34.80%% 74,98%
As at March 31, 2021

ESI/CGHS/SCHEMES 291% 19.68% 54.89%
Others 1.00% 12.18% 47.18%

The Company'’s exposure 1o credit risk and currency risks, and loss allowances are disclosed in note 35 i f




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes (0 the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

10 Cash and bank balsnces (Zin Lakhy)
Parti Asat Asat
articulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(8) Cash and cash equivalents

Cush on hand 2555 6.65

Belance with banks
-On current sceounts 26877 SR4.31
294.32 592.96

(b) Bank balances other than above

~On deposit wecounts (due to nature within 12 months of the reporting dute)* 5243 27.74
P

52.43

* The above deposits are restriciive as they pertain to hank guarantee

For the purpase of the statement of cash flaws, cash and cash equivalent comprise the followings: (2 in Lakhy)

Particulars ALET Asal
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on hand 2555 L.65
Balances with banks
-On current aceounts 265.77 554.31
=94.32 592.96
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash fiows 29432 592,96
11 _Equity share capital (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Astt aent
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Authorived
35,000,000 cquity shares (March 31, 2021 35,000,000 cquity shares) of 2 10 cach, with voling
rights 3,500.00 3,500.00
Issued, subscribed and pald up
2,92,78,820 equity shares (March 31, 2021: 2,92,78,820 of ¥ 10 each, fully paid up ,with voting 292788 2,927 88
rights.
2.927.88 292748
i) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Number of yhares Amount Number of shares Amount
At the begining of (e year 2,92,78,820 2,927.88 2,92,78,820 292788
Issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 2,92,75.820 2,928 2,92,78,820 292788

1)) Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has a single class of equity shares referred (o as cquily sharcs having a par value of % 10 cach. Accordingly, all cquity shares rank cqually with regard lo dividend and share in the Company's residual assels, Each holder ol equity
shares is entiled Lo one vote per share. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The dividend proposcd by the Board of Dircctors is subject io the approval of the sharcholders in the then ensuing Annual
General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled lo receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion Lo e number of equity
shares hield by shareholder.

111y Sharey held by holding campany

Particulars As at March 31, 2012 Asat March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount
Equity sharesof 2 10 cach fully paid up held by
- Naravana Hrudavnlava Limited 1,90,24.467 2.902 45 2.90.24 467 2.902.45
iv) Particulars of shurcliolders holding more than 5% equity shares:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares % holding
- Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 2,90,24,467 99.13% 290,24.467 99.13%

The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date Further, the Company has not issued any bonus shares or shares issued for consideration other than cosh during the
period of five years immedialely preceding the balance sheel date.

() Shurcholding of promuters:

As at March 31, 2022

Promoter Name

Number of shares %% of total shares % Change during thy vear
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited 290,24 467 99.1111% 000
Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Shakuntala Sheity * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Viren Prosad Shelty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%
Dr, Varun Shelty * 100 0.0003% 0.00%

! hd 100 0.0003% 0.00%

Dr. E:

* These shares are held by registered shareholders holding on behalf of beneficial sharcholder i.c, Nurayann Hrudayalayn Limited

CHARTERED

ACCOUNTANTS




Meridian Medical Research & Tlospital Limited
Notes to the fnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

12 Other equity (2 in Lukhy)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Reserves and surplus
Securities premium
Al the commencement of the year 3,666.25 3,666.25
Add: Movemom daring the year - -
Al the end of the year 3,666.25 3,666.25
Deemed Capital Contribution
Al the commencement of the year 14.22 14.22
Add: Additiens during the year - -
Al the end of the year 1422 1422
Retained eamings
Al the commencement of the year (100.43) (220.60)
Add: Net profit afler tax transferred from statement of profit and loss 2,171.37 120.17
At the end of the year 2,070.94 (100.43)
Other Comprehensive Income
Al the commencement of the year (76.92) (75.51)
Add: Addition during the year (26.50) (141}
At the end of the year [103.42) [76.92)
5,647.99 3.503.12
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issuc of shares, It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of amounts that can be distribuled by the company us divided fo its cquity sharchalders.
Other Comprehensive Income
Other Compre} Income rep actuarial gain or loss or re-measurement of defined benefits obligation
Deemed Capltal Contribution
Deemed capital contribution by Holding Company on account of employee stock options issued to employces
13 Borrowings (T in Lakhy)
. Asal As at
Fariiculany March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
(=) Non—current
(i) Sccured
Term loans
From barnks (refcr note 1) 119.70 2,797.14
Less: Current maturity of bong term debt (refer note 13(b1) {32.94) (635.24)
Total non-current borrowings #6.76 2,161.90
(b) Current
(1) Secured
Term loans
Current maturity af long term debt 3194 63524
Total current berrawings 3294 635.24

I Term laans from hanks :

Nature of Security

Details of repayment terms, interest and maturiry

i) Term loan from State Bank of Indin: * Nil (previous year: * 1546.79 lakhs). Ii is repayahle in Nil
querterly instalments from the reporting date (previous year: 15 quarterly instalments). Interest i
charged @ 7.15% p.a. (previous ycar: 7.15% p.a.)

ii) Term loan from State Bank of India: " Nil (previous year: * 469,26 lakhs) It is repaysble in Ni|
quurterly instolments from the reporting dale (previous year: 14 quarterly instalments). Interest is
charged @ 7.15% p.o. (previous vear 7.15% p.a)

‘Term loan from State Bank Of India, SME Branch, Howrah are sccured by cquitable mortgage of 3.0832 acre of leaschold land (Lease valid till
2036) in the name of company and 5 storey building comprising of old hospital at JL No-38 Mouza Podra, PS Sankrail ranihati, Howrah (on

pari-passu basis) Co operalive Society Lid, Tille deed no 396 ol Old hospital p d by the & by hypoth of all bl
assets including medical fi & other 11 fixed assets of the Company including s first charge on inventorics and
trade of the pany, and corporale g of Narayana Hrudayaloya Limited.

iii) Term loan from Stale Bunk of India: * Nil (previous year: * 616.39 lokhs). It is repayuble in
il quarterly instal from the reporting dale (p year: 19 quarterly instalments). Interest]

is charged @ 7.18% poo (previous year: 7.15% p.a)

iv) Term loan from Axis Bank Lid: * 119.70 lakhs (previous year : * 164.70 lakhs). Payable in 20
quarterly instalments storting from 16 May 2022). Interest is charged at 7.00% pa, (previous year!
7.00%pa)

Exclusive sccurily on Robotic equipment purchascd out of Term loan / capex LC, Additional movable fixed assets of the borrower such that
taril security cover is |.25x and corporale guarantee of Narayann Hrudayalaya Limited,

Note: Statements of current assets including stock statement filed by the Company with its bankers are in agreement with books of accounts

Y

Lease liabilitles (€ in Lakhs)
: Asat Asat
Particulsrs March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(n) Non-current
Lease liability Opening 736.19 83491
Additions during the period - -
Finance cost accrued during the period 57.81 69.06
Lease payment (220.04) (167.78)
Lease liability Closing 573.96 736.19
Less: Current lease liabilily (176.91). (162.23)
397.05 573.96
{b) Current
Current lease lability 176,91 162,23
176.91 16233
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Notes to the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)
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16

Provisions (refer note 33)

(% in Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

(2) Non—current
Provision for employee benelits

Grajuity 25,80 25.82
[ 1592
(b) Current
Provision for employee benefits
Compensated absenices 123.60 10930
123.60 109.30
Trade payables (2 in Lakhs)
g Agat As at
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smafl emerprises (refer note 34) 20050 125851
Toral outstinding dues of creditors other than micro enterprives and small enterprises 28B).54 247168
3,082.74 2,7197.1%
To related parties
Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enierprises (tefer note 30) 4.68 11.14
Total outstanding dues of reditors uther than miceo enterprises and small enterprives frefer nate 30) 419 -
8.87 11.14
Trade payables agelng schedule X in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payments
Particulars Total
Not Due * 0-1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Ag at March 31, 2022
a) Undisputed - MSME 140.82 64.17 0.12 0.47 - 205.58
b) Undisputed - Others 1,502.46 1,312.44 51.26 14.23 5.64 2,886.03
<) Disputed dues - MSME - % = = N -
d) Pisputed dues - Others - - d 2 - -
Total 1,643.28 1376.62 5138 14.70 5.64 3,091.61
As at March 31, 2021
o) Undisputed - MSME 123.75 12.31 0.59 - - 136.65
b) Undisputed - Others 844.99 1,736.50 71.64 2.08 16.47 2,671.68
¢) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
¢ Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total 968.74 1,748.81 72.23 1.08 1647 2,808.33
* Not Due includes provision for expensee
Other financial labilities (T in Lakhy)
Particulars Asad At
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Current
To parties other than related parties
Crediors for capilal goods 68.17 480.76
Others 14.62 13.37
§2.79 494.13
Other fabilitles (¥ in Lakhs)
N Asat Asat
Particulurs March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

Non Current
To parties other than related parties

Deferred grant -others * 533 =
53 -
Current
To parties other than related parties
Unearned reverie 67.53 192,08
Contract labilitics SE2.6T 220,40
Halances duc o statutory’ government authorities 121.01 10172
Interest Accrued but not Due on Long Term Baorrowiing 0.87 098
772,08 515.5%

* During the financinl year 202122, the company had reccived capital grants from various corparates amaunting to T K45 lakhs for purchise of Medical equipments as agreed. The Cempany has recognized this grant as deforred inconie a1 fair
value which is being amortized over the usefiel life of the fined nsscts in proportionin which related depreciation is recognized.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

19 Revenue from operations (R in Lakhs)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Barticulans March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Income from medical and healthcare services 22,937.60 16,450.33
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 483.24 530.97

Other operating revenue:

Revenue from Nursing School 36.39 137.91
23,457.23 17,119.21

Refer notes below

(i) Category of Customer

Cash* 11,614.91 8,128.99
Credit 11,842.32 8,990.22
Total 23,457.23 17,119.21

* Includes receipts through digital/electronic mode

(ii) Nature of treatment

In-patient 18,706.10 12,754 .44
Out-patient 4,231.50 3,695.89
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 483.24 530.97
Others 36.39 137.91

23.457.23 17,119.21

(iii) The revenue from rendering Healthcare services and Pharmaceutical products satisfies ‘at a point in time’ recognition criteria as prescribed

by Ind AS 115
(iv) Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contractual Linbilities
Contractual Liabilities 582.67 220.80

(v) Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations
The Company has applied the practical expedient with respect to non disclosure of information in respect of remaining performance
obligations considering the fact that the company’s performance obligations, i.e. the treatment in case of healthcare segment has an original
expected duration of one year or less.

GHARTERED oo
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22

23

Other income (X in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 4.01 5.10
- Income tax Refund 831 73.93
Grant income 3.51 -
Liabilities no longer required written back 49.37 -
Miscellaneous income 44.02 40.57
109.22 119.60
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments R in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 211.16 251.91
Inventory at the end of the year 309.50 211,16
(98.34) 40.75
Employee benefits expenses (¥ in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Barticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages and bonus 2,772.60 2,398.32
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer notc 33) 235.71 21235
Staff welfare expenses 24.67 23.71
3,032.98 2,634.38
Other expenses (X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Hospital operating expenses
Power and fuel 502.36 465.19
Hospital general expenses 188.12 183.74
House keeping expenses 553.15 52437
Patient welfare expenses 255.82 232.77
Rent 169.23 132.07
Medical gas charges 97.68 108.99
Biomedical wastage expenses 18.38 17.44
Repairs and maintenance
- Hospital equipments 659.48 436.43
- Buildings 139.31 126.11
- Others 296.53 286.86
2,880.06 2,513.97
Administrative expenses
Traveling and conveyance 41.31 43.04
Security charges 140,96 124.67
Printing and stationery 51.08 37.18
Rent 80.07 95.35
Advertisement and publicity 382.58 296.36
Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 34.65 32.94
Busincss promotion 50.93 56.64
Telephone and communication 43.99 38.24
Bank charges 42.24 27.80
Insurance 87.38 62.23
Corporate social responsibility (refer note (ii) below) 22.79 26.12
Rates and taxes 33.32 27.39
Books and periodicals 16.56 10.09
Provision for loss allowances 174.03 (3.19)
Loss on sale/disposal of Property, plant and equipment 49.28 5.27
Foreign exchange loss, (net) 0.26 0.47
Miscellaneous expenses 4.01 3.79
1,255.44 884.44
4,135.50 3,398.41
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Payment to auditors* (Zin Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
As an auditor

Audit fee 9.00 9.00

In other capacity :
Other services (certification fees) 0.50 0.50
0.14 0.06

Reimbursement of expenses

*excluding goods and service tax

Corporate social responsibility

Consequent to the requircments of Section 135 of the Companics Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as stated below. The same
is in line with activities specified in Schedule VII of the Companics Act, 2013,

The Company's CSR activities primarily focuses on programs that aims to make a positive difference in the lives of the people by engaging in
activities that eliminates or alleviates pain and suffering to the under privileged sections of the society by Promoting healthcare facilities for
the upliftiment of people at large and creating a positive impact by addressing issues of accessibility and affordability.Promoting educational
facilities to help and assist in unfolding the creative potentials and talents of the children and amateurs.

® in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 22.79 23.34
b) Amount of expenditure incurred on purpose other than construction/ acquisition of 2l 22
any asset
c) Excess spend of prior years set off during the year - -
d) Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year [(d)=(a)-(b)<c)] - (2.78)
¢) Total of previous years shortfall - -
f) Reason for shortfall NA NA
Finance costs (X in Lakhs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
L March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- term loans from banks 170.77 242.19
- bank overdraft 0.39 1.10
Interest expense on lease liabilities 57.81 69.06
228.97 312.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense (X in Lakhs)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
articulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 994.06 932.57
Depreciation of Right of Use Assets (refer Note 5) 141.94 141.94
1,136.00 1.074.51

CHARTERED |en
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

26 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any contingent liability as on March 31, 2022 (previous year - Nil).

(ii) Commitments
Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) and not provided for amounts to Z 3016.02 lakhs as on March
31, 2022 (previous year: X 83.51 lakhs).

27 Segment information

Operating Segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” (“Ind AS 108”) establishes standards for the way that public business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. Based on the "management approach" as defined in
Ind AS 108, operating segments are to be reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(CODM). The CODM evaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis. The Company’s sole operating segment is therefore
‘Medical and Healthcare Services’. Accordingly, there are no additional disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in
the financial statements,

Geographical information

Geographical information analyses the Company’s revenue and non-current assets by the Company's country of domicile (i.e. India) and other countries. In
presenting the geographical information, segment revenue has been based on the geographical location of the customers and segment assets which have been
based on the geographical location of the assets. Since, the Company has only one geographical location, i.e. India, with respect to location of assets and
location of customers, further details about geographical information is not applicable.

One Customers - Swasthyasathi 21.55% accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2022 and Two Customers - WBHS (13.64%) &
Swasthyasathi (10.81%) accounted for more than 10% of the revenue as of March 31, 2021,

28 Leases
The Company has taken various medical equipment, hospital premises, office and residential premises under operating leases. The leases typically run for a
term ranging from one to thirty three years, with an option to renew the lease after the term completion. The escalation clause in these arrangement ranges
from 0% 10 5%.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of rental payments (X in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Less than 1 year 220.04 220.04
1 -2 years 204.04 220.04
2-5 years 84.09 260,10
More than 5 years 294.32 32235

(i) The following is the break-up of current and non—current lease liabilities as at March 31, 2022

(X in Lakhs)
Parti As at As at
articulars
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current lease liabilities 176.91 162.23
Non-current lease liabilitics 397.05 573.96
573.96 736.19
(i) The following is the movement in the lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lease liability Opening 736.19 834.91
Additions during the period % -
Finance cost accrued during the period 57.81 69.06
Lease payment (220.04) (167.78)
573.96 736.19

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases was 3249.30 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 (3227.42 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2021).

&
)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

29 Income tax

(1) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

(2 in Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current income tax 613.05 27.25
MAT credit entitlement (48.76) (27.25)
Deferred tax liability / (asset)

Origination and reversal of temy v ifi e 361.87 4657
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 363.87 46.57
Tax expense for the year 928.16 46.57
{b) Amouni recognised in other comprehengive income (X in Lakhs)

For the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended March 31, 2021

Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax  Tax (expense) benefit Net of tax
benefit
Re-measurement on defined benefit plins (36.72) 10.22 (26.50) (1.95) 0.54 (140
(36.72) 10,22 (26.50) (1.95) 0.54 (1.41
() Reconcilintion of effective tax rate (% in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Profit before tax 3,099.53 166.74
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate (Current year 29.12% and Previous Year 27.82%) 902.58 46.39
Tax effect of:
Changes in lax rales 12.05 -
Expenses nol deductible for lax purpose 19.96 0.18
Others (6.43) -
928.16 46.57
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following: T in Lakhs)
Balance as at Adjustment to Recognised in Recognised in OCI Balance as at
April 1, 2021 retained earnings Profit or loss during 2021-22 March 31, 2022
during 2021-22
(charge)/credit
Deferred (ax asset
Provision for doubtful receivables 69.92 - 53.95 - 123.87
Provision for gratuily 7.22 - 17.76 10.22 35.20
Provision for compensated absences 3041 - 5.58 - 35.99
Provision for slow moving and non moving inventory 6.86 - 1.36 - 8.22
On brough! forward loss 386.69 - (386.69) - -
Others §6.76 - (0.26) - 86.50
Total deferred tax asset 587.86 - (308.30) 10.22 289,78
Deferred tax liability
Excess of deprecialion on fixed assct under Income Tax Acl, 1961 over (845.69) - (55.57) - (901.26)
depreciation under Companies Act,
Total deferred tax liability (845.69) - (55.5T) - (901.26)
Minimum alternative tax asset 439.24 48.76 - 488.00
Deferred tax nsset/{Liability] (net) 181.41 - (315.11) 10.22 (123.48)
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30 Related party disclosures
(a) Details of related pariles

MNatare of relationship Name of related parties
isc having coatrol over the Company |Narayana H.mdlyullE Limited

Raketh Verma - Chiel Executive Officer
Asmit Pandya - Chief Financial Officer (till December 11, 2021)
Key Managemant Persanne]l (KMP) Pruicrjit Mandal - Chief Financial Officer (w.e . March 29, 2022)
Shwyta Priy - Company Secretary (w.e.f. Fehruary 4, 2022)
Lty

[ir. Emmaniel Rupest - Menaping Direetor gnd Gnaup CEO

Key Management Parsannel (KMP) of the Holding Viren Prasad Shetty. Whale Time [Hrector uad Group CO0

Company Kesavan Venugopalen. Chief Financial Officer (5l Sovember 12, 20217
Sandhyy Jsyuraman - Chiel Faanclal (MHlcer (w.e £ Becember 1, 201§

Srdbur §- Campany Seceetsry

Norsyans lnetingte for Advance! Reszerch Privace Limited (NJARPL)
Narzyana Hrudaynlnya Surgical Hospital Private Limited (NFISHPL)
Sarayama Hospitals Privalc Limited (NHPL)

Narayana Health Institutions Private Limited (NHIPL)

Marayama Cayman Holdings Lid (NCHL) (till March 31, 2021)
Marzyana Vaishno Devi Specialty Hospilals Private Limited (NVDSHPL)
Maniysni Holdings Private Limiled (NHDPL)

Healils City Cayman Islands (HCCI)

Marmyana |lealth North Americs LLC

NH Heajth Bangladesh Private Linited

Assinizte of Halding Company Trimeds Inifjs Frivate Limited

ity inder controlf joint contral of KMPVEME uf Namayinag Hrudiyalays Foaumdathen

Fellose subiadizrics

lag coenpadty sl their relatives Arusiyllis Heallheare Private Limited
(b) Transactlons with related party during year ended March 31, 2022 {Tin Lakhs)
Transactions Enterprise having contro] over the Fellaw subaldiaries Ausoclate of enterprise | Entity under coatrol/ Joint Key Mansgement Total
Company having controel control of KMP/KMP of Personnel (KMP)
Holdlng company and
thelr relatives
Purchave of medical ramuimables, drugs and surgiesl Idraments & Seovices
Narayana Hredavaloya Limjied i) £-) (- (-}
N 5 . - B .02 o]
Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited 1 ) (107.15) o
- - e <
Total
al ) (-1 (07,185 (]
Sale of medical conswmables, drugs and wrgheal Inaramenis & Servioes
39 2] ] p B B
Narsyana Hrudayalaya Limited (NHL) {9.68] 1-H (&) (& (i
Narayana Vaithna Devi Specialty Hospitsl Frivote H - < . - -
Elenited (NVIHPLY ()] (030} 18] [ 1 030
Narayana Hnidayniaya Surgical Hospitsf Private Limncd - 5 K E o =
INHISHIL () (0.59) (8] e ¢ (0.59)|
Total 18 - < ~ -1 335
f'!,i!u (0.85}] - (-] 11 (s

Relubarsemant af Expenses

[ 152 . I f 5.51
Narwyam Hradsylays Lamged (81713 11.98)| 1) [ {1 (B (LR

Purrhase of aniels

FED . 1 ] = ] 475
Margwaiu Hnadiyvalaya Limited (NHL) (435 1= 1=l (& -} (438
-l aiacty
Narayana lrudayslaya Limied (SHLY | :Ls}1| |-)| l-i[ t->| |-)l 12 553
Hent
N o - -] 142 61 142 61
Nanyana Hrudayalaya Foundation (NHF) I (_)l !-\‘ ) 140 74) {-;I {140.74)

Loan given
araans Nlriilayalaye Surgieal Horpital Privae Limitsg I :numJ ’I 1 [ 300.09]
NHSHPL) 1) 2 £ 1= i) ]

Narayasa Hrdayalaya Sargical Houital Private Liinfed -| 300,00 .[ -l -| 300,00
(NHSTIPLY =] i1 [ (-] 1) [
Interesl luceme

Mneyana Tinadayaliya Surgral Mospital Prvate Limited ] W1a| ] p ] 3
[NHSHPL) (8] {4 (=5 (0 -] (=)
Discount entitlement 15.06 - - - 15.06
‘Norayana Hrudayaloya Limited ) ) ) L ) A




Meridian Medical Research & Hospllal Limlted

Notes 10 the financlal statements for the year ended Muarch 31, 2022 (continued)

[Phscuum entitiement
Nariyana Hrudayalaya Foundation (NHF) i : N 800, I 40,00
i) 1=} - 166,001 [ 160,001
Sherf-terim emplayed benglin® T
Realkesh Vi . 4 1 | 3 4341
pavems - & L) ) 3871 iR
) - - - g 12.98] 12.9%
Al
mit Pandys (4 ()] ) () (8.23)) (823
Divi . - - - - - .
g 2 ) ) ) @5s2) @s2
Shweu Priy ' R - B (53] 43
6] 0] () 1) 0) J:I‘
. o .| ! o 1.97] 1.97]
Prasenjit Mandal
2 I8 i-) () ) ) 8
. o -] | - 139 7.39]
Hrishikesh V Murthy 4 o) © & 9.11) e 1)
| - R - 70.08, 70.08|
Total
S A £) £} £) (6057 000 ¢60.sT)
* The remurceation 1o KMP does nol include the provisions made fur gratuity and ceeperiasied absencer, us they wre obtafmed un an sctiaris! hasis for the Company as a whole.
Figures in brecket are for the previous year
c) The balances recelvable from and payable to related parties
(T Laklu)
Balsnces Enterprise having contral over the Fellow mubsldlaries Asgoclate of enlerprise | Entity under control/ Joint Key Msnagement Total
Company havlog control control of KMP/KMP of Personnel (KMP)
Holding company and
Trade payahles
I ——— = = 468 = 468
Amaryllis Heallhcare Private Limited . o) 1y (11 14 1) {1114
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (NHL) ik : . - . 4Ly
B ) () [2)
4.19] -i B o
Total
()] () £ £
Trade receivables
Narayana Vaishno Devi Spoeiairy |Tariial Friviee B 7 > z N =
Limited (NVDSHPL) (] 0.30) (5] 1) 1) (030,
s Hinsbsyalays Susgical Hovpital Private Limbal E - - ., - -
Iy (0] ﬂ‘i 5] {2 ) (0.59)
Total N - 7 h ] b
[€ (089) £ ) £) [0.89))
[Corparate guaranter tken
i 8,207.00 - - - - 8,20700
Narayanz Hrudayelays Limited y M
— s (8207001 &) | (=) (5] i+l 8.207.00)
Notes:

(a) No amounts in respect of related parties have been writien of/ back or provided for during the year.
(b) Reluted party relationships have been identified by the Management and relied upon by the auditors.
(c) The terms and eandilions of the transactions with related parties were no mare favourable than those available, or thase which might reasonably be expecied 1o be
available, in respect of similar wansactions with other than related entifics an sn arm's length basis

(d) Figures in brackets are for the previous year .
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

31 Earnings per share

Basic and diluted earning per share

(T in lakhs) except for share data

Particul For the year ended For the year ended
culars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit after tax 2,171.37 120.17
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic & diluted)
As at As at
Shares March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Total no. of shares outstanding 2,92,78,820 2,92,78,820
Effect of shares issued during the year - ~
Weighted average number of equity shares for the year 2,92,78,820 2,92,78,820
Basic and diluted Earning per share (%) 742 041

32 Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. Management

monitors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to total equity ratio.

For the purpose of debt to total equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Total equity comprise of issued share capital and all other equity reserves.

The capital structure is as follows:

(® in Lakhs)

Particulars el o
March 31, 2022 Maurch 31, 2021

Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 8,575.87 4,431.00
As a percentage of total capital 99% 70%
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 119.70 2.797.14
Total borrowings 119.70 2,797.14
As a percentage of total capital 1% 30%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 8,695.57 9,228.14




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

33 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance to a defined contributio
Company is required to contribute a specified pereentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit plan to fund the ben

The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident Fund and Emy

ending March 31, 2021 :  185.44 lakhs)

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates a post-cmployment defined benefit plan that provides gratuity. The

n retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. Under the plan, the

ployee State Insurance for the year ending March 31, 2022 aggregated to  208.38 lakhs (previous year

gratuity plan entitles an employec, who has rendered at least five years of continuous service, to

receive one-half month's salary for cach year of compleled service at the time of retirement/exit. The gratuity fund is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India.. The Company's
obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit
method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of other comprehensive income forming part of the statement profit and loss.

Bascd on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the d in the Company’s fi ial as at
balance sheet date;
(X in Lakhs)
Particulars 45 ] aslat
Murch 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit liability 309.70 256.74
Plan asscts 223.90 230.82
Net defined benefit liability B5.80 25.92
Liability for Compensated absences 123.60 109.30
Total employee bencfit liability 209.40 135.22
Non-current B5.80 25.92
Current 123.60 109.30

Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liability

The following table presents a reconciliation of the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components

i) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligations (T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 256.74 236.44
Current service cost 28.36 26.75
Interest cost 9.15 1027
Benefit payments from plan assets (22.64) =
Benelit payments directly by employer - (17.58)
Actuarial (gains) losses recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in demographic assumptions 244 {0.39)
-changes in fi ial plions (6.34) 22.84
-experience ndjustements 41.99 (21.59)
Defined benefit obligations at the end of the vear 309.70 256.74
i) Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets (T in Lakhs)
. As at As at
LT March 31, 2022 Mareh 31,2021
Plan assets at beginning of the year 230.82 188.99
Benefit refund (o be received by the company (4.44)
Contributions paid into the plan 4.17 3281
Expecled return on plan assets 10.18 10.11
Benefits paid (18.20) -
Acturial gain on plan asscts 1.37 (1.09)
Plan assets at the end of the year 223.90 130.82
Net defined benefit liability §5.80 2592
C. i Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the ycar ended
Murch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current service cost 2836 26.75
Interest cost 9.15 10.27
Interest income {10.18) {10.11)
1733 2691
ii) Remeasurements r ised in other pherensive income (T in Lakhs)
Parti For the year ended For the year ended
articulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligation 38.09 0.86
Acturiol gain on plan assets (1.37) 1.09
36.72 1.95

&
>
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Meridian Mecdical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

D. Plan Assets

Plan assets comprises of the following: _(Xin Lakhs)
- For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Government bonds 223.90 230.82

223.90 230.82

The nature of asscls allocation of plan assets is in government bond of high credit rating.

Defined Benefit obligations

i) Actuarial assumptions

The following are the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

— As at As at
Principal actuarial assumptions March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Attrition rate Up to Level 6 =38%, Up to Level 6 =44%, Level

Level 7 and above=46% 7 and above=22%
Discount rate 541% 441%
Expecled rate of return on plan assets 6.70% 6.70%
Mortality rate IALM (2012-14) Ulimate  IALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Future salary increases First year 7.90% First year 7.90%
Thereafter 6% Thereafier 6%
Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published stalistics and mortality tables.
The expecled contributions to the fund during the year ending 31 March 2023, will be approximately ¥35.35 lakhs
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
(X in Lakhs)
Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ist following ycar 120.61 98.44
2nd following year 78.52 62.41
3rd following year 5227 41.29
4th following year 36.17 26.96
5th following year 21.39 23.46
Year 6 to 10 35.15 25.90
More than 10 vears 4.00 5.11
ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the
amounis shown below.
Partlculars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2.74) 277 (2.94) 3.02
Future solary increases (0.5% movement) 272 2.72) 3.00 (2.94)
Attrition rate (0.5% movement) (0.36) 0.34 0.22) 021
Mortality rate (16)% movement) (0.01) (0.01) 0,00 (0.01)
Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash Nows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
34 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should mention in
their corresp with its cusl s the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocaled after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable
1o such cnlerprises as at 31 March 2022 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“The MSMED. Act’) is nol expected to
be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplicr.

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars Asiat Asjat

March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
The amounts remuining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year
-Principal 202,88 136.49
~Imierest 2.70 0.16
The nmount of interest paid by the buyer as per the MSMED Act - =
The amaunt of payments made to micro and small supplices beyond the appointed day during the accounling year; - =
The omount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act; = =
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 2.70 0.16

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest ducs as
nbove are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Act . .

L rl:, b_\ >



Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Noles ta the financtal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (confinued)

A% Fimaneisl inarruments: Fair valur wnd rik managemenn

A. Accounting classification and falr velues (o Lakhs)
Av st Mareh 11, 2022 FVTIL Avpmrtlyed i Votal
Finaneiel avven
Trade reccivables - 1,835.91 183591
Cash and cush equivalents . 29432 29432
Hank balarses oiber than abawr . 5243 24
Cithier financial guen . 30 s S30 04
- pETIN ] 151
Fimisniaf fakilities
Dorraw ings - 19.70 11970
Lease Jiabilities - 5§71.96 571.96
Trade payables . 3,001 61 2,091 61
Olier naneiel |Labilities - Ly B
- RN J.B48.04
FVTPL Amarthed coit Tolal
Trade receivables E 1,979.50 1,979.50
Cash and rash equivalents - 59296 59296
Hank balances arher tha sbime - 2778 2778
Dither finaneial ouists . 29 X129
= 2.881.43 2A81.63
Finameiad liwbilities
Borrowings - 2.797.14 2.797.14
Lease linbilities 73619 619
Trade payables . 2,808 2,8083)
Oher feencial lialilities . 40418 48413
- AT 6T

Mrssrement ol falr valies
The carrying value of all financial assets approximates the fair value; fair value of mutual funds are based on quoted price

B Fimancial ritk mamagement
The Company’s activilics expase it to & variety of financial risks: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk

(1) Ritk management framenork
The Companys risk management is carried vl by a central treasury depariment under policies approved by the Buard of Directurs The Board superviscs uverall risk management, as well as policies covering specific arcas, such as
forcign exchange risk. eredit risk and use of financial insruments

(1) Credi( rivk
Credit risk is the risk thal the counterparty will not meel its obligation under a financial insirument or customer contract, leading 1o financial less. The credit risk ariscs principally from ils operaling nctivilies (primarily imde
reccivables) and from it investing activilies, includiny depoaits with banks and financial inslitutions and olher financial instruments.

Credit risk 1» comrolled by umalying credit limiis und erednworthiness of customers on o continuous basis 1o whom credil has been granicd aficr obiaining necessary approvals for credit. The colleclion fiom the wade reccivables are
tapiritured wii 3 somtiitisens bath by the pecivables 1eam

The Contpany establishes an allowance for impairment thal represents its estimate of ¢xpected Jassen in respect of trade and other receivables based on the pasi and the recent collection irend. The maximum expasure fo credit risk as
ot reporting daie ix primarily (o trade receivabler nel of proviion for doubilul receisables amounling to 2 183591 Iakhs (31 March 2021: € |979,50 lakhsy. The movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade and cther
receivables during the year was us follows:

(¥ i Lakhs)
Allswaiee fur eredit less At al Asul
31 March 3022 31 March 202
Dipeming balanes 251.34 25348
et foas freverved) /. i 17408 3.1
Cjeilag halinss 4157 FLTET]
One Customers - Swasthyasathi 21 5% accounted for mare than 10% of Ihe revenue as of March 31,2022 and Two Customers - WBHS (13 64%) & Swasihyanathi (10.81%) accounted for more: than 10% of the revenue as of March

31,2021,

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalenin is limited as the Company generally (ransacts wilh banks and financial institutinns with high credil ratings assigned by international and domestic credil rating agencics.

(L) Liquldiry riek

Liquidiry risk is the risk that the Company wil) encounter difficulty in mecting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are senled by delivering cash or another financial ssset, The Campany’s approach to managing
hiquidity is 10 ensure, as far ar passible, that il will have sufficient liquidity 1o meet ils liabilitien wiven they are due, under both normal and sireased conditions, withoul incurring unacceplable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation

The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient 1o meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidiry risk is pereeived. In addition, the Company mainiains line of credils as stted in Note 14,

The tabde bubew providis detsify reparding t undiseounsed contractud insturitios of sigabiicin| Gndncal lkshilithen 20 01 3] March 2023: it In Lukiay
Farticilars Lews than | year 1-2yrary 3-8 yrare mare than § years Total
Borrowings EaL L 3129 L1 8 - 1970
Leiae lalrithibes 176 91 176 92 2970 19043 57396
Trade payables 3.m161 - - - 3.09161
(iher financial fishilities nm - - - L]
Tutal 138415 0986 RLS1 190.4% R L)
Thee tahile balow peovldes detidly eeganding fhur sirdbscomibed et acrual maturitics of vignifizant financzal Biablities = of 31 March 2021 1% I Lakha)
Particider Lews thae | yrar 1-2veara 15 yrary mary than § yesrs Tetal
Harpmwiegs 63524 697.94 [RE1E1Y 2 i 279714
et Yiahrtithen 16223 176.90 195 87 201 19 T16.19
Traibe payahles 2,808.33 5 - E 2,808 33
Daber financial habuizes 4513 - - 45413

Tatal 419943 T84 163513 12884 683570




Meridinn Medical Revearch & Hospital Limited

Notes 1o the finuncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

(v} Market risk

Markel risk is the risk that the fsir valuc of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices, such as forcign exchange rates and interest rtcs

Cash fiow and falr value interest rate riak

The Company’s main interest rale risk azises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which cxpose the Company 1o cush flow interest rale risk

() Interest rate rigk expasure

‘The expasure of the Company's borrawing 1o interest rate changes at the end of Ihe reparting period with respect to long term borrowings with variable inlercst rates fram banks are as follows:

(¥ 1n Lakin)
Avat Anal
Fatichiy 31 Murch T2 31 Murch 2831
Variahlc £aiz lomy jerm Gamowings imcluding curren manetes 11971 ESTHATY
Total borremings 119.78 1904
(b} Semaltivity ¥l Lakl)
Impect op prefit ar Jos Tempact on other
Fartieatary eumpaients of equlty
Avm Asmt An st As sl
31 Mareh 2022 31 Mareh 2031 AT Mareh J122 31 March 7021
Bermitivity
1% inereuse i ase tnie (120) (27.97) (1.20) 27.97)
1% discresae | base rate 120 2797 120 2797
The Iinierest Lk semfibvity i hasel on the chming halance of seourvd ferm loand Brien basks.
3§ Finuneial Rutipy
Ratls Aethoial: For lhie year ended  For the yrar ended
i March 31. 2023 Mavih 3t qgny___ Verinice
a) Curreni Ratio Clrretsl aisets vver purrend iohiliie 065 4% S0
b) Debi-Equity Ratio ' Debi over toul shareholders’ equity 00l 043 96.79%
©) Debt Service Covera Ravio * Eaming available for debt service over debi serviee 10.28 049 2014.45%
d) Relum on Equily Ralio %’ PAT orer lotal average equily 28.94% 349% 72030%
©) Trade Recervable urnover Ratio * Credit Revenue fram operations over averge trade receivables 621 an 31.M4%
0 Trade pavables tumover ratio Toial purchases over average irade pavables 217 1.96 10.95%
W N sapital itemver bl * Revenue fram opcrations ever working canital -1581 -10.46 SL%
h) Net profit rania * Nel profit gver revenue from upcralions 9.26% 0.70% 1218,70%
i) Return on canital eminloved * IR sver eapital errimievesd 1774% 5.19% 626, 98%
242) 219 4.99%

i) Inventory wmover ralio

Cuwl uf goods sold over average inventory

Notes

EBIT - Eamings before interest and taxes

PBIT - Profit before interest and taxcs including other income

EBITDA - Eamings before inferest, Laxcs, depreciation and amartisation
PAT - Profit afier laxes

Debt includes current and noa-current lease liabilities

Capital employed refers 1o olal sharcholders' equily and debi,

Explanation for variances exceeding 25%:
! Improvement in Debt cquiy ratio and Debi aervice coverage ratio is due 1o repayment of Term loans

? Improvement in Return on equity is due 1o improved operational profits

* Improvement in Trade receivables lumover ratio is due 10 efficient collections

4 Net capital tumover ratio, Net profit ratio, Relurn on capital employcd percentage has improved due 1o operational eMiciencics

37 Other Ststutory Information
(i) There are no balance oultanding on account of any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act 1956

(i) The Cumpany do not have any Capital-work-in progress or intangible asscts under development whuse completion is overduc or has exceeded ils cost cumpared tv its original plan

(iiii} The Company has not advanced or loancd or inveated funds lo any other personis) or entityties) including fareign entities (i diarics) with the unds ling that i diary shall:
(n) Directly far indirectly lend or invest in other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by ar an behall of the company (Ullimate beneficiaries) or
(b) Provide any guaraniee, security or the like to or on behallof the Ultimate beneficiarics

(iv) The Company have nol received any fund from any persan(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities (Funding party) with the undersianding (whether recorded in writing of otherwisc) that
(a) Dircctly for indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enlities idemified in any manner whatsocver by or on behalf of the company (Ullimaie beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guaranice. security or the like 10 or on behalf ol the Ullimate beneficiaries

ded incomie that were Jered or disclased as income in the 1ax asscssments wider the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year

(v) The Company doesnt have any relating ta

(vi) I'he Company do not have any charges o xalisfaction which ie y1 10 be registered with ROC beyond (he sutulory periad

I8 Code on Social Security 2020
The Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) has been enacied, which would impact the contributions hy the Cempany towards Provident Fund and Gratuity, The cffective date from which the changes are spplicable is yet ta be
notificd The Ministry of Lahour and Employment (the Ministry) has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020, The Company will complete its evaluation nnd will give jale impact in its standslone financia)
resulls in the peviod in which the Code becomes efectise and the related rules are published

39 The Company has cunsidered the possible impact of known cvenls arising froen CONIR 19 pundemie snd continses o acy|vely mansge i Tnisea, bt g 1k g sarivey firitiathees b optlatise sunts gl meet it fmancial
commilments. The Company as of the reporting dale does not expect any long tezm adverse impat of COVIDNIY st fua alsifity T recver thie camyireg valae of fu current sssets amd rent niacts inclmding trade receivables,
property, plant and equipment and meeting its financial obligatians

Tior it wnt bl o e Taard of Dicectury of
Mrridian Medles] Rernrch & Hoapltal Limited
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MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 28" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of Meridian Medical
Research & Hospital Ltd. will be held on Friday, 4" August 2023, at 10:40 A.M., at Conference Hall of
Narayana Super speciality Hospital 120/1, Andul Road, Howrah-711103, to transact the following
businesses:

A.
1.

Ordinary Business:

To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31% March 2023 together with the reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon.

The members are requested to consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31°* March 2023 including the audited Balance Sheet, statement of Profit & Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement along with notes thereon, and the Auditors’ Report and Report of the Board of Directors
thereon along with all annexures, as issued to the Members pursuant to Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013, be and are hereby received, considered and adopted.”

To elect a Director in place of Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty (DIN: 02144586), who retires by rotation and
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

The members are requested to consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Viren
Prasad Shetty (DIN: 02144586), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered
himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire
by rotation.”

Special Business:

To ratify remuneration payable to M/s. PSV & Associates as the Cost Auditors of the Company for
the Financial Year 2023-24.

The members are requested to consider and pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all the other applicable provisions,
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), the Members
hereby approve and ratify the remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000 (Rupees One Lakhs Only) per annum
excluding out of pocket expenses and applicable taxes payable to M/s. PSV & Associates, Cost
Accountants, Bengaluru (Firm Registration Number 000304) who are appointed by the Board of
Directors of the company on recommendation of Audit Committee of the Company, as Cost Auditors
to conduct the audit of cost records for the financial year 2023-24.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or the Chief Financial Officer or
the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things
as may be required, necessary, expedient or incidental to give effect to the above resolution.”




MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd.

Sd/-
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert

Date: 19.05.2023 Director
Place: Bengaluru (DIN: 07010883)




MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440

Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

BOARD’S REPORT

To the Members,

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present the Twenty Eighth (28") Annual Report of your
Company together with the audited financial statement of your Company for the financial year ended,
31 March 2023. The Board would also like to take this opportunity to inform you about the performance

of the Company over the past twelve months.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/ HIGHLIGHTS OR RESULT OF OPERATIONS:

The summarized financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as under:

(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 26,487.52 23,457.23
Other Income 303.60 109.22
Total Income 26,791.12 23,566.45
Expenses before finance costs, depreciation and amortization 20,407.46 19,101.95
Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and amortization 6,383.66 4,464.50
and tax

Finance Cost 51.64 228.97
Depreciation & Amortization expense 1,171.81 1,136.00
Profit / (Loss) Before tax 5,160.21 3,099.53
Tax expense 1,507.39 928.16
Profit/Loss for the year After Tax 3,652.82 2,171.37
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,619.90 2,144.87
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 12.48 7.42

*Face Value Rs. 10 per share.

2. PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

e During the year under review, the total income of the Company increased from Rs. 23,566.45 lakhs

in FY 2021-22 to Rs. 26,791.12 lakhs in FY 2022-23.

e Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and amortization and tax increased from Rs. 4,464.50

lakhs in FY 2021-22 to Rs. 6,383.66 lakhs in FY 2022-23.

e Profit for the year increased from Rs. 2,171.37 lakhs in FY 2021-22 to Rs. 3,652.83 lakhs in

FY 2022-23.

3. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

Your company continued its focus on Quality Parameters, Patient care and Welfare services resulting

in significant improvement in patient satisfaction levels.

The Management has used the principles of prudence in developing estimates, assumptions, exercising
judgements and performing sensitivity analysis. Your Company continues to place greater emphasis
on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, responsibility and accountability. Your Company
continues to strive hard to serve the interest of the stakeholders and society at large, resulting in

creation of value and wealth for all stakeholders at all times.

10




MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

For the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the Company has transferred Rs. 3,652.82 lakhs to
Reserves.

5. DIVIDEND:

The Board of directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year under review with a
view to retain the earnings for meeting the operational and capex requirements of the company.

6._.AUDITORS:

a.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP (Firm Registration Number 117366W/W-100018), Chartered
Accountants, Bengaluru are the statutory auditors of the company who were re-appointed for the
second term at the 27" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 29" August, 2022 for a period
of 5 years.

Auditors’ Report for Financial Year 2022-23
The Auditors’ have issued an unmodified Report for the year ended 31 March 2023 and hence, do not
call for any comments from the Management under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COST AUDITOR:

In accordance with Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Board has approved the appointment of M/s. PSV & Associates, Cost Accountants having Firm
Registration Number 000304, as the Cost Auditor of the Company to audit the cost records for the
financial year 2023-24 and submit a report to the Board of Directors, at a remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000
(Rupees One Lakhs Only) per annum excluding all applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses to be
incurred, if any, in connection with the cost audit.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes the ratification of remuneration of M/s. PSV &
Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company, for financial year 2023-24 at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting.

. DISCLOSURE AS TO MAINTENANCE OF COST AUDIT RECORDS:

The Company is required to maintain the cost records as specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules made thereunder and accordingly such accounts
and records are made and maintained.

. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THIS REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements
relate and date of the report.
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15.

MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

During the year under review, there has been no such significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in
future.

HOLDING COMPANY:

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited is the Holding Company of the Company as on date of this Report.

SHARE CAPITAL:
As on 31° March 2023, the Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs. 35,00,00,000 divided into
3,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as on 31" March 2023, stands at
Rs. 29,27,88,200 divided into 2,92,78,820 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued or allotted any shares.

Further, the Company during the year under review has not issued any equity shares with differential
rights/sweat equity shares under Rule 4 & Rule 8 of The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014. Also, the Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme and hence no
equity shares have been issued or allotted under Employee Stock Option Scheme in terms of Rule —
12 of The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of every director,
Board was carried out by the Nomination & Remuneration committee. The Chairman of the
respective committees reviewed the performance of the respective committee. The performance
evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a whole, Committees thereof was also carried
out by the Independent Directors. Evaluation of Independent Directors was carried out by the entire
Board of Directors, excluding the Director being evaluated.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

A declaration of independence in compliance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, has
been taken on record from all the Independent Directors of the Company.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

12
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17.

MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
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The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy and the activities of the company are
accordingly reviewed. The Risk Management Policy, inter alia, includes identification therein of
elements of risk, including those which in the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the
Company and includes to assist the Board of Directors in meeting its responsibility of oversight on
identification, evaluation, mitigation and resolution of strategic, operational, financial, reputational
and compliance risks.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Company has been following well laid down policy on Appointment and Remuneration of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management personnel.

DETAILS OF MEETINGS:

During the year, 5 Board Meetings, 5 Audit Committee meetings and 2 Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings were held. The details are as follows:

Sl. | Name of the Director No. of | No. of meetings | Date of meeting
No. meetings attended during the | attended
held during | year
the year
Board Meeting
1. Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty 5 5
2. | Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty 5 5 20.05.2022
08.08.2022
3. Mr. B.N Subramanya 5 5 09.11.2022
08.02.2023
4, Mr. Muthuraman B 5 5 29.03.2023
5. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 5 5

Audit Committee

1. | Mr. B N Subramanya 5 5 20.05.2022
08.08.2022
2. Mr. Muthuraman B 5 5 09.11.2022
3 o E R : c 5 08.02.2023
. r. Emmanuel Ruper 29.03.2023
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
1. Mr. Muthuraman B 2 2
20.05.2022
2. | Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 2 2 08.08.2022
3. Mr. B N Subramanya 2 2

18. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company does not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed. Therefore, it is not applicable.

13




19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109
Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, provided guarantees or made
investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANIES/BODY CORPORATES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE SUBSIDIARY, JOINT
VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THIS FINANCIAL YEAR:

There is no Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company for the Company. Hence, there are no
Companies/Body corporates which have become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture or
Associate Companies during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors would like to state that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss
of the Company for that period under review;

c¢) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

As per the provisions of the Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, a company meeting the specified
criteria shall spend at least 2% of its average net profits for three immediately preceding financial
years towards CSR activities. Your Company has during the Financial Year 2022-23, spent Rs. 40.33
Lakhs towards Project Kiran as a CSR activity.

The CSR Report as notified in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Amendment
Rules, 2022 dated September 20, 2022, is attached as Annexure -A to this report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

During the year, all the related party transactions entered were on an arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business and the Company has taken necessary approvals as and when
required as per the Companies Act, 2013. Suitable disclosures as required under IND AS 24 have been
made in the notes to the financial statements.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure - B as per
the prescribed Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of the Board’s Report.
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OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE RULES:

In order to prevent sexual harassment of women at work place a new act The Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 has been notified on
9th December 2013. Under the said Act every company is required to set up an Internal Complaints
Committee to look into complaints relating to sexual harassment at workplace of any women
employee.

As per the requirement of The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
& Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rules made thereunder, your Company has constituted Internal
Complaints Committees (ICC) for dealing with the complaints, if any, relating to sexual harassment
of women at workplace. During the year the Company has not received any complaint of harassment.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNELS AND CHANGES
THEREOF:

DIRECTORS AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT AND CHANGES DURING THE YEAR
1) Mr. Muthuraman Balasubramanian — Independent Director
2) Dr. Emmanuel Rupert — Non-Executive Director
3) Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty — Non-Executive Director
4) Mr. B N Subramanya — Independent Director
5) Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty — Non-Executive Director

Directors resigned during the year —
During the year under review, none of the Directors have resigned.

Directors appointed during the year —
During the year under review, no new directors have been appointed.

Director seeking re-appointment —
Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty (DIN: 02144586), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and offers himself to be eligible for re-appointment.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT AND CHANGES DURING THE
YEAR

1) Mr. Rakesh Verma - Chief Executive Officer

2) Ms. Shweta Priy — Company Secretary (Resigned w.e.f. 14™" June 2022)

3) Ms. Poonam Barsaiyan — Company Secretary (Appointed w.e.f. 8™ August 2022)

4) Mr. Prosenjit Mondal — Chief Financial Officer
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. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo
are as follows:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Sl. PARTICULARS
No.

1 The steps taken or impact on | The Company is conscious towards conservation
conservation of energy of energy and measures implemented through

2 The steps taken by the Company for | previous energy audits.
utilizing alternate sources of energy
Optimization of secondary pump VFD frequency,
optimization of AHUs’ VFD  Frequency,
Replacement of conventional light fittings with
energy efficient LED fittings at Narayana Super
Speciality Hospital, Howrah. And Replaced 80%
light with LED Light.

Planned to Replacement of Existing old inefficient
Chiller with Energy Efficient Chiller and reduce
annual Energy consumption by 10% to 15% of
Energy Consumption in FY 2023-24. Also Planned
to Replace Old and inefficient cooling tower with
energy efficient cooling tower.

3 The capital investment on energy |Projected Capital investment will be around

conservation equipments; Rs. 3 Cr.
B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Sl. PARTICULARS
No.
1 The efforts made towards technology | Adopted life cycle cost assessment and
absorption. replacement of R22 refrigerant chiller with R135a

Screw compressor with VFD.

2 The benefits derived like product | NA
improvement, cost reduction, product
development or import substitution.

3 In case of imported technology | NA

(imported during the last three years

reckoned from the beginning of the

financial year:

(a) The details of technology imported;

(b) The year of import;

(c) Whether the technology been fully
absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where
absorption has not taken place, and
the reasons thereof; and
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4 The expenditure incurred on Research | Nil
and Development
C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Sl. PARTICULARS 2022-23 (Amount in USD)
No.
1 The Foreign Exchange earned in terms | USD 1,65,470
of actual inflows during the year
2 The Foreign Exchange outgo during | USD 25,74,238
the year in terms of actual outflows

28. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

During the year, your Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

29. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

During the year under review, there have been no instances of fraud reported by the Auditors under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

30. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation were observed.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

It is our strong belief that caring for our business constituents has ensured our success in the past and
will do so in future. The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and assistance provided
to your Company by its bankers, financial institutions, and the government. Your Directors thank the
vendors and other business associates for their continued support in the Company’s growth and your
company shall continue to strive to provide the best treatment for the patients. The Board also takes
this opportunity to express its deep gratitude for the continued co-operation and support received
from its valued shareholders.

Place: Bengaluru

Date: 19" May 2023

DIN: 07010883

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/- Sd/-

Director Director

Viren Prasad Shetty

DIN: 02144586
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Annexure - A
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.
Brief outline of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd. CSR Policy (MMRHL CSR):

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd. aims to make a positive difference in the lives of the

people by engaging in activities that eliminates or alleviates pain and suffering to the under privileged

sections of the society by:

e  Promoting healthcare facilities for the upliftment of people at large and creating a positive
impact by addressing issues of accessibility and affordability.

e  Promoting educational facilities to help and assist in unfolding the creative potentials and talents
of the children and amateurs.

e  Strive for socio-economic development thereby reducing inequality between rich and poor.

1.1 Overview of projects/programs undertaken during the financial year 2022-23
Project Kiran

This program was started in 2016 for providing trained paramedical and support staff to Howrah
City Police who provide free accidental road trauma care ambulance services in Howrah.

This program is a joint initiative between Howrah City Police and Howrah Development Trust
with Narayana Super specialty Hospital (Unit of MMRHL) as a medical partner.

COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, companies having a net
worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or more or a
net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial year shall
constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or more
directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.

Further, pursuant to Section 135 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 where the amount to be spent by a
company under sub-section (5) does not exceed fifty lakh rupees, the requirement under sub-section
(1) for constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee shall not be applicable and the
functions of such Committee provided under this section shall, in such cases, be discharged by the
Board of Directors of such company.

Accordingly, as the CSR expenditure for the FY 2022-23 was Rs. 40.33 Lakhs, hence, the Company was
not required to constitute the CSR Committee and the functions of such Committee was discharged
by the Board of Directors of such company.

Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board
are disclosed on the website of the company.

CSR Committee
CSR Policy The Company has no website.

CSR Projects
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4. Details of the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

The Company does not meet the criteria in terms of Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Corporate Social
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and hence impact assessment is not applicable. However, the
Board reviews the progress of various CSR projects undertaken by the Company and its impacts
in terms of beneficiaries covered and the outcome of the programs.

5. a. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 19,13,77,383
b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 38,27,548

c. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years.: Nil

d. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 38,27,548

a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing Project):
Rs. 40,33,271

b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 40,33,271

e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the Total Amount | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial Year. transferred to Unspent | under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(in Rs.) CSR Account as per | section 135(5)
section 135(6)
Amount Date of Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer

Rs. 40,33,271 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f. Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)
(1) (2) (3)
(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 38,27,548
section 135(5)
(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 40,33,271
(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,05,723
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(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or Nil
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 2,05,723
[(iii)-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
SI. | Preceding | Amount Balance Amount | Amount transferred | Amount Deficiency
No. Financial | transferred | Amountin | Spentin | toa remaining | , if
Year(s) to Unspent | Unspent the Fund as specified to be spent | any

CSR Account| CSR Financial | under Schedule VII in

under Account Year as per second succeeding

subsection | under (in proviso to Financial

(6) of subsection | Rs.) subsection (5) of Years

section 135 | (6) of section 135, if any (inRs.)

(in Rs.) section 135

(inRs.) Amount | Date of
(inRs.) | Transfer

1 |Fy1
2 | FY-2 NA
3 | Fy3

8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit
as per section 135(5):

The Company has spent on CSR activities to the extent of the prescribed limit under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Viren Prasad Shetty
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
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Annexure: B
FORM NO. AOC-2

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014]

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under the third proviso thereto.
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:

receipt of services relating to
hospital related goods and

Rs. 1,06,14,860.

SI. | Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the contracts | Date(s) of | Amount
No. | relationship contract/arrangements/ contracts or arrangements or | approval by the | paid as
transactions /arrangements/ transactions including the | Board advance
transactions value, if any s, if any
1. Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (NHL) Purchase relating to hospital | Ongoing Value of the transaction is | 29t March 2022 | Nil
NHL holds 99.13% of shares in the Company. related goods and services Rs. 2,20,61,963.
Sale relating to hospital related | Ongoing Value of the transaction is | 29% March 2022 | Nil
goods and services Rs. 64,02,871.
Purchase of Fixed asset/ | Ongoing Value of the transaction is | 29% March 2022 | Nil
equipment for entire group Rs. 7,52,624.
Sale of Fixed asset/ equipment for | Ongoing Value of the transaction is | 29t March 2022 | Nil
entire group Rs. 39,38,388.
Reimbursement of expenses (Net) | Ongoing Value of the transaction is Rs. | 29t March 2022 | Nil
& Other Contingencies 18,89,977.
2. Narayana Hrudayalaya Foundations (NHF), | Equipment Rent Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 29t March 2022 | Nil
Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty, Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty and Rs. 1,42,60,644.
Mrs. Shakuntala Shetty, Relative (Wife of Dr. Devi
Prasad Shetty) are trustees in this Trust.
3. Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited Sale/purchase and provision and | Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 29t March 2022 | Nil
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Sl. Name(s) of the related party and nature of | Nature of | Duration of the | Salient terms of the contracts | Date(s) of | Amount
No. | relationship contract/arrangements/ contracts or arrangements or | approval by the | paid as
transactions /arrangements/ transactions including the | Board advance
transactions value, if any s, if any
Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty, Son (relative of Dr. Devi | services and
Prasad Shetty) is a Director & Member in Amaryllis | Reimbursement of expenses (Net)
Healthcare Private Limited. & Other Contingencies
4. Biocon Biologics Limited Sale/purchase and provision and | Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 29t March 2022 | Nil
Dr. Kiran Mazumdar Shaw, Director of the Holding | receipt of services relating to Rs. 1,78,90,487.
Company is Director of this Company hospital related goods and
services and
Reimbursement of expenses (Net)
& Other Contingencies
5. Asia Heart Foundation Building Rent to be received from | Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 29t March 2022 | Nil
Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty, Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty and | AHF by MMRHL Rs. 14,86,800.
Mrs. Shakuntala Shetty, Relative (Wife of Dr. Devi
Prasad Shetty) are trustees in this Trust.
6. Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Research | Reimbursement of Ongoing Value of the transaction is for | 08™ August 2022 | Nil
Centre Unit operated by Narayana Hrudayalaya | expenses Rs. 10,148.
Surgical Hospital Private Limited - Fellow
Subsidiary Company
Note: Appropriate approvals have been taken for the above related party transactions
For Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd.
Sd/- Sd/-
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Viren Prasad Shetty
Director Director

Place: Bengaluru DIN: 07010883 DIN: 02144586

Date: 19 May 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Repaort on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital
Limited (“the Campany”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statemant
of Profit and Loss fincluding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and ather explanatery information{hereinafter referred ta as “the financial staterments”}.

In our opinion and tg the best of our information and according ta the explanations given to us, the
aferesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounking
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounking
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {"Ind AS") and other accounting principles genarally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive
incame, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs)
spacified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements sectien of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by the Instituke of
rharterad Accountants af India {ICAI tagetner with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other sthical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements and the [CAT's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for cur audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Therean

« The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other infarmation. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
staterments, and gur auditor's report thereon,

» Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informaticn and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

«  In connection with our audit of the financial staterments, our respeonsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing sa, consider whethar the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements ar our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
gtherwise appears ta be materially misstated,

o If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thare is & material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is respansible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, finangial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accerdance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintanance of adeguate accounting
racords in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view
and are fres fram material misstatement, whether dug ta fraud or errar,

In preparing the financial statements, management is respansiole for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, dis¢losing, as applicable, matters related ko going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liguidate the
Company ar to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for gverseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

auditar's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whola are free from material misstatement, whether due ta fraud or errar, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit cenducted in accordance with Shs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasunably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exarcise professional judgment and mainkain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of matarial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien. The risk of
not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fram
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional gmissions, misrepresentations, or the
gverride of internal control.

«  Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the aperating effectiveness
of such controls.
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+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accaunting pelicies used and the reasonablaness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accaunting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ta
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going cancern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's repert to the relaked disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclasures are inadeguate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
avidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Howaver, future evants or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going cancern.

« Evaluate the oversll presentation, structure and content of the firancial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underiving transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial skatements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the ecanamic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We cansider quantitative materiality and gualitative factors
in (i1 planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among ather matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal contral that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
ralevant cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and ather matters that may reasonably be thought te bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As reguired by Section 143(3} of the Act, based an our audit we report that:

a} We have sought and abtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

B) In our opinion, praper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprenensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
Repart are in agreement with the relevant books of account,

d)} In our opinion, the aforesaid financial staterments comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act,

&) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, nenc of the directors is dizqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms af Section 164({2} of the Act.
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f)

g}

nj

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
staterments of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure A", Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.

With respact to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
rhe requirements of Section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinian and to the best
of our infgrmation and according ta the explanations given te us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year March 31, 2073 and hence reporting under
Section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companics {Audit and Auditars) Rules, 2014, a5 amended in our opinion and
ta the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its finandial
paosition,

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative cantracts for
which there were any material foresecable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

i, ta} The Management has represented that, to the bast of it's knowledge and bealief,
as disclosed in the note 37{iii} to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested {gither from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds} by the Company tc or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities {"[ntermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
i any manner whatsaever by ar on behalf of the Company {"“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantes, security ar the like on behalf of the
Uitimate Beneficiarias,

{b) The Management has represented, that, to the besgt of it's knowledge and belief,
as disciosed in the nate 37{iv} to the financial statements, no funds have been
received by the Company from any persans or enbities, including fareign
entities{"Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or ifvest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party {"Ultimate Beneficiaries"} or provide any guarantee,
cerurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefictaries.
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fc} Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to cur notice that has
caused us to belisve that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (i) of
Rule 11{e), as provided under {a} amd {b} above, coptain any material
misstaterment.
V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

wi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining bodks
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit krail
{edit log} facility is applicable to the Company w.e f April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11{g} of Campanies [Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31,2023,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {(“the Qrder”} issued by the Central
Govarnment in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure BE* a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELQITTE HASKINS & SELLS LL®
Chartered Accouittants
{Firm's Registration Ng. 117366W/W - 100318}

b b WA

Manisha Parikh

Flace — Bengaluru Fartner
Date - May 19, 2023 {Membership No. 47840)
MP/EKP/SM/BA2023 LDIN: 23047840BGUCKPESY1
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ANMEXURE “A™ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Regquirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

we have audited the internal financial centrols with reference to financial statements of Meridian
Medical Research & Hospital Limited {"the Company”™} as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with
aur audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
canteols with refarence to financial statements based on the internal rontrol with reference ta
fimancial statements eriteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Owver Financial
Feparting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Thesc responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial ¢ontrols that were
aperating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial infermation, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's interna! financial cantrols with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
“Guidance Nate™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants af India and the Standards an
Auditing prescribed under Sechion 143({10) of the Companics Bect, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Mote require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
ta ohtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
maternial respects.

Cur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial contrals with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal Anancial controls with refercnce ta financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and cperating effectiveness
of internal central based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belisve that the audit evidance we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with refergnce to financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference 1o financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purpeses in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control with reference ta financial statements  includes
those policies and progedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable

Y
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detail, accurately and fairly reflact the transactions and dispasitions of the assets of the company;
{2) pravide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and {3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrals with reference to financial statements

Because of e inherent limikations of intemal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to futura
periods are subject to the nsk that the internal financial centrol with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ar that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinian

1n aur opinion, te the best of our information and according ta the explanations given to us , the
Company has, in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial contrals with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial contral with
reference to financial statements established by the respective Company cansidering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLFP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

}—{‘J«‘H*L\J\_/

Manisha Parikh

Plare: Bangalury Fartner
Date: May 19, 2023 {Mermbership Mo, 47840
MP/EKP/SM/BAS 2023 UDIN; 230472408GLCKPEST1

Page 7ol 11



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

ANNEXURE B" TD THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT

{Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requilrements’
saction of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations seught by us and given by the Company, and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and bellef, we state that -

(i)

(1)

(i)

(1}

(i)

(ii)

()

{b)

(c)

()
(e)

{a)

(b)

(A}

{B)

The Company has maintained preper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Praperty, Plant and Equipment, capital work
in progress and right of use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Campany has a pregram of verification aof property, plant and equipment to
cover all the items in a phased manner over a period of 3 years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain property, plant and equipment
were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
infarmation and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

Based on examlnation of the reqistered conveyance deed, provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds of all the immovable properties, disclosed in the
financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the
name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. In respect of immovable
properties of lang that has been taken on lease and disclosed as right of use
assets in the financial statements, the lease agreements are in the name of the
Campany, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment, Right
of Use Assets and intangible assets during the year,

Mo praceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31,2023 for hoiding any benami praperty under the
Bemami Transactions {Prohibition] Act, 1288 {as amended in 2016} and rules
made thereunder, and hence reperting under clause 3(ij(e) of the Order is not
applicatle,

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Managemeant at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when campared with books af account,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at
pownts of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions en the basis
of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the informatian and
axplanation given to us, the quarterly statemnents comprising (stack statements
and book debt statemants) filed by the Company with such banks or financial
institution are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company
of the respect
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(i}

(iv)

{v}

(wi}

{vii)

{wii}

{viii)

(ix]
{ix]
{ix}

{a}

{b)

{a)
(b}

{c)
(d)

(e)
(A

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantze or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of lgans, secured, ar
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any ather
parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii} of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of logns granted, investments made and
guarantees and securities pravided, as applicable.

The Campany has nat accepted any deposit dunng the year nor has any
unclaimed depesits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any ather relevant
provisicns of the Act. Hence reporting under clavse 3(v) of the Order is not
applicatle to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 14Bf1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respact of services rendered.
Wa have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Caompany
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended,
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Campanies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima
facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, hgwever, not made & detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duby of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable ta the Company have been regularly deppsitad
with the appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amaounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Emplayees’ State Insurance, [ncome Tax, duty of Custams, cess
and other material statutary dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period
of more than six menths from the date they became payable,

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which hava not
been deposited on account of disputes as on March 31,2023,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrenderad or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1561 (43 of 1961} during the year.

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of barrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon during the year.

The Company has naot been declared wilful defaulter by any kank, financial
institution or gther lender,

The Company has not taken any term loans during the year and there are no
unutilised term inans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause {ix}{c) of the Grder is not applicabla.

The Company has not raised funds on shart-term basis and hence, reporting
under clause {ix}(d) of the Qrder is not applicable to the Company.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joink venture during
the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix}{e} of the Order is not applicable.
The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge and hence
reperting under clause (ix}{f} of the Order is not applicable.
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{x]

(%)

{xi)

(i)

(xi}

(i)

{xidi}

{xiv}

{xv}

{xvi)

{awi}

[xwii]

(xviiiy

(a)

{b)

{a)
(B

(<)

(a)

(b}

{a}
(b}
(el
(d}

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3{x}{a) of the Qrder is not applicable.

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (Fully or partly or gptionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our knowledge, na fraud by the Company and no material fraud
an the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143
of the Act has been filed In Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rute 13 of Campanies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and up to the date of this repart,

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of
the Order is not applicable,

The Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicabile, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an interpal audit system commensurate with the szize and
nature of its businass.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period up to December 2022 and the final af the internal
audit repart issued after the balance sheet date covering the period frem January
2023 to March 2023 for the period under audit.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors, or directors of the company, subsidiary companies,
associate companies or persons connected with such directars and hence
provisions of Sectian 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserva
Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clauses 3{xvi}{a), (b}, and{ch
af the Order is nat applicable.,

The Group does ngt have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting
under clause [xvil{d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred ¢ash losses during the financial year coverad by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the wear.
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{xix]

{xx)

Place:-Bengalury
Date :- May 19, 2023
MP/EKR/SM/BAS2023

On the basis of the financizl ratios, ageing and expected dates of realizatian of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other informatian
accompanying the financial statements and our knawledge of the Beard of
Directors and Management plans and based on cur examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
tg believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Compary is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance shest date. We, hawever, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that aur reporting is based
gn the facts up te the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, wil get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amaunt towards Corporate Sacial
Responsibility {CSR} and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or specal
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx} of the Order is nat applicable
for the year.

For PELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration Na. 117366W/W-100018})

Monisha Parikh

Fartner

{Membership No. 47840)
UDIM:- 2304 7840BGUCKPE57 1
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Meridinn Mediral Reyeacch & Ewipidal Limiced
Palance sheet

CIM - LRS] TOW D9SN L0714
[T an Lahb)

Frrticulars e o s at Axut
Mlarch 31,2023 March 31, 2kl
ASRETS
M Current 5565
Froperty., plant and equipmenl d 11,195,534 552583
Capieal work-in-progress 4 140895 24365
Iiight of use assels 5 d0B K5 FB.]
Fioiancial assers
{1 Enker Bioancizl asdes L1EY] 20L.45 155 2%
kb siL-CwTEm Agess Tia) 1032 55 123052
Total tinl-CUFREnL assels 14,245.14 10, 758.1
Current gssefs
Imvenlaoges -1 13047 A5 A
Finursial wssels
11 Teade ropevable 2 2,026 54 13591
{1 Cagh and cash equivalees LU 7487 LI
() Bank badanges ueher than ¢ic) abave 1 260251 144
{iv]) Qther fenancoal ass=ls Tk 3 14535 130,77
Ither curment issels oy 3] 144,27 173040
Taotal cureent wasels 4,005.21 179611
TOTAL ASSETS 1R, 340.55 13,554.21
EQUITY ANIFLIAKILTTIES
Equiby
Equity share capital i1 2O2TES THZT.E
Cither equity 12 9.267.89 5,647.99
Tolal equity 119877 BATSET
Liabilities
Wor-current lia bilities
Fizianmal lisbilities
111 Bomrawings IRTEY] E3.17 26,76
o) Leaze liabilibves 14{a) 27014 305
Pravizians 154} 107,25 EXED
Lhebieroed 12 [inkility inel; it LW T] 121458
ebier nor cureenk liabulives 18(a) GBI 12
Totd| man-eurrent linbilities 1,496.21 [ H
ucrent Liabulitics
Finangial liakhries
(i Bormrowings 13b) 24,79 344
i) Lease Lt s 14k 176,91 17641
(ili s Trade piyables 1]
Tedal nalstandang dums of mivee eneprizes and small enlerpnses 10302 305,58
Teral owlstansang dues af creduaza athar chan musro enterpr ses znd mmall enterpises 332550 e NIk
(g Dber Ninarzial liakilities 17 167.3] ¥z, 7
Frivgions 15k} 140,79 123,80
Cither qurpsml Jialiuluivs 15Hby HA00% 1I2005
Total current liabilitiea 4,548,537 427993
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES iB,Jdl0.35 13 554.21
Higuificam accowansing poligiss 4
The accompanyiag nodes borm an cnieyral pace af ese Gnanceal ssacemants.
A per olr pepor of ewven dare atashel
far Deloitie Haskins & Selby LLF Fur kil on behalf of sbe Board of Direciers o
Charered Accownrants Merulian Medical Research & Hospitsl Limitad
Mooisha Farikh ¥irem Prasad Sherty Iir. Emmuanuel Bupert Rakesh Verma
Faurltier Direciod Direcior Chael Exczuiees DEfcer
DI, L2 144556 D% Q701 DRSS
Plaue. Hengalura Muve. Hengaluro HMace Benglury Pluce Foolkala
Dare: hday 19, 2023 Dute May 19, 201 Date: Mow |7, 2022 ki, Way [, 2021
rosenjit ¥ondal Fool Barsaiyan
Chist Tinanvial Lo Company Secreany
Place’ Kolkata Mace. Bengnlum
Duate: play 1%, Z0T3 Liage: Maw b9, 2022




Meridian Medicul Besearch & Hospilul Limited
Sratement af profit and lass

CIw - LISS1HAYBID9SFLOOT] 440
(¥ jo Lakhs)

Farliculirs Mote For {he vear ended  For the yoar ended
M March 31, 2023 March 2. 20221
Income
Pawvenue frum dptidbons % 26457 52 23453733
CHhyer incorme rd ) 30360 Lne a2
Tutal imcome {A) 16,791,132 13,566.45
Expenses
Porchase of medicil consumables, drogs and suigical instrume nis thiT2.6l £, 405,02
Changes in ventaries of medial consumables. drags and surgical inStruments i1 [Z9.9Ty [94.34)
Employee benetits expense 1 34%7.47 3403298
Professional fees o destars BEFL 1Y 4H26.7Y
(Mher expenses 23 4,13 16 4135 50k
Fapenses hefore linanee cost, depreciztinn and amortisation (B 20AQT. A0 19,101, 25
Earniogs belure finanie onsts, deprecialion aod wmertisatlion aod Lsx (A-B) B, F03. 040 446450
Fimance wosts {€ ) 24 5064 28T
L2epreciation and amortization expenss (D) 15 17141 [ 136.00
Total expenses (E) = (BHT R0 21.630.91 20.466.52
Profit before tax (E) ={A-E) 5,160.21 3,099.53
Tuxs expenses 20
Current Tax 1.345.84 L EREE
Dweferved ax charge ¢ (eredi 2175 i1l
Total tax eaprnse () 1,507.3% H18.14
Met Profit fur the year H={F-4a) 3H52.82 2.17L.37
Other comprehensive income
liems that will oot be reclussified subsequently lo profit or loss
HFe-measurgment of defined bemelin plang {46,443 [36.72)
Incaeme tis et 13.52 10.22
C)ther comprehengive loss for the yewr, net ol tas (1} (32.92) {26.50)
‘Total comprehensive income for the year J-{13t1} 261950 2. 144 E7
Earaings per shure {of ¥ 10 gach) : 3
{a) Bariz 12 48 742
{hy CHluted 12 48 742
Signifizant accounting palicies 3

The azcompanying nobes foco an integraf pan of these finangial stalements.

A por our repon ofeven date altached
For Dielaifle Haskins & Sells LLF For and on behalf of the Bozrd of Directors of

Charered Accountants Slericdian Medical Research & Hoapital Limited

O NE O \iﬂgﬂ (- Lt W/
I Ut}%\ﬁl’rasnd etty

Manisha Farikh ir. Emmanuel Rupert  Rakesh Verma

Partmer - [Mretor [Hrechor Chief Executive Officet
HARTERED \ T [0 B2 144586 3 00 LOE23

Place: Bengaluon COUNTAMTE Place: Hengaluru Place: Bewgalary Place: Balkary

Date: May 19, 2023 [hube: Mlay 19, 2023 Bate: Muy 19, 2023 Tkate: Muy 19, 2023

nse\fiji% Mondal Po'Ram Barsaiyam

Chief Fimangial Officer Company Secrelary
Place: Kolkata Place: Gengalume
e May 19, 2015 Date: May 19, 2023




Meridian Medical Resgareh & Haspital Limited
Statemnent oF chanpes in equity for the yrae oded March 31, 2023

(a) Equity share capital

( ¥ In lzkhs except No. of Shares)

Farticulars No. of Shares Amounl
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Abeesdinn Medicad Besearch & Huspital Limingd
Sratemeni of cash lhgws

(¥ in Lakhs)

Particulars
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Figoitian Zuz loss allowaner - 174,03
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Naf cagh [uaed infinvealing meéivities (Bp [%,804.001 [ L5651 6]
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Nates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1. Compuany averview

Meridian Medical Research & Flospital Limited (*the Company*) was incorporated on 08 May 1995 under the
Companies Act, 1956, The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, lelling, managing and
maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all disciplines of medicine and without lirnitation
to run and administer healtheure schemes.

2. Basis of preparation of the financizl siztements
2.1, Statement of compliance

‘I'he Minancial statements have been prepared in gccordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind A3} as per
the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2013 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act 2013
{the * Act™) and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 19,
2023,

Details of the accounting pilicies are included in Note 3,

2.2, Guing Loneern

The Company has positive net worth as at the balance sheet date. Narayana rudayaluya Limited, Helding
Compaty, which continues to support the Company through equity infusion and acling as a corporate
puarantor for long-term loans availed by the Company from financial institutions and banks. Whilst the
current liabilities of the Company excecd its current assets as of March 31, 2023, the financial stalements
have been drawn up on a going concem basis in view of Ihe support letter received from the Holding
Company confirmiing their continued financiat support to the Company to enable it to continue jts operalions
and settle its oblipations as and when they becote due over the next twelve-menth period.

2.3. Fenctiopal and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in Indian Rupecs, except share data and per share dala, unless otherwise
stated.

2.4, Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis under the historical cost convention except
for certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Fair value of plan asscts less present value of
defined benefit obligatinns

et defined benefit {asset) liability

V -'/S\P:(‘:,'({h'f‘id.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

MNates to the inancial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

2.5, Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assutnptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounis of assets, liabililies, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates
are recognized prospectively.

Judgements

[nformation about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

—  ™ote 28 — leases and lease classification.
—  “ople 35 — financial instruments

Assomptions and estimation uncertaintics
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertaintics that have a stgnificant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2023 is included in the fullowing notes:

—  Note 29 — recopnition of tax expenss

—  Note 33 — measurement of defined beneht obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

Note 26 — recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions ahout the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

—  Note 6.9, 1), 35 — recognition of impatement of financial assets and

—  Note 4 — yseful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assels

1.6, Measurement of fair valucs

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurcment of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilitics.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabuhities.

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 (hat are observable [or the asset or liability.
either directly (e, as prices) or indirectly {i.c, derived from prices).

—  Levet 3: inputs for the asset or liability that arc not based on observable market data {unobservable inpuls).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observabl: market data as [ar as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the (air value of an assel or a liability fall inte different levels ol the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurcment is cateporized in ils entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred. Further information abiout the assumptions made in measuring fair
values is included in Wote 35 — financial irstruments,
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continved)

3. Significanl aceounting polives
3.1. Financial instruments
@ Recognition and fniticf measurement

Trade receivables are initially measured (initial recognition method) at their transaction price when they are
originated. All other financial asscts and financial liabilitics are initially recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial lability is initially measered at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction vosts that are directly attributable to its acquisition er issue.

b Classification and sabsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial reconition, 2 financial asset is classitied as measured at
— amprtised cost; o7
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassificd subsequent (o their initial recognition, excepl it and in the period the
Company chatges its business mode! for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and 1s not
designated as at FY1PL:

— the asset is held within a business model whase objective is 10 hold assets to colleel contractual ¢ash
tlows; and

— the contractual terms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding,

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured al FVTPL.
On initial recognition, the Company may irrcvocably designale a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if deing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial asvets: Business maodel assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial assel i5 held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and in{pemation is provided
ta management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the porttolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These
include whether management’s steategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
patticular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any rclated
liahilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assels.

- how the performance of the parttolio is evaluaicd and reported to the Company’s management.

P
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

— the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business muodel) and how those risks are manaped,

— how managets of the business are compensated — ¢.g., whether compensation is based un the fair value
of the assets managed ar the contractual cash flows collected; and

- the frequency, volume and liming of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons tor such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not gualify for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company”s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for rading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis are measured at FYTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether comtractual cash flonvs are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, *principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credir risk
assuciated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs {e.g., liquidity risk and adminisirative costs}, as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains
a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not
tneet this conditian. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows.

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features.

— prepayment and extensiun features; and

— terms that limit the Company's elaim to cash flows (rom specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features}.

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amaunt
putsianding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for carly termination of the contract,
Additionaily, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or pretnium to its contractual paramount,
a feature that permits or requires prepayment al an amount that substantially represents the contraciual par
amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may alse include reasonable additional
compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the tair value of the
prepavment feature is insigniticant at initial recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains ond losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequenily measured al fair value. Net gains and losses.

FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Financial assets at | [hese assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

amoriised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impainment losses. Interest income,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of
profit and luss. Any pain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of prodit
and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

Finuncicd Habilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and loyyes

Financial liabilities are classified as measvred at amontised cost or FYTPL. A financial lability is classitied
as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for teading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such en initial
recognition. Financial Habilities at FVTPL are tneasured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any
intercst expense, are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other finaocial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective inlerest methed. Tnterest expense and foreigm exchange gains
and losses are recognised in statemant of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised
in statement of profit and loss,

o Derecogmnition
Finarncial assels

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows tfrom the Mnancial
asset expire, ot it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are translerred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not
retain control of the financial asset.

{f the Company enters inte transactions whereby il ransfiers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ransterred assets, the transterred assets are not
derecognised.

Finegrcicd Hobilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its conlractual obligations are discharged or cancelled
or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

d. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are ofiset, and the nel amoeunt presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Compaty currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounis and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assct and setle the liability simultaneously.

3.2, Inventories

The inveniories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical equipments are valued at lower of cosl or net
realisable value, In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale, the net realisable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net realisable is
made on an item-by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location after adjusting for value added tax wherever
applicable, applying the fiest in first out method.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continned)

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comptise cash at bank and on hand and short-lerm deposits with an original
maturity of three months or 1ess which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4, Cash Nlow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusied for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments.
The cash fows from operating, itvesting and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Bank
averdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral part of an entity’s cash
management,

3.5, Revenue recognitien
Revemue from operalions

The Company recognizes revenue from medical and healtheare services lo patients, on sale of medical
consumables and drugs within the hospital premises and on providing services lowards patient amenitics.

Revenue is measured at the amount of wansaction price (st of variable consideration) allocated to that
performance obligation. Revenue is recognized upon transter of control of promised products or services to
customers/patients in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those
produsts or services.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customner
and no significant uncerainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the
sale of the poods and regarding its collection.

“Unbilled reverue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healtheare services rendered to the patients
who are undergoing treatment/observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet
date. 'Linearncd revenue” comprises billings in the excess of carnings.

Hevenue from mevsing scheo!
Revenue from nursing school is recognised when the related services are rendered, and the consideration is

received.

Other medice! and health care services
Revenue from other medical and health care services are recognized as and when the services are rendered
in accordance with the terns of the agreements.

Tnterest

For all debt instruments measured cither at amortised cost, interest income 15 recorded using the effeetive
interest rate (E[R). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the eslimated future cash payments or receipis over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorier period, where appropriate, io the gross camying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liakility. When calculating the cffective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument { for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options} but does not consider the
expected credit losses, [nterest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued}

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measwrerment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any. The cost of an item of Propetty, Plant and Equipment comnprises its purchase price, incleding impart
duties and ethar nan-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset o
its working condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite: any trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an
item of tangible fixed asset are added to its book value only if they invrease the future benefits frum the
existing assct beyond ils previously assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly
attributable to the acquisidon of the asset.

Depreciution and amortisation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis from (he dale the assets are ready for intended use. Leasehold improvemnents are amortized over the
lower of cstimated useful life and leuse term. Freehobd land is not depreciated. The estimated usctul lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Block of assets Useful Life
Building Bl years
Clecirical installation IV} years
hMedical equipment 13years

Office equipment 3 years

Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Computers 3 years

Wehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and ad| usted
appropriately,

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of ihe assets based on
the internal technical assessment and these useful life are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful [ife considered by management is lower.

The cost and related aecumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statcments upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of cach reporting date
are recopnized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use
before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Naotes to the Ffinancial statements for the yvear ended March 31, 2023 {continued}

3.7. Intangible aszets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulaled amortization and impaimment. [ntangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

The estimated usetu] lives of intangibles are as follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years

Amartivation method

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors ncluding the
effects of obsulescence, demand, competition and other ecenamic factors (such as the stability ol the industry
and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the
expected future cash flows fom the asset,

3.B. Employee henefits
Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount
ol short-term emplovees benefits to be paid in exchange for employes services is recognized as an expense
as the related service is rendered by the employees,

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specificd
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employce state msurance te Government
administered provident fund schene and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company’s.
contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the
cmployee renders the related service,

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect
of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have carned
and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, The calculation of Company's obligation under the plan is performed periodieally by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is managed by third party administrator.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the retum
on plan asscts (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), arc
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCT). The Company determincs the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount 1 ed ta
measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net sﬁﬁi’%agq




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (conlinued)

liability {asset), taking into aceaunt any changes as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net inlerest
expense and other expenses refated to defined benefit plans are recopnised in the staternent of profit and loss.
The Company recognizes gains and losses in the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when
the curtailiment or s#itlement occurs,

When the benefits of 4 plsn are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relutes to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit
and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in
future service periods or receive cash compensation on any leave accumulated in excess of forly five days
or on termination of employment. Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave. the benetit
is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated
absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method,

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other ¢osts incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acguisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of thal asset. Other borrowing
costs are recopnised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

310, Leascs

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The
Company, at the inception of & contract, assesses whether the contract s g lease or not lease. A coniract is,
or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in
exchange for a consideration, This policy has been applied to contracts existing aud entered into on or after

April 1, 2019

The Conpany recognizcs a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amaunt of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencerment date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underiying asset or to restore the underlying asset ar the
sile on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use assct is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

The lcase liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commmencetuent date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrewing rate. Itis remeasured whett
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rae, if there is a change io
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease lability is remeasured in this way, a comesponding adjustment is made 10 the carmying
amount of the risht-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
assel has been reduced to zero.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospilal Limited

Notes 10 the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {conlinued)

The Company has clected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

3.11. Earnings per share

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to equity sharcholders
fur the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear.

The Company does not have poiential dilutive eguity shares cutstanding during the vear.

3.12. Income tax

The [ncome-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss except to
the extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equily or in other comprehensive incotne.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounis used for taxation purposes.

Meferred tax liabilities are recognized tor all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed al sach reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
assel o be ubiliced.

Dieferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected ta apply in the petiod when
the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tux rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date,

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would (wllow from the manner in which
the Company expects, at the repurting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of iis assets and
liabilities.

Delerred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable mipht to offset current tax
liabiliries and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a nct basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

Ainimum diternative fox

According te Section 115JAA of the Income lax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT’) paid over
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward fur fifieen succeeding
assessment vear for set-off against normai Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the
entity’s normal income tax during the specified petiod.

113 Impairment
. Impaiviment of fingneial insteinrents

The Company recognises loss allowances tor expected credit losses on financial asscts measured at
amortised cost.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 {continued)

At each reporting date. the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is cradit impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer.

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the Company would not consider
atherwise.

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other {inancial reorganization: or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount cqual to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
follewing, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt sceurities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk {i.e., the risk of default aceurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses,

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit Josses that result from all possible default events over
the expecled life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result [rom default events that
ate possible within 12 months after the repurting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

In all cascs, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to eredit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recopnition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that 1% relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
gqualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessmert and including forward- looking imfarmation,

Measurament of expected credif lnsses

Expected credit losses are a probahility weighted estimate of credit losses, Credit losses are measurad as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (ie., the difference between the cash flows due to the Company o
accordance with the contract and the Lash flows that the Company cxpects to receive).

Presentacion of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount
ol the assets.

Write-aff

The pross carrving amount of a financial asset is written off (either partiaily or in full} to the extent that there
iz no realistic prospect of recovery. This is gencrally the case when the Company determines (hat the trade
receivable does not have assets ar sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write off. However, financial assets that are written off eould still be subject ta
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited

Notes to the financial statentents for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued})

b Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date 10 determine
whether there i3 any indication of impairment. 1f any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amnount is estimated.

For impairment testing. assets that de not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
penerating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash intlows that
are largely independent af the cash inltows of other assels or CGLs.

The recoverable atmount of a CGU {or an individual asset} is the higher of its value in use and its {air value
less costs ta sell, Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the lime value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU {or the asset},

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairtient of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate assct belongs.

An impairment loss (5 recognized if the carmying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14, Provisions and contingencies

Piovisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (tegal or constructive) as a result of a
pasl event, it s probable that an outflow of ceonomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the chligation.

The amount recognized as a proviston is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties sumounding the
ohligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected Lo be recovered from
a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virally certain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for unerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Campany
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating Lhe contract.

315, Segment Reporting

Operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker ('CODM’) who makes
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Segment results that are
reported to the CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated
on & regsonable basis,

J.16 Operating Cycle

Basced on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined ils operating cycele as
12 manths for the purpose of classilfication of its assets and liabilitics as current and non-current.




Meridian Medical Research & Haospital Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2023 (continned)

3.17 Standards lssued hut Not Ettective

On March 31, 2023, the Ministry of Corporate AlTairs (MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, This notification has resulted into amendments in the fellowing
existing accounting standards which are applicable to the Company from April |, 2023,

Ind AS 101 — First time adoption of Ind AS

Ind AS 102 — Share-based payment

Ind AS 103 — Business Combinations

Ind AS 107 — Financial Instruments: Thsclosures

Ind 45 109 — Financial Instruments

Ind 4% 115 — Revenue from Conlracts with Customers

Ind A% 1 Presentation of Financial Stalements

Ind AS & — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates andErrors
Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes

Ind AS 34 — Interim Financial Reporting

The Company is in the process of evaluating the impact of the abave amendments on the Company’s
financial statements.
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Merigian Alohcal Bocach & Haapeed Limilcd
aced 10 the Tinensial plalcmgoty o the oo ondod Sacch 310 3328 {canuueln

6 Other financisl assets 2 in Lulhs
. Az al Auat
bl Murch 31,200 Murch 11, 393
2] Nun-cucreni
1o pardic olher than cdatnl pario
Eaiix teyeiils [dbE 1o manure afior |2 moriha from jhe portig date) 4214 il
Socuna dancult 2. | 22aT
10145 171.3%
{hl Emrrenl
T parsicn vibce gban related partic
Eicurty Szl =12 4. 57
La4= Prenisizn for Moubilul 2lvzmea - Sasniy dupl G h
Lount, Seasds o) g2 %1
Linbilled revenue 137.33 [JERE)
145.95 130.77
7 Other assets {Tin Lukhs
Al IC Ao g
Falwulird Slarch 31, 1023 Afdech FL_ 2423
|al Mao-rurreak
Ta pariie atber 1han relaled partica
Eropand 2 penses 41,62 I 33
Capral o REFA o) L
Advanes income tax and tax deducted at source, net 63813 983.16
1,03255 1.230.52
gb Cwrrong
Ta pactkd albar Ihae relstcd parkic
'repaid e pania L] At
Ade a6 4<rabon .21 557
(Hher J:ana and Sds wmodd R 15 s X
141,51 L73.10
A4 Inventorics (2 in Lakhs)
. At I LA
e March 31, 208} Rlarch 31, 2002
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable valueh
Medical consumables, drigs and surgical instruments 363.37 e A
Less; Provigion for write-down 1o oet realisable value {23.90) (28.23)
330,47 309.50
Tac nvontwra ae auhpzsl 1o charge 1o 2o0s 16d baes nans
9 Trade receivables (2 in Lakhs)
B At L Ay
Fariizabard March A1, 1023 Klaceh 31, 202
Sonpsarod ool - nnpererend 2,100 HRLY R
Less: Allowanee for expected crudit losses (278.26) (42537)
Total 2,026.54 1.835.91
Trae receivables apeing schedule
Parl ulirs Outstanding for the following perind from due date of pavments Total
Mnl Tres Leai thun & 6 maarky 1year 1-d peary 1-1jcurn Flarc ihan g edrn
manths
Uplitosded T rale reernahles - Considered Good
Abar Maeek 31, B2 LI FXak] 751 Sadl 1130 3247 L3 20 HLT )
As at March 31, 2022 1.757.80 1441 JML T i 8462 100 2.361.13

The Sompam ulch § et ooul S 1o dolormne e essomed croe bice en e pretied of 24 eade tszey ahle, The prosizn maine -phawd en e bisircalh atareed defaull feie ooer e eaported |UE ol ke adr receivablbor wnd o dquiied
fer farnard-babuig cotinata. Al eack foemey et the huson bl oon ot delse £ rao o iqdriat and chanpos o Bewad Kefany snmae i analsd. T ceprobed cordd I alkwases dbsisd 0 ik sjeng of the 3 o recahles
Wt duet aed [Re FalCs &b g inche prondocn maks, The provinion mabi b the &3 200 reparng Fns o ak el

Ageing
Wb, i ke Mmrdaicto L jeur Mude thas 13001

Canegary

Adar Murd J1, 1938

ESLCGHEECIER ES 13k R BT
Chure 124 21.44% drrath
A3 &l March 31, 2011

EELCGHEECIESM =5 1. T ity
Others 2.94% 34.89% 45T
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Blcrslan Rlcdical Beiearch & Hospiled Limilgd
Hargt 10 he fsworial 1Batorenia Fac ebe ear eadod March 3], TR Cepnlinard)

1 Cash and bunlk balunees (€ i Lakhs)
i At IC Aual
Facticulars Margh 31, 313 March 1, I03E
{w) Cat and cath et el
Lhaz 15.4T

Tashuahis
Lalarecg with Easks
) Bk

-0 current accoums ET
57487 294.32

b Hank bazacrs har o ahare
| FER] 2141

-Un deposit accounts (dio to maturs within |2 months of the reporting dale)®
$63.51 5243

*Tha FY 23 deposits inchides reatrictive ansount of ¥ 6351 Takhs as they pertain to bank guarantee and for FY 22 amounting fo 2 52.43 lakha

(2 in Lakibs)

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cach and cash cyuivalent eomprise the followings:

: Anw Aval
Pacticulirk Ahirch 31, 2R3y March 30,3022
Tk ur hand 15.00 2403
daarsa vtk baaka
~Chi curnent accounts i3 a7 26877

ST4.87 .32
Equity ahare capital (¥ in Lakhs)

. A al At AL
Fartirulars March 31, 2023 Mureh 31, 2022
Amhgricd
58 SO0 5) pepiby s | Maxek 30 2020 3500 K o sharma of #10 sach, wuh suiiy
mhis 1 500100 IR B

Hsnun, pubserbol Lad nskf up

020, 0,120 geniny tiape [Macck 3. 2021 200 04800 o ¥ 02 cach Flly paidup usbvoieg v A LN
rrhie

1.927.88 1927.88
ih Mrcuncilizgica Al che 2quicy tharee nulalaniling a2 dhe boginniog 20 o ke oed af 1k vear:
Farfivulins AF B AEech B, 023 As af Wlwech 31, i3

Fiminbioe of shiures Amoant Number of shares Amouni

Al the bogwirsap of the vear 2.92,78.520 102758 arTiam 292788
Tyund dureg e pra . . T .
Ar Lhe e of By sear 131,71.320 1415 1.92,78.830 19214t

iip RighCo poefereare and reslriclions alfacisd do oyuily dbrer:

T Crerapay Rt 3 Unpke claan of oo e shors e temad i 36 cquily dharcs by g 7 par vales sl B IDeach Acoond aga, 3 eqede shac el squtik rigard o L idkimd and shars en the LDampany’s Teie sy Zadt beddon ul equity
SFarer 4 palillnd B2 nac wrbe por ik The eywas shares 3 crraded 1n ont dudmd o dedlaved fio taee v nmr, The di mbornd progeesod by she Doard of Dortme n ket o the wpzcoekl of the sharchoriers m the 3en smauwng Anmal
Cnersl Mesirg

0 the cormt af higuidatior uf the Compars . e hokon of rcie sthase wdl e enditled 10 206 ¢ fol s apsn oF the Cemparse, W il Buln of all prfromnizt ano 2o, The ddinbaton ol Be ioarnpo:oala te nuoher <L muin 10

hed by aharetolsos

iiii) Shares held by holding company
Particulars An ud Blerch 3, 2011 As mi March 31, 2022
Number of shares Amoun Numiber of shares Amount

Equity shares of & 10 cack Glly paid up Wil be

. Haryvird Fiodsy o aua Limited TR TEANY FHITdS 290,24 467 LNz AN

iv) Particulurs of shurcholders holding more thin 24 equity shires:

Particulars A1 al March b i1l As at March 31, 017
Number of shares Amaanc Number of shures %% holiling

- Maravana Hrudavalayva Limited 290,24 467 99.13% 2.90,24.467 99_13%

Tc Cotipany R not Eought bark amy thaso dering the ol of fiee dgars omedslohy provadag the Salsnae shest Jaic. Funsr, the Campany banede diasd Ty bt e o tharms e By wiauds K dle® than 23 rariey the poudd 27
[ veary omedialety prechlng U baliecs P de

(v} Sharcholling of promoters:
Pramaber Name As at March 31, 2023
Number of shares % of total shares %% Change doring the year
290,24 467 P20 [

Marswara Hredr slan & Limited

O, Doty Prasad Sk = 103 DI 1,y

Shakendais Rhaly 1 LIEE L 0.

Wit Moarad Sy 1 1 L i [N
1% Ay

M % irur Ty *

L. Eoumarcrl Rupest * 10 2oL
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M cradinen flcdical Bedeareh & 1orpilal Limscd
aces 19 e financial Wuirmenia Bac ghe year ended March 31, 2023 Legnlinualy

11 Other equity

(% in Lakhs)

Farliculars

A al
March FI. U7 F

Aral
Wlarch 31, 2027

R rey and smmlus
B ur Tk gromiug

Al thz sermereracroent of the sear 1566021 A FER 25
At Moo derog thohza - -
Althz ord o heyecr 140821 EAEG R
Creoied sl Condrkylion
AL tor sumiosscsmien: of sha o 141 4.3
Ade Addn o duang the smu - =
Ardc =d o k2 ca d.1% ez
Fsilunad #amirgp
Al the commiencement of the year 207134 1L+
A bos profil ke L tranaloried S iHezerr of profc and low LREFE 1 LI 3V
Al Ihz ol ofthe ycar 3,730 107004
Elthen Cidprengitt [aoma
Al Ths caxmenecoudnl ok e Vel L0342 (R
Al Adduwyr diring th: 1em {32.92) (26.50)
At the end of the vear (136.34) (103.42)
9.267.89 5.647.99
Sermrilicd presdeim
Securres Sronigm o upsd B rocwd e préme 2ecnesd on isses of tharo 100wl in ccmdancs wrk e provicem ol the Ciapanes 4o ]
Heiwacd cummings
H.2ta ived camirgs somprasy of amvents U an s diswrikaled by the saopam e dialsd 2 05 oo Hharchaldes
[Flhee Crmproissnii c loeme
[ltha Cucpretosita 'raomd FEroI=T azluarm, giln OF [odd o c-neaunaenl o 2efvml oo, obligaliar
Deasmead Capeded Ceniriliulive
Chmmid sapuial vietritaran by |lokdng Toagacy an ezl o grag ko ik Gpiang nsad 12 empbroted
13 _Borrowings {2 in Lakhs)
Funical A LEN T
b L March 47, T0AY  Rlareh 3L, 1033
W] Man-tarreaL
(1] Secered
Tao ki
From hark [refo neie 1) R 12T
Less: Current maturity of lons term debt (refer note 13(b)) {24.79) (32.99)
Total non-current borrowings 68.17 86.76
the Currest
{il Brcarcd
Torm kg
Current maturity of loag term debt 479 3z
Total corrent horrowings 24.79 3204
I Term louns from banks @
Details of repuyiment terms, interest and maturity Nature of Seeurity
Tow Zean om A Bark Dol * 92 9% abhe dprecan y 207 R lakba) Fayshle i 20 i
! : iy Forhect : Term baan: ke Fzrd . : al
goarteeh i taleat C1ato Fom 16 Mag 007). Inicrest e chamed b 7,09 ... (rToious veas |:J\.|:.ul|'\.'\(' FHCNrE AL ic o gl gmtchated sl of Temm baan @ capes D, Addicnal movabbe fieed acucis 6 2he Bofos rach thal kdal
0% i) vrenk v d [ 21s

Naer Biabmmenih of comerr asseis oo liding clack abairmat fle? By e Caupany wilk us haokers are ic sgeeermen; wath Eagky of ancount,




Meridien Mehedl Bocarch & Hopead Limined
Fage 1o the Ninanuiad seacemema for (ne 1car oiled flaech 30 2000 [Gdncidacd)

14 Lease liahilitics

{2 in Lakhs}

Farhaulars

AF
Alac.h J1, 2028

Ak ar
Rlarch.J, 102k

dal Man-carrent

Lewts lahoby Dpxeny L0 T
adilions 2uiag, Ure ponesd - .
1 inamq el agenead dinng he pmise e1l% ~rE1
lome zaeie i Eay 1230 LKy
Loans Laboty Db TG M
Lo’ Lo mors Loans basduy LT K (Yl
120.14 ATA5
sy Current
Current fease liabilie b Nl L7541
176.91 176.91
15 Providens (refer noe 33) (T in Lakhs)
Atal As al

Farliculars

March 31, 2R

March 3. 2011

tl Man.surreal
Provvpue b onphaee b s

Gratuity 102.23 £5.80
107.23 85,
by Current
Frowded for cmpleaga kel
Compengated absenses 1y 1736
143,77 11088
1 Trde payables (T in Lakhs)
B A At
Fachigulars Marck 11, 1023 Rlarckod], 202
Toeal satalardug suet of mizie micrprss and ama . enlepased (roio sl 54 [BIEH i Rk
Tatal outstanding dues of crediton other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 333530 081 %4
3498.92 308274
[ ralo rgvabloy apoise schedule
Craaciandlng [or riawimg pocids Trdm due d002 4F o mesls
Parslculare Talal
Mot Dhae * Lt than | sgar 1.2 ptak FEET L nrg ban ¥ wrarg
Ar g Varch 13, 7011
al Urdvaps S5 - M5ME 22143 2 RENT ) o} - 1016
ho Lednzueisd - Dihars F] IR ] £10= 12577 LR 5153 13113n
21 Diapoecd daca - M50 - - - - 8 -
o) Disputed dues - Others - - - P’ ” -
Total 2.638.22 66057 12442 44.19 3153 3498.93
An 3l March 31, 2027
3] Urdinpeied - M5ME Ly L7 LA 247 - odia
b Liadoculed - CHkana 1,362 4% 11,05 iLze 1.4 LX2] R
=) Chipuned data - MSME 2 - - . - -
d) Disputed dues - Oibers - - - - - a
Total 1.643.28 137661 51.38 14.70 564 309161
* Not Due aclu3et pros s ler cvpensey
17 Other financial Habilitics (% in Lakhs)
FarCiculans Huue LK
March 31, 202k March 31, 2012
Currral
‘C'p parties gibrr Lhan rodsicd paitics
Credicori Noe cazdal gooss 1524 £5.1T
Others 1337 14.62
167.31 8279
15 Other liahilities (L in Lukhs)
. Arng Abae
Eariculack Wareh 31,7028 March b, Tt
Mon Carrent
To parirs niber thin colaled ot
Lrfermd gon pmman| grani fne FPUGS Licefem ® Lt -
Driicd gl wahay 4 112 pR 13
450,96 13
Cucrent
Tu parde alteer [hen relsled partics
Urazammnd revenuc 1DB 26 L1
Lenwraz bamlines =14 AT EY
Dotimind o, Aparcal granl far FPCO | wsores F 1.3 -
Baluoo e 10 4000 goedremen; anlbeniio L2l HE
Interest Acerucd but not Dise on Long Term Borrowing - ol?
630.65 77108

* During the financial year 2022-23, the company had availed EPCG bencfits amounting to ¥ $36.20 Likhs on Import of varions Medizal equipments. The Company has rocopnized this grant as deferred income at fair value which iz being amortizod

o er Lz g gl 10 o™i Eood anks o ErogeerLan o which mlaled depresinlan o Peboghues,

*HThuruag the firasezal o T021 32, 0 coinpary had raceived capaal gt 7o sani b corperalo someclng o £ B IS Lkbt [ pazhane af Bordual squpamnin m agteed. The Compan has mweogrieed So grart b defazad doome 31

Wl whuch S bgirg amemizmd nuer the wielal e of fu: foed 3 n panpactisnn which celiesd dof a1 rocogniamd
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sleridian Medical Research & Huspital Limited
Noles [0 the Rnancial statements Tor the year ended March 21, 2023 (contimued}

19 Brevtaut from operativos

(£in Lakhs)

Far the vear ended

For tbe year

Particulars March 31, 2023 rieled
March 31, 2022
Tncomie ffon medical and Jiealtheare secvces 1545185 22,537.60
Sale of medizal consumibles and drugs fis67T 453 14
Cither operating revenue:
Revenne from Mucsing Schood - 36.1%
26,487.52 11,457.23
Kaefer nues helow
i) Carepory of Custowmer
{’ash* 13.114.50 Il514.91
et 1337262 11547 32
Tolal 26,487.52 23,457.23
* Inclodes receipls theough digitalielecirome meds
{ii) Mature of iccalmenl
[n-patient 20551403 L&, T06. 10
Cut-paticnt 4 900,82 423150
Sale ol medical consumables and droas 635a7 EEXML |
Cithers - Je.3%
26,487.52 23,457.23
¢iii1 The revenue from rendering Healthcare servives and Pharmaceatival products salisbes “al a point in ime’ recornilion Criteria as
preseriped by Ind A5 [15
[y Trandaction price allocated to the remaiotog performence obligalions {7 in Lakhs}
Fur the vear zoded For the year
Harch 11, 2023 coded

Particulars

¥larch 31, 2022

Contraciual Liabilities
Zantrachya] Lighilioes

342.04

k24T

[v} Use of Fraciical expedicais
‘Trunsacthon price allacated 1o (he remaining performance ohligatinos

The Company has applied Lhe practical expedient with respeet io nen disslosure ot informatien in respect of remaining perfemiance
obligitions sonsidering the [act that the sompany™s pecformance obligations, i.¢. the treamment in case of healthears segment hag an

oripinl expected dorabion of oo year ar less.

20 Other ineone ¥ in Lakhsk
Far the year eaded For 1he vear
March 3, 2023 ended

Fatticulars

MTarch 31, 202Z

Intcrest incnme on

« Bunk dcpnsits 1613 40l

+ lneome tax Kefund 5586 %51

ramt dngeme 19,32 3.3
Foreign cxchange gan, {net) 342 .

Lighilitics no longer required writben back 147.11 49.37

Miscallaneous income ff TH 4402

30360 10922

& S
Iy o \E
5 CHRR.E‘“‘;:--QiL_'
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Fieridian Medical Research & Hospital Limived
Moles to Ihe finandial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2023 (continued)

|

23

Chaopes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical insicuments {T in Lakhxh
For the vear ¢nded For the year
Farticwlars Mlurch 31, 2021 ended
March 31, 2022
Tventory at the heginning of the year 30950 Zl1.1a
hieventary at the end of the year 33347 30950
(29.97) (9B M)
Employee benefits exp ¥ in Lakhs}
Far the year ended Fur 1he year
Particulars Mlarch 3. 2023 ended
March M, 2022
Salaries, wages and bonus 320254 277040
Contribtion 1o providen and ather funds (eefer nete 33) 261.35 AR
Seafl welfare expenscs 33.27 24467
3497 AT 3.0221.9%
(dher exproses (% in Lakhsi
For the year ended Forthe year
Farticulars March 31, 2023 ended
March 31, 24022
Hospital aparaiing sxpenses
Pawer and Fuel i3 302 36
Hospital general expenses 2T T4 185 12
House keeping expenses U3 [k 35515
Patient wellare expenses 647 255 82
Rzt 19707 169.23
Medical gas charges LR | TR
[iomedical wastage expenses 15.13 18.38
Repaics and mrintenance
« Hespital cquipmcni: 52233 f55.45
- Buildings 204.7] 13531
= ihers §22.07 20653
342R.40 280,06
AdtriRisErtive £xpenses
Traveling and conveyance 1221 3111
Security charges 146.55 140,96
Frinting and stationery S3.00 5108
Rezre G540 007
Audvertizement and publieity 5164 R Pl
Legal and professional tees {refer nowe (1) babow) 41.21 465
Duziness promation al.L7 qny3
Telephone and communication 42.1% 43
Bank charges B&.63 42 24
Insurunce a0 B7 58
Corperate social raspongibility [refer note (1) below) 40.24 22779
Fates and Lixes 4187 1532
Haoks and periodicals 1287 f6 54
Prowision for loss allowdnees = 174 .03
Prowision for Doubeful Deposics .20 -
1.as% nn saleddisposal of Propemy. plant and cquipment 5l 62 4918
Foreign exchange loss, {net} = 026
Misocllanenuys expenses 4 35 401
130776 1,255 44
4,336.16 4,135.50

CHARTERED
ACCOUNTANTS




Meridizn Medicsl Research & Tlospilal Limiled
Nutes to the financia! statements for 1he year coded March 31, 2023 {eontinued)

{in Lakhs)
For the vear
ended

March 31, 2022

(i} Paywent Lo auditers®

Prcticulars For the year ended
March 31, 2023

A an audilor

Auwdin fee g0 PR
[0 other capaciry

Ciher services (eerulication fees) nin 0 50

Hetmbursemeat of expenses 13 0.1+

*excluding goods and seovice lax

(i1} Corporate social responaibility
Crnsagquent to the requicements of Section 133 of the Companivs A2 2015, the Company has made contribations s slated below The
same 15 in line with astivitiss specified in Schedule V10 of the Cormpnies Act. 2013

The Company’s CSR activitics primarily focuwses on programs that aims 1o make a pesitive difference in the lives of'the prople by
engaging m activilies it eliminates or alleviates pain and sutfering to the under privileged sectinns uf the society by Promating
lvegltheare facilities for the upliftment of people af large and ercating a positive impict by addressing issues ol wccessibility and
afordability. Fromoting educational tazilities 10 help and assist in unfolding the crealive petentals and 1alents of the ¢hildren and

AMMAtEe nes.
(T ip Lakhsj
For the year ended For the year
Particulars March 31,2023 ended
March 51, 2022
w} Adncunt required 1o be spent by the Company during the year 1828 22.79
b} Amount of expenditne tneumed on purpose ather than construcliond scguisitian of 33 oy
any asset
)} Exress spend of praor years set off during 1he year - -
d) Shortfalli{Exeess) at the end of the vear [(d)=(ap(bi-(c3] (2.05) -
e} Tetal of previows years shor fll - -
fi Rsason Eor shortfall A A
g1 Bamre of CRE Activities Preampting healthcare Tacilities fer the
ppliftment of people al large, Promoring
educational facalibwes to decerved childeen and
AU
h] Details of related party ransacions Ma BA
i1 Where a prowision @ made with fespect o a lLahility incurred by cotering B
M A
24 Finance cosls {¥ tn Lakhs]
For ihe year ended For the vear
Particulurs March 31, 2023 £ nded
March 3, 2022
Interest cxpense on Anancial abililics measured al amortised Sos
< e loans from banks 195 170,77
- bank averdratt .56 038
Interest expense on lease habileies 4313 5T.81
Sl.6d Z28.97
15 Depreciztion and amartisalion expense (£in Lakhsp
For the vear eoded For the yrar
Tarticulars Match 31, 2023 ended
Mareh 31, 202F
Depreciation of property, plant and ayuipment {refer note 43 1,029,/ Gepd [k
Trepreciation of Bight of Use Assets freler Mot 35 141,97 1419
1,171.81

&
| CIFRTEMED o
{23l agooumTANTS ) e
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Mleridinn Fledical Research & Hospital Limined
Motes to the finsncial sinlenpents for the vear coded March 31, 2023 (conlinued |

F4

{i}

(i}

7

i

tH

L

ontingend labilities and commitmends

Contingend liabilities .
The Cunpany doeg not have any sonlingenl laability a5 oo March 31, ZU23 {previnug yeir - Wiy

Commitments
Estimated amounts of Cconfracts remanng to be sxecuted on capitnl account (net of advane] and pop pepvided for smounds 0 2256234 lakhs 25 on Barch

31, 2033 (previous year € HHA02 bakhs).

Segmant informarlan

Crperaling Segments

fnd A5 LO§ "Uperating Segment™ (~lad A% 104°) zstablishes standards for the way Tha public business enterprises seporl nfenation abeut operating
segments anl ielated disclasures about products and services, gragraphic areas, und mao? eustomers. Based on Lhe "managenent approach” as defined i
Iml A5 418, gperating sexments are 16 b reported 1 3 manner consistent with the intemal reparting provided (o ihe Choet Operaung Dueizion Maker
(COTN, The COOM evdluates the Company's pertarmance wil allocates resoorces on everall busis, The Company’s sule openlisg Segment 1s therefere
“Wedicat and Healthedrs Servkees', Accordmzly, there wre ne additianal disclosure to be provided under Ind AS 108, other thaa dhese already provuded i

the tinancisl slatements,

Geggraphical informalivn
Geographical nformation amalyses e Company's revenus and non-cwceht 4ssets by the Company’s ceuntey of domicile (e, Iadiah and ofhier caunceies, Tn

preseating the geagraphozl rform snion, sozment revenus hus been based 01 e geographcal Locativn of the sustemers and segmest wiigls which have been
based en the grographical locatioa of the assets, Siece, the Company Tas only one geographical ocalich. ve. Indiz. wiih respect o logatien of assels and
Tocation ef customers, urther dec:ils absut pepgraphical infermation is not applicable,

One Customers - Swasihvasathi (16 85%) accoumted for more than 0% aof the revewue (oo the year ended March 31, 2023 and Ore Custemer -
Swasthyasathi (21 55% ) acwounted 0 wore than 0% of the revenue as of Barch 31, 2002

Lreuses

The Company has taken varous medical squipmeit, 1ospital premises, office and resulential premises wnder operating leases, The leases tepically rr fur 3
term Tanging trom one to hinky 1hiee vears, with an oplion 1 renew the lease atter the term complenon. The escalaton chsuse in these asrangerent ranges
froen 4% 10 3%

The table bclgw provides details vegardine the cantractual matusilivs of rental payments

{2 in Lakhsy

Farticnlars As al As BF
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1255 than L vear 2040 22004
1 -2 vears 18.03 20eh.04
2-5 years 5404 #4.09
More than § years .29 294 12
The Sllowing 15 the bisak-up of cument and non-curent leage lidhhoes 6s at harch 31, 2023
(¥ tn Lakhs)
Particulars A af Asat
March 31, 21023 March 31, 202X
Current lease Liakilitias L7691 L7651
HNop-gurrent [easc liablities 220,14 0T 05
JHT N5 571398
The following is the movement mthe leise labalines during the vear end=d barch 31, 2033
{Zin Lakhsh
e Ficllars Fot the Year Ended For the Year Faded
March 11, 2023 March 1, 2022
Tease liahiliby Op=ning 51306 T 19
Additioos dunng the period - -
Funance cost acenued dunng the perind AL.[3 5781
Lease pavincol (220043 (F0 0]
0705 571305

Beneal expense secoeded tor shor-lemn beages wag 225347 lakhs for the year ended bdarch 31, 2023 (2249 30 [akh for e vear ended March 31, 20231




Meridinn Mledical Kesearvh & Hospital Limited

Myics 1o the finencial stateme nis For the year coded dacch 310 T023 (contineed b

I

Income doo
{n) Amanm recognised in statement of profit and loss {2 in Lakhs)
Far the year ended  Far the vear ended
frlarch 31. 023 March 31, 2011
Curesni income daL 1,945 &4 &13.40%
Veferred daw lishality ! [aszety
Ooiziratien sl sewarsal of v Jiffecarces I1TE 11311
Deferred 1wy charge/ (credit) 1175 31511
Taz evpease lorihe year 1,507 32 LN 1
{b) Amount recognised in sther comprehensive income (2 in Lakhs)
For ahe year emfedd Mlaech 3, 2023 Foc the venr ended Macch 31, 2912
Telnre tnx Tan |refHeaseh Met ol dau Brefure lax Tan [erpenze] benelic Med of tax
henelsl
c-rngasueermenl on deli1ed beaielil plans i a4y 13.52 (37 43) (14.72) LR (206300
{.d4-4h 1152 [ErRH] 136,711 112 [t S0
() Reconcilintion of effective taa taie (2 im Lakhs)
Fur the vear cnded Forihe year endod
AL March T0XY 31 Mlarch 2033
FProfil helore tay AR60 L A5
Tax using L1e Cumpany™s diiedne 135 Gce fOurrend year 2% 12% arel Provous ¥ err 79,125, 1502 65 W
Vaz effect of:
U lhanges i % cales - 12.05
Exneaans zipe deiductibos far lax puroose ) 19 B
Othe s (1.JE1 fh.ak)
117,30 923,15
Drrbericd tua acseis snd liabulities art soiclbutable to the following: (T in Lakhs)
Balumce nx at Ciher Becognited in Recognijed an 101 Balnmce nv at

April 1, 2022 Adjuilnrab At Erofit or len during 24ir-24 March 31, 2011
Credil mrilisateen during 2022-2%
[charpelirailie
Dhebereed bae assel
Erawusion for daubilul seutrecnles 123.537 = 141031 - EX.B4
E'raversion fer gratuky LR 1122 (LR | 1147 ELR-1)
Pravidien for comparssied absenccs LR - ol - 4142
Fravdit Bt slew moving and nan mosmg nzeg s Az - 11.74] - XL
(rheis Rit 0 = [5.25] = ALAN
Total deferred 1an wixel 1ET, TR B2} {43.84) L1.53 I63.6%
Deelerred 1os Wabilicy
Excazs ol depicd idhen cm Boeed asse! under [neeone Tas Acl, 9D ovwee [B] 26h - Il &7 - {EE%. 3T
depeecialr unde: Comg Acl
Total deferred tax liability (901.26) - 11.AT - (589.39)
3inimum aliernakive Ins pieer AR HE LR - - -
Deferred Lux asset/{Liability) (net) (123.48) (477.78) (3197 13.52 (619.71)




Meredinn Hrds sl Bierarck & ICngliall Limitcd
Mirfys |s f el irabrmcaly far dhe vooor cndeod Bleiak 1 J00E combracd]

318 Related party divelonires
[af IMcailt of cehaded parfiee

[ dature af relubonsbin [Wume of eelateid parties
Enterprise having control over the Cotnpuny’ |Nn|u_\'nl|=l" dayalava Limited
Hakedh W - Choel = dmadite DATear

Privecnjit 4 rvlal - Chue! Fompmunal CTigd focc | Blirch 24, 500X
Shweta Py - Comguury oncarn (0 e 430550
Poonam HBarsaivan- Compoay Secretary (wef Sih Au 032
Dr. Dievi Prasad Shutty- Chairman
P . 1=amcl Spmt - Muzip i Dot
m?wmm..muuw > ol n bl dng Viren Prasad Shety - Whaie 2ma [1s5dor

! Sandlyya Sy armman - Chiz! Fruecinl Cfien

__{Sridhar - Company Sestetosy

Nusayana fnstititi e Avesal Rescarch Private Lisaiiod (NTARPL) (Compny o unbe el iteals
Narayana pafu s asd beaspeal Hmgial Fs Lmied Q7481 7L
Murayans Hospitaly Private Limited (MHFL
Ninaying Hed“th Inunzoices Prvle Lmztod INHIPL L s e F bncdr Ll oll)
Murayana e e Spearty Eoapmtaly Fieoats Lossd 5501105 )
Matayanes Holdings 1o Lo IRHF 3 nitoa
Fetliw susbaklianies Health City 4 e 1 Iwaradu (PRI
N ok th Hoth B rariaa LLL WA
| Atlirss Hegheowt Prosa |oneed LY 0o 2ed hne IR0
NH Tntegrated Cygre Prwe Lmoed MRS s #2000 Jarmanre 251
(Conman Ermgediod s theare L (kL Spearbe 28 2007

ENT o £ scnee Lol B Lace 0 Rbarch + 2021
NH Health Plangladedh Private Limited (NHDTLY
Aasociate of Holding Conpany Trimed Indis Private Limited
Amaryllis Healiheare Private Limitad
Hudayalaya Pharmacy

Hey Mansgement Pememume] (B0

(Charmakii lnfaviractees
Lntity vnider control joint control of KMPof Holding | Theombosis Rrmah, Latawe (R0
company and their relatives Nutayana Hrodayalays Frmgakezon 0 +

Maumadar Shaw *agal b anban st
(Naravana Health g erzems Praws L=cakrHEaM.
A Heant Frondaae, WAl

| Trmanncran mith rolatcd parfy Ausing brir dndcd Marck 11, 2028 170 Lakint
[ Transactinng Enluapriar hasing vemiis] g4y B Felbn rebiubincio E rerwy wrad o cawmd’ fanl e Plumsp el [ F1]
Cempanar el =P BOP o NRlrg) Frrwand (KM
cempary v T
ralsia
Tairchase of medieal conuumabics, drugs snd surgical instruments & Service
= o B 22062
[Musaenrm Hewlatajur o Rimaics Iy A o i351.95
. ' E - e 1H B I 0
Ak | ki Fovde rdes 1) 2. I R=T1) (8] HIRE1)
B b X -1 [N R < BT
Fldd eI 1 I ] 1-4] 1461948
Sale af medical druggy amd surgical i & Sarvices
=53 . T g Y]
Mamyana Hrisdayalays Limited (NHL) 1o s ) i i 1-j| 13304
[Mumenes | oot aiane aungeca. i g, Firais Cownl - [ 4 - (0]
(B EEAILY B - o] 1-)| o
Fatnd kD) EXT B - 1N
i 1%)} i i) 1 fLLAL]
Reimbursement of Expenses
K] - ] g 1E90)
[Murmvurm | Livakat dLat b oormanas ;RILS 2530 £-)| 5 1-1] (352
Mapayana Hrudsvalaya 3orgecal Heapt'n Paosts Limited e oor B - -
(NHSHIL) £ (=) (s i) il
Purchise cf mnl
[ T\ssl | -I J 151
Narayana FHrodayataya Limited (NHL) (475 - (=] i (4755
of assets
[ 3934 [ J J Ha
Nara Hsdsyalaya Zunsoz (WHL) ) {) 1= i £
Rent
et okt ] d d ) i &=
Loan givin
MEE s Fdevaleyg Sargral Heaplal s d 1w I j -| .I E B
(EHEHPLI i 1 L A4 &) |]m.m2|
pan recehved back
Maravana Hrodayalaya Susgical Hodpital Private Limited J - | ;l
i (300001 5] & (300,00
niereal incuine
Narayana tHrdayalaya Sungical Hosprial Private Liused E | i i B
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Meridian Medical Rescurch & Hospitul Limited
Mules lo the Tlinancla ) statenents for the year ended March 31, 2023 (condinusd)

31

31

Earnings per shant
Basic and diluled caming per share

(£ in lakhsh except far share data

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
' ) 5 Mlarch 31, i3 Mlarch 31, 2032
Profitafize 1ax 1O5XAZ 2.171.37
Weighled Average number of equity shares (basic & diluted)

Asat Asat
Shares March 31, 2023 Mlurch 21, 22
Total 14, of sheres oulslanding 252, 78,530 2927880
Effect of shares issued dunng the year - =
Weighicd averuge number of équily shares for the year 242,785,920 192,783
Basic and hifoted Epsniap per share (3 b2 4R T4z

Capital mansgemenld
The Cumpangs policy is to mamlam a stuble capual base =0 as 1o mainlain wvestor, creditar and market confidense and 1o sustain futuee develapment af the business.

Management monitoes capital on the basis of returm on capatal employed ws well as the Jebt o fatal equity eatic,
Faor the purpose of debt oo wtal aquity 1atio, debt zonsidered 15 Long-lerm and short-t: m borowings. Todal equity eomprse of 1ssued share capital and all glier squity reserves

The capital scructute 15 a5 fallows:

T in Lakhs)
Axat Asal
il

Particulirs March 31, 2023 March 31, 2023
Tazal equity annbutabls to the equy sharcholders of the Campany 12,195.77 8,575.87
As a percentage of tolal capilal % ER
Long-term boreawings including cument maturtes 0324 11970
Total borrowings 02.25 MR
As a perrentage of total capiial 1% 1%

Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 12,288.73 8,695.57
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Mleridian Medical Kesearch & Hosginal Limited

Mates tn 1he financial studemen iz Fur the pear ended dlarch 31, M23 feondinued)

33 Emplayee benelits

I

Defimed coniribulion plen

i Compang makes cooribalians dewards provelon el aed emplepee srace nsurance b delined vagenbanon rencerenl beael | Rz Joe quallsoig sinpleeses Liacee the plan, (e Campany
F P

v required ta canmuauce 3 specified poreentage ol sayiall wovr 1 the eeiremeal beoel | plan ta sl the bl

The ammant e2esnard 25 10 enpense taward s conlibutice g Frosendent Fyed 204 Emplovee State Tesunane o ke peas eadiog Sarch 31, 2023 apyreaicd pe £ 39600 Lakas [presioas year

ardding Klwch 21, 2022 20F 0% lakhay

Drelined benefit plam

Tae Cuinpany wsriatti & pesl-umaloymenl doined benehl plan pawides ooy The gty Fan entiles o seplesee, wha has erdered gl el hee wwas ol fpemmninu secece, Lo
oo ve-mlF minls salice Far each vear of completed servize at 1bc Size of e smenties: | The gty Tund ix n:ardged by 1ife lasucance Coreraton of Tndia. L ae Campany's obligahan
1 rezpent ol ke ratily plan, which i 3 defired benetic alan, o prevedsl To pased n: ackuanal valuabon vamed sl Ty & ecspaodent acciary usg the projzcied und szeda iwshed The
Company ecuguicrs aituddl 8205 10 Inuses i meemiely 0 the slatoeien of or e oam prehensros aneome furming pat ol the seseaear pndicans loss

Basec an the azowanal wo'vahon whia nod ot cespect, the fedzwng table set ou the stans of the ponale plan anc the ameunts rezagmigd o che Cempary’s finaca slalement: o

balance shest date

(2 in Lahhs}
Farliculurs Ar e
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit ubility 5B i
Flar. axelz pr A1) 235U
Med defined Benelid linbllicy L0 13 5572
Laabiliby Tee Compensaicl akeonges 1437 13560
Total emplovee benefit liability 257,02 200,40
Mon.current 107.23 £540
Currend 143.73 L2560
Reconcilimion of nel defined Jemelin furyeish liabalivy
‘T lallguing tabls presencs a reconcaliation of ke apgrang balances <o ce tlesing Ealarses Fur ol gs fiaed bearln (aseee) habidiey 253 1% companent
i1 Revoncdialion of present wulues of defued bongli obligstions A€ im Lakhsy
: At Aral
Pariztulars Maveh 31, 2aid Muarch 31, 2032
Ledirned henefiz obzigatior. al e beg.nroing el She rear Jibi i 35T
Luprent aznace zos LR L]
| nigrgse zast Td.4% L
Bz pwoaents From plar, assels 11617 [£2 &%)
Heeln pasoient direcily hy einplover - -
A gnal [gairs) lnases recognsed in cther venpeghe e incoma
-ghanges in demegraphic assumptions 1503 1+
-ehpages in Lnancial assumpoicns PR | (& 14]
-gaperience adjustemeals 5,53 RIS
Dcfingit beaefil ohligations at the end uof dhe yewr Jus.ad 20867
jil Reesandallalson of Tair value ol olan miaers [Ein Lakhal
. A3 at A al
Particulurs Klarch 31, 2023 Mmech ¥, 1021
Flun asseis at brginning of the yrar FTAKY FI0K
Eerel 11elond 1 be recerved by che compaay [ELA 4.4
Cantrigtioes pad ica che plan 152 417
Expautod 1470 a0 plan astels 1111 114
Berelils pand 5% 1] (1320
Actunal gan: 9 plan assels 14a1 s
Plan assets at the end of the year 258.60 22100
M| 4] wfaned benefit linbility 107.23 A58

i) Expense recognised in Siodzmment of Profid and Loss

(¥ in Linkhs)

Fur 1 vear ended

For the year ended

Farticularm
Murch 31, 2023 March 31, 10Xl
1, et service caul 3397 1534
Tneigs coal 1°).a% ok
Interest income (z1D (10.18)
3535 17.33

{8 in Labhs}

i) Remeuzu remendx recognised an ocher comph eresmcive ingnme

For ibe year ended

For the reur vpied

Particulurs
tlarch 31, 2073 March 31, 2022
Actuarial loss o deEined brnefit ubligation qE A% R
Acrurial 2ain on Jlan asurb (2.02) [1.1%)
4.4 56,77

u@
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Feridiin ¥odical Kesearch & Hepieal f-imifhd
Kodes 1o the Mimancial statermen s [op the year eaded March 31, 2023 (conlineed b

L

Lt

FLaa hasenn
Flun asiers camprises of ehe Mnlkawing: {2 in Lakhap
Fartionlars Fnr the yeur ended For the yeur ended
#larch 3. 2032 fulargh 31, 2022
Fauoed weects wilh 40 Mg ey 2540 2rE
154,60 2I0H
The Fatwe sl aases alleean anaf plao asies s on gasvermment bend elhegh zedil ral ng.
Delimed Brnefl wbrligations
ip Actunrial mssumpiian
Tae Following ae the pauncipal actuana! sssunspioge ot *he ope-Toy die (eapressed af weichied aveiagesh.
Prancipal scruarisl assemptions S L
March 3. 2% Mlarch 31, 2012
Lptu Levei e 29%, Lip 1 Loewel &= 33% Level
Wilkdrawal rate L:vrl Tand awwve - 3% T e slpve= A6
Chscooand rte THR St
Expecled rate af reiurman plan wsels B th T
tartaliby mle Talad (2013 L&) Wamate  JALX (201 2- 147 Ulienais
Eurare salasy inzreases R Ry Fatal par 199
Thrrealla- 6% Thergalier 5%
Assuriptiee regaaling [uies wenaldy are based o pubd.shed socisies and marahzy 1ables
The supecied coainbulans 19 ke lid duespy, e vear ceding 35 Maeh 2024, sl be goprecimately 2255 lakks
Mulurity profile nf defined benediL vbligslion
(1 in Lukhsp
LN 1] Asal
Particulars March 31, 2013 Murch 31, 2022
15t Fal'avang wear VLEE LRl
Znd [alarag ya ZIIE TH 52
Ird £ lowirg year G5 LTV
A1h lallas np wen 45 8% 36.17
“1h ollaweag veur 1550 L
Your & o |01 W L 3505
Rinse hmn o years 3e1] 400

inh Senaidivity analpsin
Keasernzlly passble changes 2 Ike ropoiting dars s ee of the o#levgss gotuanal assunpeions, haldirg oter assumpdens coastant, vl baee allcocd die desinsd Beaefic akliganen by che

amaunls showm eluw.

: March AL, 2033 Miarch 1, 10iX
Parlicutars
Increase Dicroane Ingriagg Crecrease
LEs e edue (10 5% sovemene) o8 1a) 111 FERT] FRE
Faliiz salary ing eases (0.5% mas ciers) &.0E 397 3,52 [
Aicrnqi ke {0 5% movemeny) (il 027 {310 n.3d
Yartalty rale (0% maveiemill ol (L031 [ERAN] (0aL

Alirnigh the analysis does nod lake accoant of Bie Gl distnbuticn el cash e esposiod geelér e plan, o does provide an appeasimalon of Ihe sens. . viky oF e asssmpdem s

[rue bo Micro, Small and bediv s Ealcrprisce

Tk Miniskty af M.z2o, Small ard Medium Erlurpriscs sas raved an offace sucimmndum daed 26 Augu 2008 which eecemmends that the Moo and Zmadl Enterpsse showhd anemlivn m digie
crvespardence wilh s custames the Eabeosoacurs Memomardurn Sinnbe as allocitnd after Aling of ke Memceandumn, Aocardingly, the dusclosure on respeel of the amogeils paeable wosesh
ecerrices 25 e 5L Alzrch 2023 has been nade in the Bnareial slaterens o we iafuszansn cezered aed avanlahle swih ke Company. Further o vios wd e mavagoieeil e impssl 2E
valerese, iF Lny, chal may b= payable in wccardance vaith the procmans of the Mo, Soal]aed Medoen Baerpeses Developmears Ao, 2006 [ The MEMED A7) i3 rol evposiod (o b zabmial,
The Company nxs nod recereed 1w claim Eod inteiea! froon any supplies

IE an Lwhkhsl

Farticulnr: sl Aiat

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
The amuants remaimng wiapard ooz wad gl guepalecg a5 a0 the end of the vear
gl 16210 ZC2.EA
-[nlereat 1552 10
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per die MEbELF A4 = -
The amount of payments made te micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed day during the accounting year, - -
The amcunt af ialere sl due and payable lor e period uflelay nmmhing pagoseal (adich have been pad Bal beyand <he apaoaled day
Junng the wear] bt wathout adiuag the tnteresd soocchicd undo the MSMEL Aer, = ]
The arwwnt of imea aeemed &0 remereay unpaid 21 the ene af each accounting year | 52 2
The amount of Eurlker nlecest remarming Bur aied pavable oves o U sueeeedng rears, Lol such dule when che inlerest dues as above
ue achually pa Ioche smul, onterpasse fus the purgpone ol divalbavae 8 o daducitle expendiuee ander the BASMED A = %

s
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Blcndian sledwnl Boscarch & Havprinl Limeed
#aces coahe fanmncial pimtemenes Tar ehe yend ended March 2, 2023 fruntinued)

15 Finantlal intlevmesiy Fair valoe and rish mansgemenl s

A. Arpo nling clapification and Fin salues

(¥ in Lakhs)

As at March 31, 2023

FYTPL Amortised cost Total

-

Financiul assets
Trade receivables - 2.026.54 2.026.54
Cash and cash equivalents . 37487 57487
Bank balanees other than above - #6331 %63.51
Other financial assets - 34740 34740
- 381232 381131
Finaetetul liahilitics
Bormowings - 9296 9296
Lease liabiliizs - 97.05 397.08
Trade payables - 349802 340892
Other financial linbilitics - 167.31 167.31
- 4.156.2 4:156.24
As at Mareh 31, 2022 FVTPL Amortised cost Total
Financial assets e
Trade receivables - 183591 183591
Cash and cash equivalents - 29432 19432
Bank balances other than above - 5243 3243
Onther financial assets - 330,06 33006
- 251272 151272
Financial lfubilities
Borrowings 119.70 119.70
Lease linbilities 373496 57396
Trade pavables . 109161 309161
Other financial liabilities - 279 priyy]
= 386806 3.868.06

Meacurenens of feir *alues

Thi carmng v ok af all hiadcia, a5l appmeraies the T s dus, Lie s alse of mutug Sl 2z B on quossd prece

B. Finadclal risk maapgrment
The Compam s aziveizd eegese Lo 3 vanem of inaneal ieka credd nsk, markalrick and koot alk

tiz Risk, managrmmi framesaue k

The Compam + 2ok mudgeme L is camed ous by 3 wenhal eauny 2epaimes under palics appeen ol by e Board of Queedlues. “he Boad wopenso serall sl mangeesa, abowell a5 polsocy zeveing peili arzas uch 21

al Aavumands

et enchange rise . ccdni b and uw ol Tu

Liid el winh
s

amd e w weeshog sewecid, iechiding depos it banky and T ol incesees sod ulhar inuia stz

Crodir e 15 gz Ly andlydulp £oodd Lmis and o pethecu of (oUOmers o 3 9anmuiy kan bl el 5 has &een goacied alze vklunng Fecesan speravals

il an 2 CROHINUS bavin b e reeanstes kkam.

The Tompam: eal:khihed an dllzeacs B impamend el rpresems is caims
repanting dae 15 promariby rum Bl caznabks ac of provision Tur tiukiful
recan b durny the soor was 29 lalkow b

ntk 15 the nak thag she couperperhe will sl ~ees 15 ebhgalon uider 3 fnanzol carumem o cuslomsr semeat, Ladeg e haangel kes The ciedn nik aase pem galy [rum s opsral ng xchs ks Fpamait rad: rees ke,

fa: aizdil The ealleciian, fram the Irade iz dile e

12 of erprsicd o wn epest of rade and uther reomivable Based o e pas and the recent colezeen wend Toe masimum eyanune 19 credi ruh a5 al
racamabics amouncee k£ 3038 44 Likke 131 March 2002 € 33590 Laicha] The movement w1 allaeanss Tor nnpaz el o resees ol irzds and oo

(X in Lakhs)

Allnwamge [or crcdif [o1s Auu st A3 ak

Rlnreh 3, 2023 March 31, 2022
Opening balance 43537 25114
Impairment loss (reversed) / recognised (147,11 174.03
Closing balance 298.26 42537

One Cuslemers - 5w athvasatha D E1% scounicd B murs than 1055 a8 the recnue Tonthe ysr ool Maech 31, G000 ane Jne Cugtupiess - Snahy 5wy 21.23% aczcunied for mane Uun 1965 of the revomus

ol hlazh 21, 2200

Credir sk on cash ard aah squivatanid o I aee 5 the Company geeerally Dangaces with ks and fnaes yl vaniub o «ch bigh credil 1aliney amgmad by wicznzLenal and dome = zredil rahng agsice s

fiii] Liguidiry rivk

Liguidity 1ra w Ue sk candwe Compasy woll enspuntes 2wl
liquidiny 13 Lo maure, a: Far a1 pomatke, thal & ol B 2 sulficionl Ti
rapulalin

- in meeting <he eElgalwsn awetaicd vl ranol hivdiney thal e seuied by delivenn); cash vr arthes Tudnzial wss “he Company’s approach 1o ranaging
quidity 10 mize: 15l secs when tho e 4o, unds bath namal 24 wwoaed senditions, kol akurreng unazezplate ke of risking damage 0 s Cempas '

“The Ciemany Behen 25 tharehe oarl, ng 2ap 1al 3 anMewsnt 32 mbeet 250U T prmany, Azosadingh, o2 Dquet 50 oo precssd. In sodicen, the Canpany mareing Tos el szl er e intalz 14

Thz 1able bl provides detanly regarding the undiscounted rondrachual maluree: ol significant finaneial liabilities 3200 31 hluch 2uil (2 in Lakhs)
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2years 2.5 years more than § years Total
Bormowings 4.7 474 43138 - LA
l.eass halnbe=t 17602 qd 32 33 sz ER )
Irade pavahles 1453 0 - - . 1.40E.1
Other Minancial linbilives E13] - - - 1731
Total ABE7.94 3386 75.73 178.72 4,156.25
The rable e low 2cay ides dzeails -rgandng tbe undisteared conlrachis matuniez of significant finariz | babdino 2 of 1L Mecch 2022, (¥ in lahhil
Particulars Less than 1 vear I -2 years I-E years more than § years Total
BaormoneLigs 184 3204 5382 - 119.70
Lrass Lalulitiza [ T&3, 17092 I 172435 31396
Tiads pauables o Ko - - - 1oL 6l
Other financial liabilitics 8279 = - - 279
Tatal 3.384.25 209.86 83.52 150.43 3.868.06

lie) BImrkea Fick
Matkel 1oL r e onk hat i fax value of Taluee ath £ ol 2 Tzl degumens ool Mozt boouss o chingza in marks! prz, aees a8 BRIOZA e Lange Rt ad e e

Cash Mg snd Fuir ¥alut inceres rale rith
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Meiulian Meducnl fercarch & Heapial Liwivsd

PMated tohe [anencial siatements lae whe vear ssbed Hasrh 31, 2023 feeamiseed]
The Crsangaie s Qa1 lets 3t rik mvacs B kg Sorrzaungs wilh sk 2 which sipas the Comnpany 1o cash lav st rie ok
(b lnleresl rale rih capasuce

The evmopcre T ihe UBmpany's barmeng I caszal (e CINGES &l o el 2l the veyeitzng o vt 1051 e Iyng Loz, Boenon ings woh virghls iome s s et Barks o o S

(23 Lakha)

Marsiculars Aswl As wl
March 31, 2023 March 11, M1

Variable rate long te D106 116,70
92.9G 119.70

Tatal borrowings
(2 in Lakhs)

(b} Sensitivity
Empacl on prufit u loss Impact an ather
Farsiculars tom pargnke of cquily
AR AL IO Agar LT
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Sensitivity
1%% increase in base rate (0.93) {1.20) (0.93) (1200
1% decroase in base rate 093 1.20 0.93 1.20
The rigresl rat sensitivity (s based nn the ghiwng kslares oF secured v loans from Eonk
36 Financial Ratios
Racin Methodolagy Euc the pear endel Fur the yrax fnded Variancr
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
2wt Rk ! Lt tnl abions oo o curznl o Tees PEL] Uik L LY
2l Dby Eqery Tate ' Dol e o fuds? s oafdbe bl cad” aquits o ol .55, 19
=1 Ml Serize Coycrae Rann Laning v nlable Ryr ety woce aued debe s noee Hia e B
Jdl BEohio ca hqun'RunM’.* P& T rr wasal ancaages suwmils 1h0% 14 41%
=1 Trah: Koo 438 lumcoar Rl Croed Rewen.: D cpedsloen onver oo sed omds szl L LEL]
It Trade paakboy Ernansr f e Todal polc# o 525 Dvur 34 Eraye 'ade pan cbile 1.2 114
£l e caplal maver atia ” g Bn cpon b e ey webong capld =14 LREl
K] el praborae ' oA pradd on o rovIrug fam pealming 1118 = At
1! Berum an zamlsl empka=d I'BIT per czzaal cnpdaed 014 3T
1t T gl luimds 20 Falio Cpest ol woods 11l over average 1 e-lan 1855 FN LS
Mates

EBIL - Camings befises miereal and 1184

PAET - Prafis ke inkiep, 20F raves wludop e Poonn

ERICL  Camaps Selisc ciore i, 0o, depiog.ad s ] 2o zslidem
PAT - Prafit afla Bands

Db wecludes currend a4 ren-c ozl b ase ke

Capital smphsved veters wo ool earchol ey coqady and debn

Explanafian Tyr vacinnces exrseden 1504

! Imprestmeas 0 Curest daso nodue B aciee 1 e wih badared dur ke gead collesnoen ad coreass in bapines
t Improvemene o Dchi eque et 11 Dt soavicr eavziags Fgos due po Feparmend o F lrem B
 mpraserners o Fgwum anenuite o due oo gpresansd srali

A pet capstal i e Lo, Heg pio fit it pricemage 2 cmproed du 1 eproalinal sTasaat

3% Qther Stmiulary Information
12! Thare are na balance cutstandu on aco_ s af amy Iranseton aith deapanas wricl o under Srousn 248 of the Campanics A0 1003 e Setuan 060 af Sompan o Ard i

Pl The Comipans: g2 2oc har e ang (el lho% ErOLFER B Aangibe 16 o et e iopm e m hoss sompleLin moweridut of has corredod 4 coas compared In iis gl glan

| ~he Compams hay na; sdvanced o loansd or 1 e .od funds to any niher personit) ¥ &6 hespneliding Sogm 2Rkl (udirmed el with the understanding that nilzmediacy 121
123 Darrrtly Bz onduecily R o0 aneest in othie: perans oF entitics ilentifcd @ am manacr mhaiee e boor oo Erall ol the sy dEIET 370 Seneficianies) or
1) Frisck ary fu Mamac, soonnty me the Lig oocs onehall clah Limate sencfiuineg

{141 The Cizugane have no rezeicd ame £od G Iny peieers) o cniffsl, ekl Sezgn cibbet (Fured mp pabd with the undersiandimg fu hothes imzeedad e resg or sderes e dat
10 Dracelly Tar mdiveriy kened oF mioedal in ot prvsens o2 rehiacs sderified i any manncr whziuewe by o4 on belall of the compamy {3illmaw bene fiarres) ar
181 Fzivod s amy pont anke, woounby oe the e e 2o an behal? ol ihe Llamale bere ficianc

61 The Crmpam. disl b g dn maisor e el npievesaty o ccedd weons tha ers unemdaed or diachoscy] 23 eome 1 the La ASsassmEG anker B Indemie To Rl 16153 0l 01 dunag ke 4 2a0

! The Commpame il e Rang wiy charges o sletarn wheak bt we ke jeg sscicd vl RO baand the alauwen mrhed
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To the Members,

BOARD’S REPORT )

The Directors of your Company are pleased to present the Twenty Ninth (29%) Annual Report of
your Company together with the audited financial statement of your Company for the financial
year ended, 31st March 2024.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/HIGHLIGHTS OR RESULT OF OPERATIONS:

The summarized financial results of the Company for the year ended 31st March 2024 are as
under:
(Amt. in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Revenue from Operations 29,046.83 2 6,487.52
Other Income 439.20 156.49
Total Income - 29,486.03 26,664.01
Expenses before finance costs, depreciation and 22,027.40 20,260.35
amortization

Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and 7,458.61 6,383.66
amortization and tax

Finance Cost 50.61 51.64
Depreciation & Amortization expense 1,369.52 1,171.81
Profit / (Loss) Before tax 6,038.48 5,160.21
Tax expense 1,876.20 1,507.39
Profit/Loss for the year After Tax 4,162.28 3,652.82
Total comprehensive income for the year 4,136.54 3,619.90
Earnings per Share (EPS) (Rs.) 14.22 12.48

*Face Value Rs. 10 per share.

2. PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW:

e During the year under review, the total income of the Company increased from
Rs. 26,664.01 lakhs in FY 2022-23 to Rs. 29,486.03 Lakhs in FY 2023-24.

e Earnings before Finance cost, depreciation and amortization and tax increased from
Rs. 6,383.66 lakhs in FY 2022-23 to Rs. 7,458.61 Lakhs in FY 2023-24.

 Profit for the year increased from Rs. 3,652.82 lakhs in FY 2022-23 to Rs. 4,162.28 Lakhs in
FY 2023-24

3. STATE OF AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY:

Your company continued its focus on Quality Parameters, Patient care and Welfare services
resulting in significant improvement in patient satisfaction levels.

The Management has used the principles of prudence in developing estimates, assumptions,
exercising judgements and performing sensitivity analysis. Your Company continues to place
greater emphasis on managing its affairs with diligence, transparency, responsibility and
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accountability. Your Company continues to strive hard to serve the interest of the stakeholders
and society at large, resulting in creation of value and wealth for all stakeholders at all times.

4. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

For the financial year ended 31st March 2024, the Company has transferred Rs. 4,162.28 Lakhs
to Reserves.

5. DIVIDEND:

The Board of directors did notrecommended any dividend for the financial year under review
with a view to retain the earnings for meeting the operational and capex requirements of the
Company.

6. AUDITORS:

a. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. Deloitte Haskins and Sells LLP (Firm Registration Number 117366W/W-100018),
Chartered Accountants, Bengaluru are the statutory auditors of the company who were re-
appointed for the second term of 5 years at the 27t Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 29t August, 2022.

Auditors’ Report for Financial Year 2023-24

The Auditors” have issued an unmodified Report for the year ended 31st March 2024 and does
not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark and therefore, do not call for any
explanation/comment. No fraud was reported by the Auditors.

b. COST AUDITORS:

The Cost Audit, as required under Section 148 of the Act for the year ended on 31st March,
2023 was conducted by M/s. PSV & Associates, Cost and Management Accountants, and
submitted their report. They have been also appointed to carry on the Cost Audit for the year
ended on 31st March, 2024, which would be conducted within the stipulated time.

In accordance with Section 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board has approved the reappointment of M/s. PSV & Associates, Cost
Accountants having Firm Registration Number 000304, as the Cost Auditors of the Company
to audit the cost records for the financial year 2024-25, at a remuneration of Rs. 1,00,000
(Rupees One Lakhs Only) per annum excluding all applicable taxes and out-of-pocket
expenses to be incurred, if any, in connection with the cost audit.

The Board of Directors of the Company proposes the ratification of remuneration of M/s. PSV
& Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditor of the Company, for financial year 2024-
25 at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

c. SECRETARIAL AUDITORS:
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9(1)(b) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors
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of the Company has appointed M/s. P. Sarawagi & Associates, Practicing Company
Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for the year 2023 -24. The Secretarial
Auditors have submitted their Report in prescribed Form MR-3, which is annexed to this
Report as Annexure - A. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark and therefore, do not call for any explanation/comment.

. DISCLOSURE AS TO MAINTENANCE OF COST AUDIT RECORDS:

The Company is required to maintain the cost records as specified by the Central Government
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules made thereunder and accordingly
such accounts and records are made and maintained. "

. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL

POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF FINANCIAL
YEAR TO WHICH THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF
THIS REPORT:

There was no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which had occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which
the financial statements relate and date of the report.

. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE:

During the year under review, there has been no such significant and material orders passed
by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s
operations in future.

10. HOLDING COMPANY:

11.

12.

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited continued be the Holding Company of the Company as on
date of this Report.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

The Company neither have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture Company and Associate Company
nor any company/body corporate became or ceased to be Subsidiary, Joint Venture or
Associate during the financial year under review. As such information required to be given
pursuant to Rule 5 and Rule 8(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.

SHARE CAPITAL:
As on 31st March 2024, the Authorized share Capital of the Company is Rs. 35,00,00,000
divided into 3,50,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each.

The issued, subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company as on 31st March 2024, stands at
Rs. 29,27,88,200 divided into 2,92,78,820 equity shares of Rs. 10 each. '
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During the year under review, the Company has not issued or allotted any shares.

Further, the Company during the year under review has not issued any equity shares with
differential rights/sweat equity shares under Rule 4 & Rule 8 of The Companies (Share
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. Also, the Company does not have any Employee Stock
Option Scheme and hence no equity shares have been issued or allotted under Employee
Stock Option Schemein terms of Rule - 12 of The Companies (Share Capitaland Debentures)
Rules, 2014.

. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, evaluation of performance of every
director, Board was carried out by the Nomination & Remuneration committee. The
Chairman of the respective committees reviewed the performance of the respective
committee. The performance evaluation of Non-Independent Directors and Board as a
whole, Committees thereof was-also carried out by the Independent Directors. Evaluation of
Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the
Director being evaluated. A separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company
was held on 2rd August 2023 and was attended by both the Independent Director

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

A declaration of independence in compliance with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013,

has been received from all the Independent Directors of the Company and taken on record
by the Board.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy, and the activities of the Company are
accordingly reviewed. The Risk Management Policy, inter alia, includes identification of
elements of risk and to mitigate various business risks arising due to internal and external
risks. The Company's policy is to manage its resources conservatively and regular review of
statutory/legal compliances carried out through internal checks and control as well as
external audits.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS” APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:

The Company has been following well laid down policy on Appointment and Remuneration
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel.

DETAILS OF MEETINGS:
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During the year under review, 5 Board Meetings, 5 Audit Committee meetings, 1
Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings and 1 Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee meeting were held. The details are as follows:

SIL. Name of the Director No. of | No. of meetings | Date of meeting
No. meetings | attended attended

held during the year

during the

year

Board Meeting
1. Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty 5 2
2. Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty 5 B 19.05.2023
3. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 5 5 02.08.2023
4. *Mr. B.N Subramanya b 2 13.11.2023
5. *Mr. Muthuraman B 5 2 14.02.2023
6. #Mr. Shankar Arunachalam 5 3 27.03.2024
7. #Dr. Nachiket Mor 5 ,
Audit Committee
1. #Mr. Shankar Arunachalam 5 3 19.05.2023
2 #Dr. Nachiket Mor 3 3 02.08.2023
3. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 5 5 13.11.2023
4 *Mr. Muthuraman B 5 2 14.02.2023
3. *Mr. B N Subramanya 5 2 27.03.2024
Nomination & Remuneration Committee
1. #Dr. Nachiket Mor 1 -
2. #Mr. Shankar Arunachalam 1 -
3. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 1 1 02.08.2023
4. Mr. Muthuraman B 1 1
b Mr. B N Subramanya 1 1
Corporate Social Responsibility Committees
1. Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty 1 1
2. Dr. Emmanuel Rupert 1 1 ] 13.11.2023
3. Mr. Shankar Arunachalam 1 1 -
Independent Directors Meeting

1. Mr. Muthuraman B 1 1 02.08.2023
2. Mr. B N Subramanvya 1 1

*Mr. Muthuraman B. and Mr. BN Subramanya resigned with effect from the close of business hours on
7t August 2023.

# Mr. Shankar Arunachalam and Dr. Nachiket Mor appointed with effect from 8t August 20232023 and
subsequent to their appointment the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were reconstituted with effect from 8t August, 2023.

$ Pursuant to the Section 135 (5), Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is constituted with effect
from 8t August 2023. ' ) -
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TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company does not have any funds lying unpaid or unclaimed. Therefore, it is not
applicable.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION
186:

During the year under review, the Company has not given any loans, provided guarantees
or made investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

COMPANIES/BODY CORPORATES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE
SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THIS
FINANCIAL YEAR:

- There is no Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture Company for the Company. Hence, there

are no Companies/Body corporates which have become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint
venture or Associate Companies during the financial year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors would like to state that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and madejudgmentsand estimates thatarereasonableand prudentsoas to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the profit of the Company for that period under review;

c) The Directorshad taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

d) The directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) The directorshave devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Inaccordance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act,2013, the Company
has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSR Committee) during the
year under review.

During the year under review, the Company has spent Rs. 61.15 Lakhs towards various CSR
activities as against Rs. 58.44 lakhs being 2% of average net profit of financial years 2020-21,
2021-22 and 2022-23, as computed under Section 198 of the Companies Act 2013.

The Annual Report on CSR activities in accordance with the Companies (Corporate Social

Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure - B to this Report. The Board

i
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confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy is in compliance with
the CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement, during the year under
review, falling under purview of the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013.
The transaction entered into by the Company during the year under review with related
parties were in the ordinary course of business and on arms-length price and therefore, do
not fall under the ambit of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and disclosure is enclosed
as Annexure - C :

Related Party disclosures pursuant to Ind AS 24 are made in the notes to Financial
Statements.

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 READ
WITH THE RULES:

As required under the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 read with the Sexual Harassment of Women
at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Rules, 2013, the Company has
constituted the Compliant Committee. The necessary disclosure regarding sexual
harassment complaints received and disposed-off during the year are given below:

No. of Complaints received 1
No. of Complaints disposed off :3
~ No. of Complaints pending :Nil

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of the business of the
Company.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNELS AND CHANGES THEREOF:

Directors as on the date of the report

1) Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty (DIN: 02144586)- Non-Executive Director

2) Dr. Devi Prasad Shetty(DIN: 00252187) - Non-Executive Director

3) Dr. Emmanuel Rupert (DIN: 07010883) - Non-Executive Director

4) Mr. Shankar Arunchalam (DIN:00203948) - Independent Director (w.e.f. 8 August2023)
5) Dr. Nachiket Mor (DIN:00043646) - Independent Director (w.e.f. 8% August 2023)
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Change in the Board of Directors during the year -

At the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 4t August, 2023, Mr. Viren
Prasad Shetty (DIN: 02144586), Director retired by rotation and was re-appointed as
Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation, at that meeting.

Mr. Muthuraman B. (DIN:00004757) and Mr. B N Subramanya (DIN:00483654),
Independent Directors of the Company, had resigned with effectfrom the close of business
hours on 7t August, 2023.

The Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, had appointed Mr. Shankar Arunchalam and Dr. Nachiket
Mor as Additional Directors with effect from 8t August 2023, to hold office as an
Independent Directors of the Company for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years, subject to
approval of the Members of the Company. The Company has received Neotices under
Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from the members of the Company signifying the
candidature of Mr. Shankar Arunchalam and Dr. Nachiket Mor, for their appointment as
Independent Directors of the Company. The Board recommends their appointment.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Shankar Arunchalam and Dr. Nachiket Mor, possess the
requisite integrity, expertise and experience.

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert (DIN: 07010883), Director of the Company, is due toretire by rotation
at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board
recommends re-appointment of Mr. Rupert as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by
rotation.

Key Managerial Personnel as on the Date of the report
1) Mr. Rakesh Verma - Chief Executive Officer

2) Ms. Poonam Barsaiyan - Company Secretary

3) Mr. Prosenjit Mondal - Chief Financial Office

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The details of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and
outgo are as follows:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Sl. | Particulars Details

No.

1 The steps taken or impact on | The Company is conscious towards
conservation of energy conservation of energy and measures

2 The steps taken by the Company for | implemented through previous energy
utilizing alternate sources of energy | audits.

3 | The capital investment on energy
conservation equipments;
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| consumption by 10% to 15% of Energy

Optimization of secondary pump VFD
frequency, optimization of AHUs VFD
Frequency, Replacement of conventional light
fittings with energy efficient LED fittings at
Narayana Super Speciality Hospital, Howrah.
And Replaced 80% light with LED Light.

Planned to Replacement of Existing old
inefficient Chiller with Energy Efficient
Chiller and reduce annual Energy

Consumption in FY 2023-24. Also Planned to
Replace Old and inefficient cooling tower
with energy efficient cooling tower.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

Sl
No.

PARTICULARS -

1

The efforts made
technology absorption.

towards

Replacement of Conventional Light with LED
light

2

The benefits derived like product
improvement, cost reduction,
product development or import
substitution.

NA

In case of imported technology

(imported during the last three

years reckoned from the beginning

of the financial year:

(@) The details of technology
imported;

(b) The year of import;

(c) Whether the technology been
fully absorbed;

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas
where absorption has not taken
place, and the reasons thereof;
and

NA

4

The -expenditure incurred on
Research and Development

Nil

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Sl PARTICULARS 2023-24 (Amount in USD)
No.
1 | The Foreign Exchange earned in | USD 239907.59
terms of actual inflows during the
year
2 | The Foreign Exchange outgo |USD 70570.49

during the year in terms of actual
outflows

10
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29. ANNUAL RETURN

The Annual Return in prescribed Form MGT-7 for the financial year 2022-23 was filed within
the stipulated time and the Annual Return in the prescribed Form MGT-7 for the year 2023-
24 will be filed after the Annual General Meeting, as required under Section 92 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule11 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014. The Company does not have any website.

30. ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Meeting of Board and it powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has established
the Vigil Mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or
grievances about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of directors /employees who avail of the
Mechanism. The Company affirms access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in
appropriate or exceptional cases.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors have devised proper systems and procedures for ensuring compliance with all
applicable Secretarial Standards as approved by the Central Government under Section 118
(10) of the Companies Act 2013. The Directors have devised proper systems and procedures
for ensuring compliance with all applicable Secretarial Standards as approved by the Central
Government under Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act 2013. During the year, your
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of these Secretarial Standards.

32. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND ITS ADEQUACY:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements. The Company periodically reviews the existing financial controls for better
monitoring and evaluation of the performance of the Company. During the year, such controls
were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

33. IBC Code

Neither Company has made any application, nor any application is made against the
Company under any provisions the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year
under review and no proceedings are pending under the said Code as at the end of the
financial year. No one time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution was done during
the year under review.

34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

11




MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440
Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109

Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

It is our strong belief that caring for our business constituents has ensured our success in the
past and will do so in future. The Board acknowledges with gratitude the co-operation and
assistance provided to your Company by its bankers, financial institutions, and the
government. Your Directors thank the vendors and other business associates for their
continued support in the Company’s growth and your Company shall continue to strive to
provide the best treatment for the patients. The Board also takes this opportunity to express
its gratitude for the continued co-operation and support received from its valued
shareholders. Your Directors also wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciation for
the devoted services rendered by the employees of the Company at all level.

By order of the Board of Directors

s~ NS VW\ AM(\

- Dr. Emmanuel Rupert - Y Viren Prasad Shetty
Place: Bengaluru Director Director
Date: 24t May 2024 DIN: 07010883 DIN: 02144586

12
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Annexure - B

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES OF MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH &

HOSPITAL LTD.

Brief outline of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd. CSR Policy (MMRHL CSR):

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Ltd. aims to make a positive difference in the lives of
the people by engaging in activities that eliminates or alleviates pain and suffering to the
under privileged sections of the society by:

11

Promoting healthcare facilities for the upliftment of people at large and creatinga
positive impact by addressing issues of accessibility and affordability.

Promoting educational facilities to help and assist in unfolding the creative potentials
and talents of the children and amateurs.

Strive for socio-economic development thereby reducing inequality between rich and
poor.  _ .

Overview of projects/programs undertaken during the financial year 2023-24

Project Kiran: This program was started in 2016 for providing trained paramedical and
support staff to Howrah City Police who provide free accidental road trauma care
ambulance services in Howrah.

This programis ajointinitiative between Howrah City Policeand Howrah Development
Trust with Narayana Super specialty Hospital (Unit of MMRHL) as a medical partner.

Other Programs: Nutrition of orphanage children, providing mid-day meal programme,
Sanitation program for rural girl students and providing facility safe drinking water for
street and working children.

COMPOSITION OF CSR COMMITTEE:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, companies having a
net worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or
more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during the immediately preceding financial
year shall constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of
three or more directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Mr. Viren Prasad Shetty Chairman
Dr. Emmanuel Rupert Member
Mr. Shankar Arunachalam | Member

13
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. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects
approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company.

CSR
Committee The Company has no website.

CSR Policy

CSR Projects

. Details of the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR
Projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable:

The Company does not meet the criteria in terms of Rule 8 (3) of Companies (Corporate
Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and hence impact assessment is not applicable.
However, the Board reviews the progress of various CSR projects undertaken by the
Company and its impacts in terms of beneficiaries covered and the outcome of the
programs.

a. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 29,22,21,261

b. Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 58,44,425

c. Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous
financial years.: 2,05,723

d. Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
e. Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(b)+(c)-(d)]: Rs. 58,44,425

a. Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing
Project): Rs. 61,15,637

b. Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
c. Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if abplicable: NA
d. Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a)+(b)+(c)]. Rs. 61,15,637

e. CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the | Total Amount | Amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year. | transferred to Unspent | specified under Schedule VII as per
(in Rs.) CSR Account as per | second proviso to section 135(5)
section 135(6)
Amoun Date of Name of the | Amount Date of
transfer Fund transfer

Rs. 61,15,637 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

4




MERIDIAN MEDICAL RESEARCH & HOSPITAL LTD.

CIN: U85110WB1995PLC071440

Registered Office: Westbank Hospital, Andul Road, Howrah-711109

Email: info.nshhowrah@narayanahealth.org, Tel: 080-71222636

f. Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. No. Particular Amount (in Rs.)

1) (2) @)

(i) | Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 58,44,425
section 135(5)

(i) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 61,15,637

(iii) | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,71,212

(iv) | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or 2,05,723
activities of the previous financial years, if any

(v) | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial 4,76,935
years [(iii)-(iv)]

7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA

profit as per section 135(5):

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 5
SL. Preceding Amount Balance Amount| Amount Amount Deficien
No.| Financial | transferred Amount Spent in| transferred to a remaining | cy, if
Year(s) | to Unspent| in the Fund as specified | to be any

CSR Unspent | Financial under Schedule spent in

Account | CSR 1 VII as per second | succeedin

under Account | Year proviso to g

subsection | under (in subsection (5) of Financial

(6) of subsectio | Rs.) section 135, if any | Years

section 135 n  (6) of (in Rs.)

(in Rs.) section

135 Amoun | Date of
(in Rs.) t Transfer
(in Rs.)
1 [Fy1
2 | FY-2 NA
3 | FY-3
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year: No

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

The Company has spent on CSR activities to the extent of the prescribed limit under the
Companies Act, 2013.

@ \\/\/cﬁi'

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert

Non-Executive Director

oo 0

X Viren Prasad Shetty

Non-Executive Director
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D I "'tt Chartered Accountants
e OI_ e 52?55312;’%%}6%?5{5 Srounds
Haskins & SellsLLP o e

Tel: +91 80 6188 6000
Fax: +91 80 6188 6011

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Meridian Medical Research & Hospital
Limited ("the Company”}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the
Sratement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income]), the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date, and notes ta the financial
statements, Including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infarmation
(hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its
profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flaws and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
*SAs”) specified under section 143(10) of the Act, Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“"1CAI") tagether with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accardance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

s The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but dees not include the financial
staterments, and our auditor’s report thereon.

« Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

« In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing s, consider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent
with the financial staternents or our knowledge obtalned during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to bie materially misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there {5 a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, finascial perfarmance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and
changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes malntenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management IS responsible for assessing the Company’'s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company's Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditar’s
report that includes our opinien. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticlsm throughout the audit. We alsa:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinian, The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal contraol.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeguate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals.

+ Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

[\
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability ta continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disdosures in the financial statements ar, if such
disclosures are inadequate, ta modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influsnced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors
in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal financial controls that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a staternent that we have complied with
rolevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as raguired by |aw have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for not complying with the
requirement of the audit trall as stated in (i)(vi) below.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive [ncome,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a director In terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith, is as stated in paragraph (b} above.

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A" Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
adeguacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s intemnal financial controls with
reference to financial statements.
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h} With respect to the other matters o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with

the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in cur gpinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not paid
any managerial remuneration during the year ended March 31, 2024 and hence reporting
under Section 197 of the Act is not applicable.

With respect to the otner matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given Lo us:
i. The Company did not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

fi. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Pratection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 38(iii) to the financial statements no funds have been
advanced or loaned ar invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to orin any other persons
or entities, including foreign entities (*Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b} The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the niate 39(iv) to the financial statements, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Cocmpany shall, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiarles™) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures performed that have baen considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) af
Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material
misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the current year.

Y



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

vi. Based on our examination, which Included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account for the period ended
March 31, 2024, which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the period for all relevant transactions recorded in
the software, except that in respect of two software, the audit trail feature was not
enabled at the database level to log any direct data changes.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable fram
April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors})
Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for record
retention is not applicable for the financial period ended March 31, 2024,

2, Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS B SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration Mo. 1 17366W/W-100018)

T e G

Place: Bengalury Monisha Parikh
Date: May 24, 2024 {Partner)
MP/EKP/SM/NM/SAS2024 {Membership Na. 47840)

UDIN: 24047840BKFIXZ2503
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Meridian
Medical Research & Hospital Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
aur audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controle with reference to financial statements sased on the internal control with reference to
financlal statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s palicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as raguired under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Com pany's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit In accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
"Guidance Note”) jssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to gbtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtzin audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included abtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained [s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s [ntemnal financial controls with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal firancial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial rantrol with reference to financial statements
may become inadequate because of changes in conditians, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the criteria for internal financial control with
reference to financial statements established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal cantrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Finandial
Reparting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 1 17366W/W-100018)

T W G

Place: Bengaluru Manisha Parikh
Date: May 24, 2024 (Partner)
MP/EKP/SM/NM/SA/2024 (Membership Mo. 47840)

UDIN: 24047840BKFIXZ2503
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ANNEXURE B"

TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Campany, and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that -

0]

i

{1

(i

]

(i)

{iiy

(2)

()

(c)

(d)

(e)

{a)

(b]

(A)

(B)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment, capital work
in progress and relevant detalls of right of use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment,
capital work in progress and right of use assets to cover all the items in a phased
manner gver a period of 3 years which, in our opinion, Is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain property, plant and equipment were due for verification during
the year and were physically verified by the Management during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

Based on our examination of the registered sale deed / transfer deed /
conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of all the
immovable properties, (other than immovable properties where the Company is
the lessee, and the |ease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
Company) disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment, right of use assets and capital work-in progress are held in the name
of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment
{including right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any benami property under the
Benaml Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2018) and rules
made thereunder, and hence reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not
applicable.

The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals, In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its operations. Mo discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for
sach class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories
when compared with books of account,

According to the information and explanations glven to us, at any point of time
of the year, the Company has not been sanctioned any working capital facility
from banks or Ainancial institutions on basis of security of current assets, and
hence reparting under clause 3(ii)(b)of the Order is not applicable.
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(i}

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

{wli)

(vii)

(viii)

{ix)

[ix)

{ix)

(ix)

(a)

(b)

{a)

=)

(<)

(d)

The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security, and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured, or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties during the year, and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans, made investments or provided
guarantees or securities anc hence reporting under clause {iv) of the Order is
not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit during the year nor has any
unclaimed deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other ralevant
provisions of the Act, Hence reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services rendered.
We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended,
prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinicn that, prima
facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained by the
Company. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate aor complete.

In respect of statutory dues:

Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, duty of Customs, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the Company have generally been regularly
depasited with the appropriate authorities during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,; duty of Customs, cess
and ather material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period
of miore than six manths from the date they became payable.

There are no statutory dues referred to in sub-dause (a) above which have not
besn deposited on account of disputes as on March 31,2024,

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrenderad or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year,

The Company has not defaulted in the repayment of borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilised term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause (ix){c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised funds on short-term basis and hence, reporting
under clause {ix}{d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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{ix)

(ix}

(x}

(x)

(xi)

(=t}

{xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

{xiv)

(xiv}

(xv)

(2w}

(v}

{xwii)

(=)

(f

(a)

()

(a)

(b)

(<)

(a)

(b)

(a)
(b)
(c)

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix){e) of the Order is not applicable.

Tre Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during
the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not ralsed moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order Is not applicable.

During the year, the Compary has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and
hence reporting under clause 3{x){b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud
on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year,

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143
of the Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
{Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year
and up to the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistie blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xil) of
the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and
the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has an Internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the
year and covering the period up to December 2023 and the final of the internal
audit report issued after the balance sheet date covering the period from January
2024 to March 2024 for the pericd under audit.

During the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with any of its directors, ar directors of the company, subsidiary companies,
associate companies or persons connected with such directors and hence
provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company Is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of [ndia Act, 1934 and hence reporting under clauses I(xvi)(a), (b)and (c)
of the Order is not applicable.

The Group does not have any Core Investment Company {CIC) as part of the
Group and accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order Is not
applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by
our audit and the immediately preceding financial vear.
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Deloitte

Haskins & SellsLLP

{ewiii}

(xix)

()

Place:-Bengaluru

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during
the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilties, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination af the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to belleve that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company Is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they
fall due.

The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amounts for the year
requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Act or special
account In compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the
said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx) of the Order is not applicable
for the year.

For DELOITTE HASKINS B SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
{Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-1000 18)

Tt W bt

Monisha Parikh
(Partner)
(Membership No. 47840)

Date :- May 24, 2024 UDIN: 24047840BKFIXZ2503
MP/EKP/SM/NM/SA/20z



Meridian Medicsl Research & Hospits] Limited
Halance sheet as at March 11, 2024
CIM - UBSTIOWE 1995 LCOT 1440

(% In Lakhs)
FParticulars Note Mo As ar As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Mon-currenl assels
Propemny, plant and equipment 4 11,086.17 11,195.34
Right of use assets 5 17500 406,83
Capital work-in-progress 4 4,681.91 | 40895
Financial asscis
(i) Other finencinl asets 6(n) 195,01 201.45
Other non-current asscts Tia) 167.34 1,032.55
Totul non-current sasets 16,405.43 14,245.14
Current assets
Inventories B 64158 33047
Financial a33ets
() Investments 9 1,615.05 -
() Trade receivables 10 | 646,89 2,026:54
{iii} Cash and cash equivalents 11{a) 22421 57487
{iv) Bank balances ober than (11} above 11{b) 74.88 863,51
(v} Other financial asscts (k) 129.91 145.95
Oiiher current assets Tiby 0136 144.87
Totul current assets 661588 409521
TOTAL ASSETS 23.021.31 1834035
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 202788 2,927.88
Other equity 13 13.404.43 9.267.89
Total equity 1633231 12,195.77
Lialbsilities
Nan-current linbilities
Financial linbilities
{i) Bormowings 14(a) - 68.17
(i) Lense habilitres 15(a) 21106 220.14
Provisiens 16(a) 9101 107.23
Dieferred tax lisbilities {net) 31 TIETE 619.71
Chihier nvosn cuterent Linkilities 19(a) 437.38 480.96
Taotal non-current ilabilities 1,458.21 1,496.21
Current Liabiities
Fmancial linkilities
{1} Borowings 14(b) - 24.79
(i) Lease linkilities 15(b) 207 176.91
{iii) Trade payaliles 17
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 282.90 163.62
Total outstanding dues of creditons other than micro enterprises and small
enferprises 3,040.69 3,335.30
{iv} Other finzncial Habilities 18 94791 167.31
Cicher current liabilities 19(b) 677.37 630.65
Provisions 111140] 180,69 149,79
Current Tax liabilities {net) 0 92,16 -
Totul current Habilities 5230.79 464837
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES _!alﬂl.!ll 1$,3H.E_
Iinterial M' icies 3
The accompanying notes form an inegral part af these financial statements.
As per our report ortached
for Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP Far and on behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Chartered Accountants Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Firm's Registration Mumber | | T366W/W-100018 CIN - UES) 10WE1993PLO0T 1440
it L
Monisha Parikh T Viren Prasad Shelty Dr. Emmanucl Rupert  Kakesh Verma
Partrer @‘”Hs “A\ Director DHrector i
Measbership mumber: 47340 /43 < DIN: 02144586 DIN: 07010883
Place: Bengaluru =/ chaniene ta' Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
Date; May 24, 2024 1,‘:‘ ACCONETARTS I - May 24, 2004 Date: May 24, 2024
= =/
x
LT AL
Poon van
{ Financial Oificer Company Secretary
Plocs: Kolkatn Place: Bengoluru i
Date May 24, 2024 Drale: May 24, 2024
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Meridian Medical Research & Vospital Limized
Statement of profit and lass for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN - UBS1 1OWBIS95PLCOTI440

2 in Lakbs)
Particulurs Node No Far the year ended For the yeur ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revere [rom operations il 2946.83 26,487,52
Oither income 12 439.20 156,49
Tolzl income [A) 19,486,013 16, 644.01
Expenses
Purchase of medical consumables, crugs and sungical instruments 6,989.27 6,372.61
Changes in inveniories of medical consumables, drugs end susgica] instruments - 23 (302 11) (29.97)
(Increase)Decrease
Employes benefits expense 24 393401 149747
Professionn] fees to dociors. 6,846,627 6,231.19
Other expenscs 25 4,559.53 4,189.05
Expenses before finance cost, depreciation and amartisation and tax (B) 2202742 20,260.35
Earnings before Anance costs, depreciation and amortisation and tax (A-B) TASRAT _6IBR66
Finance costs {C ) 26 5041 5154
Depreciation and amortisation expense (I kil 1.369.52 117181
Total expenses (E} = (B+C+D) 13,447.55 21,483.80
Profit before tax (F) ={A-E} 6,038.48 5,160.21
Tax expenscs 3
Current Tax 1,766.58 1,485.64
Defemed tax charge / (eredit) 109.62 21.75
Total tax expense (G) 1.876.20 1.507.39
Net Profit for the year H=({F-G) 4,162.28 165182
Other comprehensive incomeXloss)
Ttems that will nat be reclassified subsequenily to profit or loss
Re-messurement of defined benefit plans {3632) [46.44)
Incoime tnx effect 10.58 13.52
Other comprebensive loss for the year, net of tax (1) [25.74) (32.92)
Total comprehensive income for the year J={H+1) 4.136.54 161990
Earnings per share (of ¥ 10 each): 11
() Basic 14.22 1248
{b) Dituted 14.22 12.48
hdaterinl accounting policies 3

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
Mg per aur report attached

for Delaitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firni's Registration Number | 17366W/W -1 00013

TEL e L

Monisha Parikh

Partner

Membership numiber; 47840
Place; Bengalur

Date: May 24, 2024

For and on behall of the Board of Directeas of
Meridinn Medical Research & Hospital Limited
CIN - UBSLIOWB1995PLCOT1440

o e

Viren Prasad Shetty
Director

DHIN: 02144586
Place: Bengalur
Date; Moy 2d, 2024

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert
Director

DIN; 07010883

Place: Bengalun

Drate: Mary 24, 2024




Meridian Medieal Research & Hospital Limired
Statement of chunges In equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN - US51 10OWRIS9SPLOOT 1440

{1} Eauity shure capital {in & in lakhs exeept No. of Shares)
Particulars Mo, of Shares Amount
_Equity shares of 2R3, 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Balance as at March 31, 2022 202,778,810 1927.88
Chinges in equity share capital durng the = .
year

Issue of shares (refier note 12) - =
Balance as of March 31, 2023 1.92.78.810 21.927.88
Changes in equity share capital during the = =
yeur

[ssie of equity shares note 123 E =
Balance as at March 31, 2024 1,92,78.820 1.927.58
(b} Other equity (2 in Lakhs)

Reserves & Surplus Items of OCI
Securlthes Premium Dreemed Capital Retained earnings | Remeasurements of
EaOsalie Reserve Contribution Bhiaetienined henafit] 0T DOV RNty
Plans

Balunce as at March 31, 2022 3.666.25 1422 2070.94 103.42 7.99
Profit for the year 365282 3,652,682
Other comprehensive income (OCT] net of ax) (3290} {3292}
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3.652.82 {3192} 3.619.50
Balance as at March 31, 2023 3.666.25 14.21 723.76 (136.34) 9,267.89
Profit for the year 4,16228 4,162.28
Oither income (OCT) (net of tax) {25.74) 125,741
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,162,728 (25.74) 4.136.54
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,666.25 14.22 9,886.04 (162.08) 13.404.43

As pet our report aiteched

fior Melaitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chortered Actountants
Firm's Registration Number 1 17366W/W-100018

T€ o8 W (L

Monisha Farikh

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limived
CIM - U351 10WB1995PLCOT 1440

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert

Direcior Drirectos
DIN: 02 144586 DIN: 07010882
Place: Bengahury Place: Bengahuru
Drate: May 24, 2024 Drate: May 24, 2024
it Afomdal P Barsalyan
ief Financial Offacer Company Secrétary
Kolkata Place; Bengaluru

Date: Muy 24, 2004 Dhate: May 24, 2024

Verma

/

Chief Executive Officer




Meridinn Medical Research & Hospltal Limited
Sigtement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
CIN - U851 I0WB1395PLCHT 1440

(@ in Lakis)
Particulars For the vear ended For the year ended
Murch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash Mow from operating achivities
Profit afier tax 4,162.28 L652.82
Adjustments ¢
Incume tax, charge /{cnedit) 157620 1,507.35
Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,368.52 L7181
{ReversalpProvision for loss allowasce [104.18) (14711}
Tntesest income (3637 (1113}
Finance costs 50.61 5164
Cirant income {43.58) (19:32)
Loss on digponal of assets 19742 SL62
Operating eash flow before working capital changes 1AM 625772
Changes in trade receivables 4B4.E] (190.63)
Changees in invertaries (30211 {2997
Chanjges in lonns, other financial assets and ather assets (50.57) (10500
Changes in trade payables and other finencials liabilities (315.67) 907,08
Changes in provision {11.06) 14.71
Cash penerated from operstions 7.266.32 6. M48.11
Income taxes paid (Net) (104680 [hd.13)
Met exsh generated from operating schivities {A) 6.219.46 6,2K198
Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisitian of property, plant and cquipment (inclading capital work-ie-progress, capital ndvances) (3.379.58) (459714
Procecds (ram sale of property, plant and equipment - 48.95
Procesds from bank deposits 785,63 :
Investment in bank depasits - (811.08)
Invesiment in matual fends {3.635.09) .
Interest received 637 11.13
et cash used In investing octivities (B) 16, 189.63) (5,7148.13)
Cash Mo from finapeing activities
Repayment of borg-teom borrowings (92.96) (26.74)
Interest and ather berrowing costs (23.45) (8.51)
Payment af leass linbilities {refer note 15) (204,041 i
Pt cash used in financiag setivities (C) [320.4%) (255.19)
Mer {decrease)increast in cash snd cosh equivalonts (A+B4C) (290.66) I80.55
Cash and eash oquivalents at the beginning of the year (refee note 11)* $T4E7 294.32
Cush awd cash equivalents ot the end of the year {refer note 11) 184,21 ST4.87
*+ Cash and cash equivalents inchudes bank overdrafis that are repayable on demnd and form un integral part of the Company’s cash management.
Material accounting policics (refer not: 3)
RumﬂhlbqﬂlnﬂﬂlﬂlhmMmmm{hmnﬂlmﬁll.“ll .
Non Cash Changes
Asal Fair As al
Eneiickines April 1, 2023 | Froceeds | Repayment | o\ oather |  Foreign exchange March 31, 2024
changes
Long-term bocrowings (including curment marurities) 5296 * [92.96) - - .
Lease Liobilities frefer nate |5} 39705 - (204,04} 2z 220.13 |
| Total liabilitics from Anancing sctivities 490,01 : 257.00) 17.12 220.13
Ml:mvﬂhﬂlﬂﬂfrmﬂggluﬁvﬁuﬁﬂhgr-ﬂdlﬁrﬁlltm} .
Non Cash Changes
eul As il " R Falr Asalb
s April I, 2022 i meal | Valusistber Foreign exchange March 31, 2023
chan
Lang-term barrowings (ineluding curment matsities) 119.70 - (26.74) - - 92.96
Lease liabilities (refi 15} 7396 - {220.04) 43.13 - 397.05
Teotal liakilities from lnancing sctivites 691,66 - {246, 43.13 - 490,01

The sccompanying notes form an intcgral pant of these financial statements.
As per our report attached
for Deloltte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Agoountants
Firm's Registration Number 1 17366WW-100018

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Meridinn Medical Research & Hospital Limited

DiN: 07010863

DIN; (2144586
PMace; Bengahiru Place: Bengaleru
ay 24, 2024 Date: May 24, 2024
Frolghj Barsaiyan
Fi Offieer Comipany Secretary
Kolkta Place: Bengaluru
Dinte: May 24, 2024 Date: May 24, 2024




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Company overview

Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 08 May 1995 under the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting, managing and
maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all disciplines of medicine and without limitation to

run and administer healthcare schemes.
2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements
2.1. Statement of compliance

The standalone financial siatements of the Company have been prepared and presented in accordance with the
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). GAAP comprises of Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) as
specified in Sec 133 of the Companics Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with Rule 3 of the Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 20135 ('the Rules) and the relevant amendment rules issued thereafiter, pronouncements
of regulatory bodies applicable the Company and other provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 24, 2024,
Details of the accounting policics are included in Note 3.

2.2, Basis of preparation

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Standalone Statement of
Changes in Equity, are presented in the format prescribed under Division 1L of the Act, as amended from time
time, for companies that are required to comply with Ind AS. The Standalone Statement of Cash Flows has been
presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts are presented in ¥ in lakhs, ¢xcept share data and per share data, unless otherwise stated.

2.3, Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the acerual basis under the historical cost convention except for
certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting petiod except for
the following items:

Items Measurement basis
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

el Fair value of plan assets less present value of
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability defined benefit obligations

2.4. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that a‘Fect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results
may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongeing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized prospectively.

Judgements
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

—  Mote 30 — leases and lease classification.
—  Note 37 — financial instruments




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in 2 material adjustment in the year ending 31 March 2023 is included in the following notes:

~  Note 31 - recognition of tax expense

—  Note 35 — measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions.

—  Note 28 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies, key assumptions about the likelihood
and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

~  Note 6, 9, 10, 37 - recognition of impairment of financial assets and

—  Note 4 - useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

2.5, Measurement of fair values

3

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

- Level |: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that arc observable for the asset or liebility, either
direetly (i.¢., as prices) or indirectly (i.c., derived from prices).

—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or & liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible.
If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy,
then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hicrarchy as the lowest
level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during
which the change has oecurred. Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included
in Mote 37 — financial instruments.

Material accounting polices

3.1. Financial instruments

a. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially measured (initizl recognition method) at their transaction price when they are
originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial lability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an itemn not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

b. Classification and swbsequent measurement

Financial agsets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
— amortised cost; or
= FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets.



Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not desigrated as
at FVTPL:

_ the asset is held within a business model whosz objective is to hold assets to colleet contractual cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On
initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements
to be measured at amertised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

— the stuted policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on caming contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected
cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets.

— how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management.

_ the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
model) and how those risks are managed.

— how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected, and

— the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis
are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined 5§ the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with
the principal amoun: outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g.,
liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well asa profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Company
considers the contracmal terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of coniraciual cash flows such that it would not meet this
condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows.

~ terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features.

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (¢.g., non- recourse featurcs).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of prinsipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium fo its contractual paramount, a feature thal permits of
requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represcnts the contractal par amount plus acerued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated
as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignifica initial recognition.

L
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Meridian Medical Research & Heospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Financial assets: Subsequen! measurement and gains and losses

Financial assels st | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Wet gains and losses, including any
FVTPL interest or dividend income, are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective intzrest
amortised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or EVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest cxpense,
are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Other financial lighilities are subsequently measured at amartised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in
statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

. Derecognition
Financial aszers

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers
nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet but retains either
all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or
expire.

The Company also dérecognises a financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the
modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the
new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

d. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and

only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and setle the liability simultaneously.

3.2, Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical equipment’s are valued at lower of cost or net
realisable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary fo make
the sale, the net realisable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net realisable is made on an item-
by-item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventaries to their present location after adjusting for value added tax wherever applicable, applying the first in
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of
three manths or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

1.4, Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated. Bank overdrafts are
classified as part of cash and cash equivalent, as they form an integral part of an entity’s cash management.

3.5. Revenue recognition
Revenue from operations

The Company recognizes revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients, on sale of medical consumables
and drugs within the hospital premises and on providing services towards patient amenities.

Revenue is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration) atlocated to that performance
abligation. Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers/patients
in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those products or services.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when property in
the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the customer and no significant
uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of the goods and
regarding its collection,

“Unbilled revenue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healtheare services rendered to the patients who
are undergoing treatment/chservation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the balance sheet date.
"Unearned revenue’ comprises billings in the excess of carnings.

Other medical and health care services

Revenue from other medical and health care services are recognized as and when the services are rendered in
accordance with the terms of the agreements.

Interest

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of 2 financial liability.
When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but
does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statcment of profit
and loss.

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any,
The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and
ather non-refundable taxes or levies, freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use and estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite; any trade discounts and rebates
are deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an itemn of tangible fixed asset
are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously
assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
T
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continued)

Depreciation and amaortisation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line basis from
the date the assets are ready for intended use. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lower of estimated
useful Tife and lease term. Frechold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives of assets for the current and
comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Block of assets Useful life

Building 60 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Medical equipment 13years
Office equipment 5 years
Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Computers 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted
appropriately.

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based on the
internal technical assessment and these useful lives are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule [T of the Companies
Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or disposition
of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting date are
recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for intended use before such
date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress

3.7. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amartization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles arc as follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Amortisation method

The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of
obsolescence, demand, compeatition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and known
technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash
flows from the asset.

3.8 Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term employee
benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted amount of short-term
employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employce services is recognized as an expense as the related service
is rendered by the employees.




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified contributions to
separate entity and has no obligation 1o pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified obligations
towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government administered provident fund
scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The Company's contributions are recognized s an
expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service,

Defined benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of a
defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have eamed and
returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The
calculation of Company's obligation under the plan is performed periodically by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is managed by third party administrator.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), arc recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined liability (assets) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at
the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes
as a result of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defincd benefit
plans are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses in the curtailment
or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to
past service or the gain or loss on cuntailment is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

Compensated absences

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation on any leave accumulated in excess of forty five days or on
termination of employment, Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave, the benefit is classified
as a short-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such compensated absences in the period
in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis
of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method,

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs
direetly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantiz] period of time to
get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.10. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The Company,
at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is 2 lease or not lease. A contract 15, or conlains, a lease
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a consideration.
This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after April |, 2019,

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-
use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for amy
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term. ;
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company's incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when there is
a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s
estimate of the amount expected 1o be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-lerm leases that have a
lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term,

3.11. Earnings per share
The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) artributable to equity sharcholders for
the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

3.12. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. [t is recognised in profit and loss except to the
extent that is relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income fax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any adjustment
to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of
the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It
is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enfurceable right to set off the
recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liahility on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the correspending amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availablé to allow all or part of the deferred fax asset to be
utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the period when the

asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enancted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or seftle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different
tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or.their 1ax assets and liabilities

will be realised simultanecusly. ff %
-
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

Minimum Alternative fax

According to Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT") paid over and above
the normal Income tax in a sukject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding assessment year for set-
off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against the entity’s normal income tax
during the specified period.

3.13. Foreign exchange transactions and translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded ar prevailing rate at the dates of the transaclions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies arc translatzd into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and ligbilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

3.14, Impairment
a. Impairment of financial instruments
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit impaired,
A financial asset is ‘credit impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimenial impact on the estimated
fture cash fows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrowser or issuer.

- the restructuring of @ loan or advance by the company on lerms that the Company would not consider
otherwise.

- itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measurcs loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for the
following, which are measured as 12 month expected credil losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.¢., the risk of default occurring over the expected
life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equel to lifetime expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less
than 12 months).

[ all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual
period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit mﬁ.w cluding forward-
looking information. e ;,!“ e




Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

3.15.

3.16.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference berween the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the trade receivable
does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to
the write off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order
to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company's non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment, If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-
generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less
costs 1o sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific 1o the
CGU (or the asset),

The Company's corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows: To determing impainment of a corporate
asset, recoverable amnount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount, Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an cutflow of economic benefits will be required to scttle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
ohligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation.

When some ot all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received, and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for
onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and
the expeeted cost of terminating the contract.

Segment Reporting

Operating results are regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (‘CODM’) who makes decisions
ahout resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Segment results that are reported to the
CODM include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be J]lnc;md on 4 reasonable basis.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

3.17 Operating Cyele

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilitizs as current and pon-current.

3.18 Recenl promouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under the
Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standards) Fules as issued from time (o lime.

For the year ended March 31, 2024, MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments to the existing
applicable to the Company.
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Limired
Mates 0 the Nmancial siatements for the year snded March 31, 2024 (continved)
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Meridian Medical Rescarch & Hospleal Limited
Motws 0 the finuncial statements for the Vear snded March 31, 2004 {continued)

11 Cash and bank balances [# i Lakhs)
Asat As 3t
Pavlieplany Mareh 31,1024 March 31,2023
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ﬁmmmmmnwﬂmmmmmmmu

Av) Sharchaliing of promoters; e
¥ An at March 31, 2024
_H:' wmber of hares whares % Cha e
Merayana Hrudsyalny Linsited 250,24 467 93.1% 0.00%
Dr, Devi Presad Shemy 1o 0 Db
Shakuniala Shetty * 160 o0 0.00%
Wiren Praesd Skeity * 10 00 LU0
Dr. Vanmn Shetty * 100 LO0% D00
. Epnaeniel Rpectt * 10 D.0t% 0.00%
T

-mmmwnwmmmmwmuﬂmuwmnmw (B ———
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Meridian Medicsl Risearch & Hospital Linsited
Motes te the feuncial satements for the yeor mded March 31, 2024 (continwed)

13 Oubercquity (tin Lakhs)
Asal Ad sl
Parthcalars March 31,2884 March 31, 2003
Reverves amd surplu
Securilicy premi=m
Al the commencoment of the year 3,556, 35 166625
Add: Movement during the year A =
At the end of the year 1 556.25 66025
Deemed Capital Contribution
At the commencement of the y&ar (£ ] 1422
Add: Additions during the year = -
At the end of the year 1432 1422
Retained eamnings
At the commencement of the year 5,723,76 2,070 %4
Add: Net profit after tax tranaferred from statement of peofit and loss 4,162,008 36318
At the end of the year FERE 04 11176
{aher Compretensive Incoms
AL the commencament of the yesr {136.34) {10341}
Add: Addition during the year [25.74) (3290
Al the eod ol the yest i 136,34
13.404.43 [EE
Seeuritle praminm
&miﬁupmﬂmk—dumudhyuimrﬂdmmﬂm“hsmhl dmnoe with i provisioes of the Companies Act, 2013
Retained earnings
gmmwmnrmmmummtyumulumw its oquity shareholiom
Chber Comprehepiive Iscmme
Oter Comprehensive Incorse fopresents actwrial gain or lioss or re-meeassrement of defined benefits obligation.
Deemed Capital Contribution
hﬁnﬁulmwmmw“mﬂmmkqﬁu ismsed to employees.
14 Barrowings 2 in Lakha)
A mit Asal
Pacticalars plarch 31,2624 March 31, 2823
{a) Non-currest
(1) Becured
Tem Ipans
From basics {refer rate () - 9296
Curnem L BT relier note 140b1] -
Tatal nen-current borrowings - [Nk
{B) Cirrent
{0 Secured
Term bosea
Current matuizy of losg term debe - 2479
Taital current ba - ]

and matwrity | Mature of Security

ermn louaen froen Ak Bank Led: Nil {previous year : 8
92 06 ekl Payable in 20 quaniesly instalshests WWMWWIWMMHMHHHNEMWMMM“&-hmmm:hu
ingg Eretm £6 Moy 2022). Intenest ks chargod st uurmmhl.:kmmmmmmmmmuumﬁnmm
- 7.00% pad
15 Leaw Habilities Niste 38 it In Lakhs)
1' As st As b
artiewlas March 31,2004 Macch 31, 2023
(=) Mon-curment
Lease linkility Opening. 357,08 57198
Additions during the period . -
Finance ¢ost scereed during the pericd . LESE)
Lease payment { (220,04
Loasc lability Closing 120013 19705
Less: Curent lease lisbility (LAt (176511
11106 220,14
b Curreit L1
leaia lial .07 17651
.07 176.51
16 Provisions (refer note 15) (2 i Lakhs)
Aswt Asat
P tieiatirs March 31,2024 March 31,2023
{a) Mon-currest
S0 1071
S 9101 197.33
=
i: be/‘_\
[am I80.68 14979
180,89 14079




Meridian Medicsl Researeh & Hospital Limited
Peotes to the Mnanclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2034 {oentinwed)

17 Trade pavuhies ftin Lokl
Particu Asml Asal
s - March 31, 1824 Muarch 3, 1813
Tolal oststanding dues of micm enterprisss: nd small enterprines {refer nece 36) 10 163.62
Tatal oststanding duey of credisors other than micis enterprises and small enberprises 1.040.69 333530

1.5 [T
Payehles wo related parties {refer note 17}
The Company's oxposere o liquidity ik related to trade payables is disclpsed in nole 37
Tea les le {2 in Lakhs)
ndi s I
S, Outstanding Far Follewing periods from due dute of paymenis -
Nod Due * Lass than 1 1-1 years 1-3yvar  More than 3 years
As at March 31, 2024
5} Undisputed - Micio enterprises and small esterprises T0.54 19054 295 1877 - 8150
b} Undisputed - Others 1,575.02 135454 B bas 21m 3040069
&) Digputed dwes - Micr cxierprises and urall easerpirises - - - - - .
) Dispued dues - Oihers a . = = = sy
Total 164337 154560 AL16 1521 2101 231359
‘Aa at March 31, 2003 el
it puted -Micio prises and small i
12148 n»n 18.65 0.13 - 163.62
) Undisputed « Oters 251674 53730 104.77 44.06 3.8 333500
&} Disputed durs - Micra enierprises sod small enperprises = - - - - -
i Disprtod ducs - Othees - : = z - -
Totul 2,518.12 [ 11442 4418 AL53 349892
* Bt Due ingludies pronisaon for expenses
18 Other Gnancial babities {tin Lakh)
Anal Anat
Particolars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current
T parties sther than related partici
Creditors for capitsl poods® 933,79 153,44
Cithers 14,12 nn
94791 167.31
* Ceediars for capite] goods imciodes des of mbce enterprises and small enterprises for EY 24 2 111,93 lskhs and for FY 33 amountng to ¥ 67.23 Iskin.
19 Orther lishilitics (% in Lakhs)
Asat An sl

Particulars

Mlarch 31, 2014 ¥larch 31, 2023

(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties

Deferred government grant for EPCO Licence * Ll ] 4T7.84
Deferred grant -others ** 0.90 112
[ORD w05
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Unearned revenue 5106 10826
Contract liabilities 41480 34104
Deferred government grant for BPCG Licesce ** 4125 4125
___ Balunces doe bo: stawtoey/ governens sschorities Lty 1910
67137 630,55

L D.'ugﬁ:n—:ﬂMnuqﬁﬁhwMMMMMUHHHHHHMHWWMEMEM this grant a5
defened income st fuir value which is belng smartized over the usefl 1ife of ihe fixed susets In propartion in which related depreciation s pecogmized.

**Diuring the fieancisl year 2021-72, the company had rocetved capital mmmmmunu.ummmxw cquipmenis & agreed. The Company bay
recognized this gram ue Jefered incorss at fair value which is being amerized ever the ussfial 1ifi of the fived ssets n preportioning Which tefaizd depreciation i recagnized.

(2 im Lakhs)

Partigisdars

An st Asan




Meridian Medies] Resemrch & Hespital Limited
Mobes to the fmancisl stafements for the year ended March 31, 2024 (continud)

11 Revewus from sperations [t s Lakhs)
Far the year snded For the year snded
s March 11, 3024 March 31, 2011
Income from medica| snd heslihcare sorvices 2810810 2585183
Sslt of medieal consumshles and deugs 84373 £35.87
18,46 83 264R7.52
Reler nodes below
{1} Category of Cuitomer
Cash* 14,698.59 15,1 14.90
Credis 14,348.34 13,)7262
Tatal M_ mg
* Includer receipts through digitasdfelectronic mode
(i) Muture of ireatment
[e-patient 1283875 0.951.03
Diut-patient 5.266.35 4, 900.82
Sale ol medical consursables and drugs 4373 635,67
29,046 83 1648752
(i} The pevenue fram rendering Healihcase services and Pharmacsutical pro-ducts satisfics ‘3t a point i fime” recopnition eriteria ws peescribed by lnd AS 113
{ivd T tion price allseated to the remaining performance obligsfi (% In Lakhs)
Far the year ended Far the year snded
P March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Conirscieal Lishilities
itis 414.8D LM

Congractus] Lishilities

{v) Use of Pracileal expedients

‘Tramsaction price slocated to the remaining performance obligations

mxwmmun—inmmmumuhm;

The Compasy has spplied the practical expedism with respect to non
performance ohligations, Le. the tatment n case af balthoare segment has an original expoited duration of ane yoar of ki
(1] i af __tin Lakhi}
For the year ended Far i year coded
Fariculiny March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
wmthhmMﬂmmnwhmﬂhmmm 930 48 2654644
Raduction i the fre of discounts. 047.55) (3892}
29.046.83 26,4878
21 Oiher income Ui Lakbul
For the year ended| Far the year ended
Frsgviesnla ni March 31, 1024 March 31, 2023
Inienest income o8
- Bank deposits 837 1113
= Inenme tax. Refund %73 5586
Crant o a3.58 1932
Forcign exchange gain, () 145 342
Mticellaneous incoms 278106 66.76
43920 156,49
3 of medical 1 in Lakbe)
For ihe year ended Far the year ended
Particulzrs March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 20623
Inventory at the beginning of the yeur 339.47 3. 20
Jovvaniory st Gic end afthe yeor F1L5E 13947
8Ll —_man
4 Empleyee benelils evpenses (2 in Lakhs]
For the year ended For iive year ended
Farticulan March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries, wages and bonas IEI507 320284
Cantribution in provident and ather funds (refer note 33) 23259 26138
¥ 3645 327
Ty FEITET] 3497




Meridian Medical Ressarch & Hospltal Limbled
Motes o the Brancial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 (continued)

15 Other expemiss {tin Lakhs)
For the endled Far the emled
rslpuzpaind _ur:h‘:i.w Maeeh 31, 2023
Hmipiial sperating expenves
Power end fuel SR a0e
Haspita] goneral expenses RN L 27474
Haouse keeping expensed 6,04 9008
Patient welfare expenses 06 18647
Rent (refer note 30) 1632 18707
Medical gas charges 10646 BT
Biomedical wastage expenses 1691 1512
Repairs and maintenance
- Hospital cquipments 453,20 fraBh]
_ Buildings 265.50 10471
- Others ATO.IE JrioT
171583 102840
Administrative expenses
Traveling and conveyance 40,08 il
Security charges (ELR I 146,85
Printing end smtionery 160.73 &5.00
Rent (refer mole 30) 75.68 o540
Advertisement snd publiciny 315.26 ATIL64
Liﬁlﬂdpl'mﬁﬂ[ﬂﬁlmtﬂbdwl 71.35 41.21
Business prorsetion 147,65 6117
Teleplvone and communicasion 47.05 42.19
Bank charges 67.35 66.63
Insurance 47.29 5222
Corpocate social respoasibility {refer nobe (i) below) 61.16 40.33
Rabes aod taxes MLED 4387
Baoks and periodicals 1290 P55
isiom for joss allowance (105.16) (701
Prevvision for Doshiful Deposits . 620
Loss on dispossl of Property, plist and equipment 19742 162
Miscellancous expensed 3y 435
L3470 1.160.65
455053 i‘%
{ Paymuent bs swditon® % im Lakba)
For the eniled For the year ended
Particalars g fmbir
A g maditor
Audit fez .00 .00
[y ther capacity ©
(rher services [cerification fees) .50 a.50
Reéimbursement of expensas 015 015
965 .65
*eyoluding goods and pervice tax

Carporate social responsibilicy
Consequent i the requircrmints of Section 135 af thie Compasics Act 2013, the Campany b made consributiang as stated below, The ssme [ in line with activities specified im Schodule Y11 of

the Companics Act, 2003,

The Company's CSH schivities primatily focuses on progranm il ahims do make 3 positive diffenioce hmmﬂumwmhmmmuaumh;ﬂm
walTering 1o the wnder privibged sevtions of the suckty by Promtieg hecalihcare facilitics for the splifiment of people at langs and cresting o pesitive jrapact by sddrrasing ioues of sceessibility
dmmmmmnwnﬂMimhmmnmmp{mcﬁmmm

{2 im Laksh

Far the year eniled Far the year eaded

Farticulars March 31, 2014 March 31, 2023

) Amount required to be spent by the Comepany during the year SE44 EEF ]

b) Amount of expenditure incurred an purposs oiher than comstrc e scquisition of amy sssel 6Ll6 4033
¢) Excess spend of prior years set off durtng the year - s

d) ShortfalV/(Excess) at the end of the year [{l={a}-{bi-{ci] (.72 {205}
&) Total of previous years shortfail . -

MA MA

f) Reason for shortfall

) Nature of CSR Activities Pramoting beslthcare facilities for the wpliflmest of

people ot lge, Promoti g edecational facslites to
desgrved childeen and amslcurs

NA NA

) Phetadls of iclilod pany iranssctions
HA HA

i) Whore 4 provision is made with reipect 19 8 lishility sncureed by eatering




Meridisn Medical Research & Hoxplta] Limited
Mates to the financis] statements for the year ended March 31, 2004 (continued)

16 Finange oopts {# in Lakby)
Particulars Far the year ended Far the yrer ended
sy March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Interest cxpense on financial ksbikties measured al amartised cost
= een loam from bankcs 654 195
« bank overdradft 047 056
- Others 1616 -
Intecost cxpense on Jease lishilities (scfcr sote 30) ari2 43
SAL61 51
27 Depreciation and amnrtiatisn eypense ]
For the year ended
Particalars March 31, 2023
L 029,85

Depreciation of property, plant snd equipment (refer pote 43
LITLEI

Erepresiatson of Right of Uss Astet refer Nate 5)
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Meridiazn Medieal Rewearch & Haspital Limsited
Mumﬂmmﬁrwhmruﬁﬂahnhihﬂutmm

1% Contingent Rabilitics snd commiiments

(1) Contimgent Habilities
h:Dmbummmmwli.bﬂuyummmll.ﬁugmmr-nu

(it} Commitments
Estlmated amounti of contrects remalnieg 1o be exgouind on capital scoount (net of ad ) snd not peovidid for smeants o £3,582.64 Iaichs as on March 31, 2024 (previous year: ¥ 2,862.34
laidhes).

1% Segment imformatien

Oiperating Sogments

Ied AS DK “Operating Segment” ["lnd AS 1087} estabilishes standands for the way that ﬁmmwmmmwmm dhischommci shout
peindicts and services, goographis arcas, and mujor custeaners. Bazed vm the “mianagement approach” as defined in fnd AS |08, apcrating scgments. ar to b repartod in a manner consisions with the
mmmuhmwmmmﬂml The CODM gzlusses the Company's perfomase snd allosates sesources on overall basis, The Compuny’s wele
eperating sepmeint b therefore *Medieal and Heabtheare Servees”. Accardingly, tere arc oo sddlisemal descloine ta be pravidad wder bd AS 108, athet than those abeady provided in the financial
satements

infarimation

Wﬂwmwm-ﬂmmumm”nmwmummnum.h_ ing the geugraphical il X
wmhmI-ddumpﬁﬁdhﬂnnthmmdwmwﬂshhwhwhndmﬂ:mﬂllﬁ!hmﬂbnﬂmm»ﬁmhwhﬂﬂ'
one goographical location, 1. Indis, with fespeet to bocation of assets amd bocation al eestamers, furher demils shout gragraphical infocration is not applicable.

mm-wuum-ﬁwmwmmcmﬂmm for muoes than tﬂ!iurhmwunﬂ'luhm}l.m24m0mcmamﬂawnﬂlﬂi}
secousted for mears than |09 of the revere as of Maech 31, 2023

30 Lesies
The Compasy hes takey m-h-mlinlwipmﬂ.hupupmﬁ:ummﬂuﬂmmmmmmwﬂwmfw-mermmhwm
yeats, wish an oplica umhh;rhhmmhﬂu!hmwhnmuh-mmp firoan 0% 10 3%

The ble it the consraciual masuritees of restal {2 I Lakbs)
Avat Abat
i Mareh 31. 2024 March 31. 2023
Less than | year FITE] 20404
L2 yeas 2803 2803
25 years B9 0T
Mlare than § years 3026 216525
M e i3 the o cusvent s pon-sument bease labilities
Asul Adat
asen March 31, 2034 Miarch 31, 2023
Currend lease habstitics. 807 17691
Non-gument leits labitities _2l1d 22008,
FITEE 108
{ui} The m‘hhmiﬂﬁ:hﬂm
For the Year Embndl ~ For The Year Ended
it March 31, 2034 March 31, 2022
Lease Hability Oipening W7 57156
Additions during the period - -
Finmnce ot acerued during the perind a1 43,13
Lease paymest (20404 @008
L] 0705

Tionial expenss revorded Tar Whai-tcrm beaies was £257.90 lakhs fa (5 Foar onided Mach 31, 2034 (15797 1akihs for B¢ year evded basch 1, 2029}
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Meridian Medical Research & Howpical Limioed
Motes in the Mnancial statements for the year ended Maorch 31, 2024 {omntinmed)

3 Income fax

E!Aﬂlummhﬁmﬂﬂﬂll‘lﬂl T im Lakhs)
Far the year ended  For the year ended
arech 31 |
Current income tax 176658 143564
Dieferred tux lihility / (asset}
Chigination and reversal of temporary differeness 109,62 21.78
Deferrod tax 10962 2175
Tax expeas fo r 187620 1,507.39
Amouni in ather comprehs imeome (% in Lakhs)
For the vear ended March 31, 2004 For i rE 31, 2023
Before tnx Tax (expensc) Mt of lax Before tan  Tox (eapemse) benefit Met of tax
Re-mezsurensenl on delincd benefil plans (36.32) 10.58 125. M) (4644} 13.52 32.92)
(36.32) 10.58 [25.74) {46 44) 13,52 132.92)
{6} Reconcitiation of effective tax rate {2 in Lakhs)
For the year ended  For the year ended
arch 2024 3
Profit before tax 603848 5160.21
Tan using ﬂntmmnfndnmeﬂkﬂnw{&nﬂrwﬂ!!ﬁﬂhcﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ.lm} 1.758.4) 1,502.65
Tux effect of
Expenses not dedoctible for bix puspote E145 &2
Others 3034 (1381
1.876.20 1.507.3%
erred fan and are atribg Tollnw (€ in Lakhsh
Balance a4 al Other Recopnised in Profit  Recognised fn OCT Balance as sl
April 1, 2023 Adjestment! or loas durlng 2023-  during 023-24 March 31, 2024
MAT Credit 24 (chargeporedit
. inilisating
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doabiful receivables Bim4 = (3243 - 50,41
Provision for gratusty 525G - (28.46) (LR 3108
Provision for compenssied absences. 43,62 - .00 B 3262
Provision for siow moving and non moving kwventory L - 178 - 9T
Citbvers El.30 = ﬂ}.gl = .10
Total deferred fux aset 16968 z T T 10.53 23085
Deferred tax Hability
Exotss of depresiation on fixed axset under Inoame Tax Act, (559,39} - {60.32) - {948.71)
196} oves deprociation wider Conpanies Act
(389,300 g STl
(619.71) - (T18.76)

CHARTERED
HTANTS
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Meridian Medical Rescarch & Honpital Limited
Nades in the finamcial paiements Tor the year ended March 31, 2024 (continwed)

31 Rebsted party disclosures

| ¢y Management Persanne] (KMP) ol the Holbding
Company

Narayana Holdings Privae Limbed (NHDNPL) (Subsidiary of NCHLY
Narayana Vaishao Devi Specially Hoipitals Private Limited [NVDSHFL)
NH Health Bangladesh peivate Limiled (Subsidisry of NHDPL)
Athima Healthbeeh Privats Limived (AHPL)
Manyana Hrudayalaya Sungieal Hospital Private Limiled (NHSHPL)
EMT in Cayman Lad. (EICL)
Cayman Integrated Healhcare Lid (CIML)
Health City Cayman klands Lid (HCCT)
Narsyuna Health Morth Amevica LLC (NITNA)
Warnyana Inatingie [or Advasced Rescarch Private Limiied (NIARPL) Dissobved wie.[ 15th September 2023
Naraysns Health Iesiinstions Privine Limited (NHIPL} strike off woe.f 20y Sgpiember 2023
NH Integrated Caco Private Limited (NHIC) w.e.f 100 danusry 2023
arayana Heslth insurence Limited (NHIL) w.e.d 245 May 2013
Limited (SHPL) woe. £ 04tk July 2023

Fellow subsidinries

|Ensity usmder coatrol’ poind cantrol of KMP of Holding
compary and theie relstives

arimdar Shaw Medice] Feundation (MSMF)
Narayana Heslth Acaderny Privals Limined(NEAFL)
Asia Heart Foundation { AHF)
Famactions W ped ended Mareh 31, 2024 % be Loy
| Transactions Enterprise having Fellaw Ausociate of Entity under contrel/ joint | Key Masagement Total
contrs over the subsidiaries enterprise having | comtral of KMP of Hobding Persomnel [KMPF)
Company comtrod compapy snd their
relatives
Purchase nf medical comsmables, drugs and surgical in & Bervices
247, 24] i y ] p
H Limibed -} £ i=]] i)
i o E B 132,61 -
it Set e Prbiie Lot 2 It 5 (106,15} )
4724 & - 122.81 B
b f22063)| - i el
instrunents & Services
] ] ] .
(54,03} N i (i [
[ 10,10 & (= [
y@ 010 [ e
ol
H 6 - P -
Marayana Hrudaylaya Limibed (RHLY L1890 (5] i =) =)
Heayama Hrudayalays Surgical Hospital Privase - . . | 4
| Limsted (NHEHPL) (&) p.md {4} | i

] I'J'I-ﬂ tj { -)I t-i I-i ’i:'

|=




Meridian Medical Research & Haspital Limited
Mated fa the financial stements for the year mmded March 31, 2024 (continued)

Transactings with related ear ended March 31, 2024
5 Enterprite having Fellow Aswnciate of Entity aader contral joint | Key Management Tatal
contrel over the sirhsldnries emierprise having control of KMP af Holding] Persoancd {KMP)
Company control company and Ehalr
“Dincomat antislement
= [ 0,
My Hxudiiolye zcicdd =-1 |.j H] L, :;ﬁ l-i t&ﬂg
Short-term om .
n A 5 F [THT ETHT]
iz e ] {1 i mrr] 50,57
- o o o 1071 1371
Ihnm Barsaiyan i ol [ ) (583 [5.22
tﬂ Priy (till June 14, 2022 e “ a o i
- " | 4 B 4502 4802
Pridedioncn) i i) i} i 843 {44.71
- b - - 19, 109,84
Total — ; i P 3 . =
"The cemnundration to KMP does nof include the provisioes made for grataity and d zh a8 they sre obtained on #n actuarinl basia for the Company 2 3 whale
Figpmes im hracket are for the previous year
balances pecetvable (eam and bl i retubed parties im
[atsnces Enterprise kaving Fellew Assoriate of Entity under contrel’ joint |  Key Masagemont Tutal
control over (ke subsbdiaric enterprise kaving | comtrol of KMP of Holding]  Porssnncl (KMP)
Campany coniral compuny and their
- rlagives
Trade payables
- . - 526 - 53
Amaryllis Healbeare Private Lirmited i £ £y el ¢ T
; 1174 - . . i - LT
[ Marsyuns Houdayalaya Limiled (NHL) {17228 i) {4 i) () f1.
.74 E E [T - 7
ot {17 i i {511 i i
196 - . - - 156
(30757 ] (= ] =1 [ig
) 1010y [ 8] (o] {0100
R uf E - - 19
0.7 {10} Lt - - _E'_-EII
Notes:
mNnumhm-rummmmmumm«wmmmﬂﬂ—.
b} Related party relatbonships bave boan dentified by the Mansgeenent.
ihie than thepe wvailable, of ibase which meght reasonsbly be im reapect of smile

[} The term and conditions of the s tions with telsied parties were no mov: fa

transactions with other than relaied sntities oo an arm’s [ength basi

{d} Figures in brackets are for the previoas year

q".arch %q:?.
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Meridian Medical Rrsvarch & Hospltal Limited
Hotes to the fnancisl satements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

33 Earnings per shard
Basic and diluted earning per share
(€ iin knkha encept for share duts
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulsr L W1
Profit afier fax A 618 365353
whares il peed
Fra— Anal As st
= March 31,3006 March 31, 3043
Toasl no. of shares outstanding 19278580 19278810
Effiect of sbares ismmed during the year - :
[ for the vesr LOLTREN LILTIAN
Basle wnd diluted Exsning per share (T) 14.22 1148
34 Caplial

managemeal
The Companys palicy i to ssintaln s stabls eagital base 50 a4 to mainialn [nvestur, crediior and marcet confidencs nd fo sustiin futisz developrment of the business Managesenl mosilors capital

i the basis of relurn oa capin] employed o well es the debt 10 total equity rtic.

mumuruuwmmmmhwumwmwmurmmmlmumwm

The i s follgws (T in Lakhy)

Asat Ax ol
Particulars March 31, 303 March 3, 2021
Tﬂwmnhmw#hm 1633231 1219577
Az 3 perventags of total capital 10 k]
Lomg.term bomowings inclading curent maturiiss = 929
Tatal borronings P NN
As s peromiagd of total capiial [ 1%
Total capital (Equiry snd Barrewing) 1633231 [R5
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Meridian Modics] Research & Hospltul Limited
HNates ts the financlal statements for the yesr ended March 31, 2024 {continged}

15 Employes benelies

A

C.

n

Defined conlribution plan
The Company makes contribwicas wwands provident fund and employee stie inpurance io defined coatribution reticement bxseflt plan for qualifyisg employces. Under the plan, the

Company s required b coniribute s specilied perceniage of payroll cost 1o the netirement beeede plan o (T

The smosnt recognised as an expeme fowands contribution ta Provident Fusd and Employes Stabe lnsussscs for the yesz ending March 31, 2024 sgpregamed 10 ¢ 133.95 lakhs (previous year
wending Manch 31, 2023 : € 226,00 lakhs)

Defined benefit plan
mwm-wmmwhwM.mm#m-w.mhmnmrmwﬂmm.b
mwmﬂqmraiymnrw-ﬂ-dmrh:nhﬁ-«mmmpmwhunﬁwwtwcmarmmww
mhm«mmpumnmmhnwhmummﬂwhnw“wnwmm
methad. The Company reeognize el gaims sl fovses | latly mn the ol aibsr compeet

Mmhmﬂﬂulﬁn#&uhmmmmhmmmudmmﬂhymph-dnmnwpﬁudhmcmwkrmddmuu
balasce sheet dade:

__(tin Lakhs)
Asat Ag b
:" s = March 31, 2024 Mairch 31, 1013
Dhfaned benefit liabiliy 24148 8884
Pl aascts 35647
Het delimed henefit Hahility 2101 10723
Liability fr Compensated abicrces 180.69 143,79
Total emploves beaefit fability 27110 25701
Mon-currend 2101 107.23
Current 1069 149,79
m-unmmwmnnﬂ,
The following table presents & reconcilistion of the upening balances to the closing balances fiar pes defined benefit {zused) lishility and it componends
1) Reconcilistion of present values of defined benefit sbligations iin Lakhs)
rilculs Asst As ot
Baricelans March 31, 2024 Misreh 31, 2023
ezl benefil ebligation st the beginning ol the yoer 355,84 69
Current jervice coll .70 17
Inferest cost 2182 1349
Benefit payments from plan asets . [EC R k]|
Benafit payments dizectly by smplayer {3150y -
Acsmmrial (gaing) lodses recognised in other compoehemsive income:
~hanges in demmgraphic ssumptions (k1] 1503
-changes in fimancial apsumptions 505 (2109
—aperieaee adjastrents 958 452
Defined benclit abligations at the snd of the year 44748 265,84
i) Reconcliation of fuir value of plan asscs _{ In Lakhs)
As ol As ot
FupHusTE March 31, 204 Mareh 31, 2023
Flan assets a1 beginniag of the year 58,80 E
Benefit refund 1o be recrived by the company . (29.97)
Coetribetions paid into the pln 69,69 90,32
Expecied remm oa plan assets 1458 1211
Benefits paid - (AR77}
Acsmarial gain on plan 2ssets 930 102
Plan ausats ai the end of the year 15647 288,60
et defimed benelit labilly a1 107.83
in of Profi and (% in Luakhs)
¥ Faor the yiar ended For (he year ended
Particulars 2074 i
Currens service cosl 44,70 nm
Interest cost 28 1349
Inferest imcomic [18.80 (1LY
axet 3538
Remeasuroman i % ins Lakhsh
For the year ended For the year eaded
P
e Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2013
Achisrial loas o defincd beselit obligation 4562 4B.45
Actusria] gain an plan acsety 9,501 {2.03%
3631 A4
Plan Assets
Plun nssety conprises of the following: {2 i Lakhsk
For the year endéd For the year ended
ERrIwi March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Pueled aysets wilh an insumnoe company 35647 25860
,{'j#g it 35647 258,860
The masure of assetz allocstion of plan ssets v in government bord of high credit ratag. L e S
77
g{ Howrsa .
£ THA0E 0
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Meridian Medical Research & Hospital Linitod
Misfes fo e financial statementy far the year ended March 31, 1024 {zontinied)

Dafised Benelit obBgatisns
1) Actusrinl ssumplions
The e the g acwarial s at Ehe date - a
A at AT M
Fantipal sepuacl seimptins March 31 2024 March 31, 2013
Upte Level 6= 25%,  Up o Level 6= 388,
Withdawual rase Lovel 7 e abuve= 4% Level T and abave= 46%
Dot rats T.A0% 241%
Expecied rale of reeurn on plen acsets 5.70% ET0%
Martzhty mic TALM {2072-14) Uliirmate IALM (2012-14) Uimane
TEascs First yoas 7.90% Flase year 7.90%
Fonire iy Theseatbes 6% Theresfter %
Assurmptioss mﬁwwnm-nwmmﬂ reartalty lables.
The eupeciod contributions ba the fund during the year ending 31 March 2023, will be sppreciemarely £ 55 50 lakhs
Msturity profile of defincd beneils shligution
(¥ im Lakhs)
Asw As ol
Parficubars 1 31
st followring year [TAT 1062
2nd Tollowing year 9336 B11E
3nd following year a7 G509
4th fallowing year 6262 45.89
Sth following yesr 5013 3839
Yo 6o 10 153,54 95,09
Mo thas 10 years 7547 M1
i) Seaitivity snslysls

Reasanably possibbe changts at the reporting date 1 one of the relovnt schuarial assumpdions, balding offer asstimplices constant, would have affecied ihe defined benafit obligation by the
amounks shown below,

March 31, 2024 March 31, 162X
FParticulars
Discount rake (0U5% movement) .19 810 (316} [EF]
Fumire salary increases (0L5% meveEment} .02 [k h] 08 597
Anrition rue (0. 5% moverszat) {037) 5T {028} 0.7
Hﬂxnﬁilﬂﬂm LYok ] .02 001 __ (003

Muumw-mmmﬁmmmurm MMMNMEMMnWHMMﬂWWMM

36 Due ta Micrs, Small and Mediom Esterprises

bo wuch enserprines s @ 31 March 2024 has been made i the Financial sastements. bassd o information received and svailabbe with the Company, Further in view of the managesnent, e
mﬂmum.uwhmnmmuwdmmmmmﬁ-wwmmm MSMED Act') is mol eapected (o
hmﬂmﬁmhnm”mhwmww.

{2 m Lakhs)

Ag ol Agal

e March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023
MMMﬂhMMMWBHwﬂﬂMF

-Princigal LT 21815

»Imbercil 1663 1.70

The ameunt of isterest paid by the bujer ax per the MEMED Act, slong with (he smount of paymcei mede 10 micro and wmall
suppliers beyond e appointzd dy during the socoanting year
The smoue af interest due and payable for the petiod of delay in making paymient {which bave been paid but beyand the appainbed
day during th year) but without adding the interes: spocified under the MSMED Act, 1006;

“The amount of Interest nccrued and remaining unpaid ut the end of each aceounting year 1667 70

mmﬂmmmmuwmhhdeﬂm#mhwﬂnhw
mmﬁﬂdmhmﬂuﬁﬁrhmﬁﬁﬂwﬂeul%mﬂﬁﬂnhmﬂﬂ of MSMED
A 2004, o
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Meridinn Medical Rescarch & Heapital Limbied
Poted io the Ansncis] statensents for the year ended March 31, 2004 (continued)

17 Financial instrements: Fair valoe aad risk managements

A Acoounting clasification and leir vabaes

2 in Lakhi)
As ot March 31, 2024 FYTPL Admartiied cost Total
Flnanclel seum
Tracke roceivabics - 1,645.8% | 546,89
Caah 3nd cash equivalmis . bl o B2
Bank balances ocher than above TS RE TR
Ochar financial scts 11497 33452
- L3090 233090
Fipanelol Habilitie
Bormawings - -
Lesse linbilitiss TN 2013
Trude payabiles 132 59 132359
. o411 4191
- 440161 AA1.63
s a8 Murch 31, 2003 FVTPL Amartived cest Todal
Finmapinl asvets
Trade peceivables - 1,006.54 2,026.4
Cash and eash equivalonts. - S34.8T $74.57
Bank balaades other than sbove . BE1 51 £63.51
Ot Fipanciel assels = ur A0 70
- 280201 Azirnn
Fimaneia! Habilitie
Barrowings 2196 G196
Lease Habilities 19705 157,04
Temde payables . 149892 YASB-92
Oehert il [iabilitici - 18731 167.34
z 4,156.24 415624
Messurement of fadr values

The carrying valoe of 3}l fimanrial soset spproximutes the fair vale; Far vahe: of matuil funds are hased on gaoied price.

B. Financisl risk management
The Company's activitics expose it 1o 3 variety of finmeial risk: credit risk, maicot risk and liquidity risk.

(i) Rick manegoment framework
The Coctipany’s rivk management is carrsed out by & centeal ressary departmend Undcr polivies appeoved by thes Bpand of Directors, The e supervises oversll ridk mmnagoment, a8 well a3 policies
cavering specilic apcad, such &8 formign exchange fisk, credif risk and use of financial istremants

(ii) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not et its obligation under a financial lsstrument or custimer ecermct, leading 1 financial lass: The crodit ik arises prncipally from its operating
activities (primarily trade receivables) nnd froem es investing activitics, includsng Scpasits il Basslcn s financial inatitutiars and other finsncial instrenents.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing eredit limits snd ceodirwosthiness of custormsrs on & contioyots basis to whom credit bt boen granied afier abtaising necesszry sppravals for eredit. The
collection from the trade receivables ans monisaned on & contingcus baxis by the roocivebles leam,

The Company establishes an allowancs fiur imyairment that represents s estimate of sxpected lostes in respect of Irade and wther receivables based on (% gt and the recent soflection trond. The
maximum exposure to credit risk as 8t reporting dase i prienssily from mrade receivables et of provision fior doubitfl revcivabiles amosating b
% 1646.89 lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 1026,54 lakha). The movemsnt in allowance fir impaimes: i respoct of rade and other receivables dusisg the year was s follows:

(8 in Lakby)

Al Aval

Alowance for eredil lom March 31, 2004 March 31, 2023
Opeing balcs 21826 43537
P [ "'ﬂ.lg P47 l!
Closing halange Tra.g0 TH6

T Cissiomers - Swasshynasihl {14,23%) and West Bengal heslih scheme (10.45%) neoounted fot more thas 10% of the ravenae 25 of March 1, 7024 end One Customes - Swiathyasathl (16.35%)
secounied for mane then 10% of the revenue &8 of March 31, 2023,

Credi risk om cash and cash equivalents i lsmised as the Company gensrally ransacts weith hastks and flzancial imstiations with high credit cetings seigned by international esed domestic credit tating
Apencios.

() Liqquiabiey sk
Liguiliny risk is the risk that the Commpany will cocounter difficulry i meeting the ohligations avsoristed with its finaneial lahilites that arc sestlcd by debiveriag cuh e snother fimancial ez, The:
wwwwwm.muu-p-u.u.uumnmqunmmmhmmnmmmwﬁmm

withoul incurring mnacceprsble lowses or risking damage 10 the Company s feputation.

The Company belbves that (e werking capita] [s sufficicnl o meet ils current requuremesis. Accordingly, no liguidity risk is perotived, In addilion, the Company malrmin lirer af ereddiis 21 stuted
in Malg 14,

The tabls bebows provides detail roganding the undiscountid contactual manirties of significant inanciallishiles as of 31 March 2024; {2 in Laks
Pariiculars Le=s tham | wiar | - 2 venrs ME Mmiﬁ Taotal
907 943 FLE 3] 165,96 230,13
ERPLE s . 5 s
9479 5 - . w4781
$.280.57 [ 3 165,96 149163
the i bismied contrachial msir fies of significast fnancial iskiliics sy of 31 March 2023: (¥ b Lakha)
Lesythan lyear L-Zvears LSyears marethanSyesrs  Toial
TR 2479 e ; 296
17692 907 ehiF 17872 597,08
149892 - g.,a* Ny 5 149892
167.31 z o /"-"“‘-\;55 2 167,31
348794 i
| =
s
£
\E



Meridian Medicsd Research & Hoapital Limited
Motes bo the Ninamclal satensents for the year ended Msrch 31, T024 fcontinued)

(i) Mlarket risk
Market risk i the risk that the fir value of foture cash numnnnm:uhuwﬂﬂlwmnr:mimhmmamﬂﬁm#mlﬂ inberest rales,

(a) Foreign emprency risk
mamuwnwmum“umu.mnmumhmmwummw-dhww

mm‘ﬁm.mmmmmﬂmh!.m“hhwbﬁhmwmpﬂdhimfﬂnﬁ LS doflars.

mmnm:nlwlmdwwuhuumlhm‘ and Manch 11,2023 are as (oo

s at 31 Masch 2034 {USH in laklin)
W ; 0,90
Datapiets { (Rabilitier) 0.9
A at 31 March 3023 {USD in Lakhs}
Finapgisl aseets
Cash und cash equivalents 029
Mt nivety ! (Mabikies) LE- I
(tin Lakhs}
Impact on prafie or (boss) befare tax
Anat Avat

0 arch 3074 31 March 2023

ors D
10.75) L1
{c} Caah Mowe and falr vabue interest rute risk
mwmm:m&k-mmwﬁnmﬂmhmmmmﬁw 1o casd flow [mterest rute risk,
{T) imierest race risk expasure
mnmﬂmwmﬂhmﬂtmtmuhdﬂhmwﬂtﬁmnmmhwmr-ipﬂMﬂmmmnwﬁmsﬁﬂm
{2 im Lakha)
An sl An st
Frricalis March 31, 2004 Miareh 31,
Variable i long bermm borrwings incuding st waturities z [T
Total barruwings - L
i Semabtiviey (in Lakbs)
Impact en pro(ii or ks I anct oo sthr
Particulars As al As b Axat As at
March 31, B4 Mareh 31, 2023 Margh 313024 March 31,2023
1% increake in base rale . .93y - (R A
1% i base cule . (1)) . 081
The inerest fale sensilivity is bated on the closing halsnce of secured term losm &om banks.
38 Fluemcisl Rathes
Rate Methedslogy For the year ended  For the year eded
31 March 31, 2023 Fickms
1) Current Rstio Crret kesets over carent babilities 125 38 43.56%
1) Debt-Equity Rasio * Dbt over ot shascholders' equity . 00 100,00
<) Dbt Servics Covormye Rasio " Earning availabile fior Sobt service over debi service 114.20 14,08 1114
] Returs on Equity Rasio ¥ PAT over soml mvreage equity 19.18% 106.07% T4
) Trade Recervable tumaover Rakin Credil Revenue from operations over average trade reccivables TRl 692 12.51%
1 Trade payables bemover mitio Total porchases over average rade payehles 05 208 1.3 7%
) Mot eapiial rurmoner Fatio * Fevenue from opeslicns over working capisal 0.87 4788 A41.80%
) et prodin ratio * et profis over rwenue [rom operstions 14.10% 1379% 191%
i} Return o capital employed PRIT sver capiial employed 35.71% M0UIEY ~IL55%
[luvensory movovermtio® _ Costef goods sobd over average vemtary 1263 19.45 30.26%
Nates

EBIT - Eamings befoce interest and taxcs

PBIT - Profit befors mterest and tuies includeng other facome
EBITDA - Enrnings before intereer, taxes, deprecistion ind snorlisation
PAT - Profic after taxes

Dbt imchodes curront snd nos-camen: lease Habilities

Capétal employed pefers 10 toial sharchalters’ ereliy and debt.

Explanstion Tor variances exceeding 25%:
! lmpecvernest in Curment mtio is due 10 icreass in cash balince due 1o goad collestion and inercase in business
 imprervement in Dhebt equity ratio azd Debt service eovenge mlio is due to repayment of Term boa
2 imprervement in Return o eqalty fdue n improved aperasional profin
'Mqﬂmmmﬁdﬂmhhﬂwﬂhhwmﬂm

¥ |nwentery Bamaver rati decressed due to ncreass in inventory when compared 50 previous year
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Meridizn Medical Research & Hospitul Linsteed
Sates u the finenclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 {continued)

39 (Hbker Statulory Information
Hhhwwhﬂmﬂgumﬂwmmmwﬂm Section 245 of the Companies Act 2003 or Section S60 af Companies Act 1956

:iummammwmﬂm—mmmwmm' lopment whess compled i ovordue of hes exceeded iis cost compaeed io ils original plan

:Li:'jmcam-rh-uMMMummwu:ﬁquMhﬁdpdﬁh:Mwﬂhwmﬁmmhw
{a) Evipectly ot indlerectly lend o invest e ather persons of entities ibentifiod i amy mannet whatsoever by ar on bekalf of the company (Uitmats benefisianes) or
mmﬂ:mmum«hhumnﬁ“ﬂhmm

ﬁv}mwhﬁmmﬂmfﬂMqﬂﬂﬂuﬂhﬂmuﬂuwm:hﬂﬂuﬂr}@tmwm ded incwriting o¢ otherwisc) that
mmmwmmmh«huﬁfmuulhﬁuuﬂmhmmmwquh}mhlhmﬂﬂmhﬂmlﬁﬁ}u
ﬁ]mwmwﬁ#hﬂwnin“ﬂfﬂﬁﬂﬁmlﬂm

{¥) The Comgany dosin’t have any transactions relanng ta previously uneeconded income thal were sumendered ar disciosed 5 income in the tax mpepsnents under the Incotne Tax Act, 1961 (43 aff
19061 ) damiong the year

i) The Compasy 8o not have any charges or satisfaction wihich is yei to bt tegistersd with ROC bevond the statuiney pariod

40 Code oo Sociol Seourity 2020
The Code on Socisl Secusity, 2000 (the Code) has boen enacted, which would iinpact e consributions by the Compary fewards Pravident Fund sed Grahsity. The elfectiv date froen which the
Ficahle i yot 10 b nofificd TlnHﬂmﬂm-lw:wwmmmdﬂhﬁmonNovemmr13. 2020. The Cofmpany will complers He

- s L
evabastion end will give sppropriaic mhhmhﬂdwh&:mﬁhﬂiﬂhmm-mwhmﬁwmlesarepublished.

41 As per the requisement of the rula 301y of the Compantes (Accouniz) Rilee, D014, the Company uses only wath secounting software's fos maintaining its books of sccount that kave 3 festwee of
m—.-&mumhﬂ.,-m,mmm-..uu'-rmmmunmurmnurmammmmmmwmﬁpdwu

mwmmmw.mhwﬂmmmdhm“mmﬂuhmm

The Compary has established and maintained an adequate internal control framewark ver its fimancial reporting and based on its assevement, has concludad tha e jenernal comtrals for Be year
endid 31 March 2024 wore cffective.

For and on kehall of the Boand of Dirécton of
Merkdisn Medical Research & Horpital Limited
CIM - UES 1 10WHI 9950071440

O
| ST R

Flace; Beogakau Place: Bengatum
Doute: May 34, 2024 e My 24, 2024

: Kinlkats Piace: Bengaluru
rater biay 24, 2024 Date; May 24, D024
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